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Corporate Information

NEIEF
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. Huang Guobiao (Chairman)
(appointed on 8 January 2019)
Mr. Li Zhenjun (vacated on 14 March 2019)

Mr. Chen Yongsheng (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 7 December 2018)

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Wu Zhou (resigned on 7 December 2018)

Mr. Gan Xiaohua (appointed on 24 September 2018)

Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Poon Wai Kong (re-designated on 4 January 2019)
Mr. Wu Hao (appointed on 14 March 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Shu Kin
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu

Mr. Wu Hao (appointed on 14 March 2019)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Shu Kin
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung
(resigned on 28 January 2019)
Mr. Huang Guobiao
(appointed on 28 January 2019)
Mr. Chen Yongsheng (appointed on 8 January 2019)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Huang Guobiao (Chairman)
(appointed on 28 January 2019)
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung
Mr. Chan Shu Kin
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu
Mr. Li Zhenjun
(vacated on 14 March 2019)
Mr. Chen Yongsheng (appointed on 8 January 2019)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Shu Kin
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu
Mr. Poon Wai Kong (resigned on 4 January 2019)
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung
Mr. Huang Guobiao
(appointed on 28 January 2019)
Mr. Chen Yongsheng (appointed on 8 January 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Poon Wai Kong (resigned on 4 January 2019)
Mr. Yeung Chi Lung (appointed on 4 January 2019)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

21st Floor

80 Gloucester Road
Wan Chai

Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS
Michael Li & Co

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
(resigned on 11 June 2019)

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
(appointed on 11 June 2019)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

STOCK CODE

850

CONTACT

Telephone: (852) 2698 6093

Facsimile: (852) 3580 7793
Website: www.trcf.com.hk
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China 0il Resources Group Ltd

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group
Limited (Formerly know as
"PetroAsian Energy
Holdings Limited")
(Cayman Islands)

HK Listed

Notes: 1.  Company was incorporated on 25 May 2018.
2. Company was incorporated on 25 May 2018.

Company Structure

—1 A
NEIZRE
As at 31 March 2019 RZZ—NF=A=+—H

1000 Management shares

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS INVESTMENT HOLDINGS g, non-edeematle)

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS ASSET MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FUND MANAGEMENT

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS 52,590.74 Participating Shares
(non-voting, redeemable)

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS INVESTMENT HOLDINGS

INVESTMENT & MONEY LENDER INVESTMENT HOLDINGS

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS INVESTMENT & MONEY LENDER

INVESTMENT HOLDING BROKERAGE

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS INSURANCE BROKERAGE

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS COAL TRADING OIL TRADING

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS INVESTMENT HOLDINGS

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS INVESTMENT HOLDINGS

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS OIL EXPOLITATION BUSINESS

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS

INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT HOLDINGS EXPLOITATION DRILLING

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS
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To Our Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby present the
annual results of Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited (the “Company”)
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Over the past year, the Group’s three principal businesses of
commodity trading, crude oil, and financial services each experienced
difficult business conditions that resulted in mixed fortunes.

As regards the commodity trading segment, the business operated
in an environment characterised by lower crude oil global production
which led to a decline in the volume of oil and chemical products.
Though the business segment continued to be our principal revenue
contributor, its performance was hampered by a decline in the trading
of its non-oil product lines, which include plastic material products,
chemical products and display driver IC products being the main cause
of lower total trading volume by the Group. As for the oil product
lines, it also experienced a contraction, though only modestly. To
enhance the performance of this segment, we have been examining
ways to lessen our dependence on major customers and suppliers,
hence measure designed to gradually diversify our customers, suppliers
and product lines have been initiated.

Similar to the commodity trading business, the crude oil operation
was affected by less-than-stellar market conditions. The decline in oil
production — to address ample supply in the international oil market,
resulted in the fluctuation of oil prices, though such fluctuation
remained at a low level. In view of low oil prices and high production
costs, the Group will adjust its development plan for the oilfield project
located in Fularji District, Heilongjiang Province, China (“Qilfields").
Such a plan will involve the further slowing down of oil exploration at
the Qilfields, a process that began since the past financial year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

With reference to the financial services business, it is principally
involved in money lending, securities brokerage and asset
management. In connection with money lending, two indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries have secured relevant licenses in Hong Kong, while
an operation team has established a credit policy and loan approval
process to mitigate credit risk. The latter efforts are highly important
in both optimising funding used in its business operation and ensuring
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. As for the securities
brokerage operation, our indirect wholly-owned subsidiary China-Hong
Kong Link Securities Company Limited (“CHKLS"), which obtained
a license from Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC") of Hong
Kong to conduct type 1 (dealing in securities) activities back in 2015,
has been providing securities brokerage, underwriting and placement
services during the review year. Correspondingly, it has acted as placing
agent, co-lead manager and underwriter for several listed companies
in Hong Kong. As regards the asset management operation, our newly
acquired indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, China Hong Kong Link
Asset Management Limited (“CHKLAM"), which obtained a type 9
(asset management) licence and type 4 (advising on securities) license
from SFC in February and May 2018, respectively, is responsible for
managing funds invested by the Company.

It is worth noting that the Group also engages in insurance brokerage
services through People Insurance Broker Limited (“People Insurance”),
which it acquired in August 2017. Among the range of brokerage
services that People Insurance is licensed to transact, include general
and long-term insurance.

PROSPECTS

Going forward, our new management team will closely examine each
business segment as it determines how to best enhance the overall
performance of the Group. This will also include keeping abreast of
market and macro-economic developments, as it devises strategies
that protect the Group's interests while facilitating prudent long-term
growth.

Sheltered by a number of positive factors, such as the economic
development of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Bay Area comprising
nine cities in the Pearl River Delta together with Hong Kong and
Macau, Hong Kong is still playing a role as an international financial
hub where professional consultancy, and legal and financial services are
sought.
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Over the past 12 months, we've improved our governance and board
oversight; built a stronger and more cohesive management team;
and made the changes necessary to ensure that our company culture
rewards teamwork and encourages employees to commit for the long
term.

Given our new management’s ample experience in various industries,
apart from the traditional oil trading business of the Group, we will
also actively explore new investment opportunities specifically in
China. The Group will make full use of existing financial platforms
and financial licenses to diversify the group’s businesses progressively
in order to increase the sources of funding and enhance the overall
performance of the Group.

Our continued success will come from stellar execution and the
strength of the businesses we have worked so hard to build.

APPRECIATION

At this time, | would like to extend my gratitude to my fellow Board
members and all our staff for the commitment and diligence displayed
over the past year. | wish to also thank all of our business partners,
customers and shareholders for their unwavering confidence in the
Group. | trust that with the support of our new management team, the
Group will realise stable growth and deliver favourable returns to our
shareholders.

Huang Guobiao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 November 2019
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIB g RERBME

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the third Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) report
by Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited (hereinafter referred as the
Company, and together with its subsidiaries referred as the Group),
highlighting its ESG performance, with disclosure reference made to
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in two subject
areas, namely, Environmental and Social of the commodity trading,
chemical products, property investment, money lending and securities
brokerage businesses in the offices situated at Hong Kong, Macao and
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, Mainland China from 1 April 2018 to
31 March 2019 (reporting period), unless otherwise stated. The lease
of one office in Hong kong was terminated in December 2018, thus it
has been excluded from the reporting scope, and the total floor area
coverage for the Group was 948 m-.

The board of directors of the Company (Board) acknowledges that it
has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting
and for evaluating and determining the Group's ESG-related risks. The
Group has complied with all the “comply or explain” provisions set out
in the ESG Reporting Guide during the reporting period.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report on for this ESG report, key stakeholders namely customers,
suppliers, sub-contractors, employees, creditors, shareholders and the
community have been involved in regular engagement sessions to
discuss and to review areas of attention which will help the business
meets its potential and sustainable growth and be prepared for future
challenges.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

In order to identify the most significant ESG aspects, the Group
Through the
stakeholder surveys carried out during this Reporting Period, key
material issues raised by the stakeholders mainly focused on the social
aspects. Following topics have been deemed as the most important by
stakeholders:

distributed quantitative surveys to stakeholders.

o Employment;

o Health and Safety;

o Development and Training;

o Intellectual Property Rights; and

° Anti-corruption.

The above aspects were strictly managed through the Group's
policies and guidelines. The Group will continue to identify areas of
improvement for the concerned aspects and keep close communication
with its stakeholders to share and exchange ideas for advancing the

Group’s ESG management.

Stakeholder Group Engagement Channels

I%i% N %ig}glk BA #& =

RAEEHREENRR HERERTE A%
BRFNHEZRT TERE - BBNBE LM

ETHRNERE BHERINDEIBZERE
BEBETRHEE@E -ATRABNERRE
REZEMEE:

o B

s RBERZRE:

o BERNIFII:

o HBER X

e REF-
A EERESEEAEBOEERLIES BREE

B SHEHAEBMNRE HEREREE
AEBEREEZWEETEENG FUUESE
o WHEERBHERFIEZBERUADZRRIHR
ER-

FHEEE SEFN
Employees o Performance evaluation and training sessions
®E o BRGHERIFIIRE
° Company emails
J NG
o Regular meetings
o IEpI®
Customers and Suppliers o Annual meetings
BERMER s EFE®E
o Contracts
NG
o Regular communication via email and conference calls
e BRAERNEFSZNTHER
Others o Company emails
HAth . NG

. Through Annual General Meeting

. BRBERBAFERE
. Published announcement
. BEREAEL

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umlted RER=
Annual Report 2018-19 —Z—N\E—NFFERE

EEMERRAT

11



ke

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIB g RERBME

STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on its environmental,
social and governance approach and performance. Please give your
suggestions or share your views via email at enquiries@trcf.com.hk.

THE GROUP'S SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND
VISION

We are committed to minimising the impact that running our business
has on the environment and we encourage our stakeholders to do
the same. During the year, we have complied with all applicable laws
and regulations to act in a socially responsible manner. To protect our
global environment, we have been striving to pursue recycling and
resources conservation.

To provide a safe and healthy workplace, as well as a dynamic work
environment for our employees, we place great importance to our
human resources management and safety management. Last but not
least, we believe that active communication is the key to building
better relationships with our stakeholders. Though we do not maintain
a wide range of business partners, we are committed to maintain
regular and transparent communication with our stakeholders on all
ESG related issues of our business.

A. Environmental
A1. Emissions

The Group is responsible for its impacts to the environment
arising from its business operations. As a non-
manufacturing company, the Group and its daily operation
generate minor impacts on the natural environment.
The Group does not produce wastewater, exhaust gas
emissions and hazardous waste in daily operations.
Indirect environmental impacts generated by its business
operations mainly included consumption of purchased
electricity and other activities to support daily operation.

No non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to air and
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste had been identified during the reporting period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ATl.1 Air Emissions

Al.2

During the reporting period, air emission was mainly
from fuel consumption by the Group’s owned
vehicles and there was no involvement in direct
emissions related to gaseous fuel consumption.

Passenger cars were used for the daily business
operation. Fuel combustion generated several air
emissions (non-GHG) include nitrogen oxides (NOx),
sulphur oxides (SOx) and respiratory suspended
particles (PM).

RIE-HEKRE

/El#&l:l

Al.1 EmHEHK

REREHEA - ERIERDY
IEREARENERAE
KRMFEE - AR E I 2 R
BRAMARREN BRI -

AREBEEERTE-N
HREEEETERTER

GERAZERE) - 2Easalt
PI(NO») ~ Fi &1L ¥ (SO 2 &
F BRI (PM) o

Air emissions (non-GHG) from the vehicle

ERNERER GERERE)

SOx NOx PM

WEY BELY BEENY

(kg) (kg) (kg)

Mobile fuel source FRE R RIR (=) (F7=) (=)
Petrol i 0.15 2.76 0.33

Note: Emission factors for calculations on environmental
parameters throughout the report were made reference
to Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules and their
referred documentation as set out by Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited, unless stated otherwise.

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

There were 111.87 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (CO2eq) GHG (mainly carbon dioxide,
methane and nitrous oxide) emitted from the
Group's operation during the reporting period. The
overall intensity of the GHG emissions for the Group
was 0.12 tCO2eq/m?, which is similar to the last
reporting period.

The GHG reported included the following activities
and scope:
° Direct (scope 1) GHG emissions from the

consumption of petrol;

o Energy indirect (scope 2) GHG emissions from
purchased electricity; and
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RIR gk ERE

sy

o Other indirect (scope 3) GHG emissions from

business air travel, municipal freshwater and
sewage processing, and paper waste disposed

at landfills.

il 2= 2= R~ T BUA K
K05 K BE TR LA R R 17
RERREBEERE
EMEMEERAER
BEEERR (FE3) -

Total GHG
Scope of GHG emissions Emission sources GHG Emission Sub-total emission
BERBREREE HHORE BERBER Nt BRERBEHR
(in tCO2eq) (in tCO2q)  (in percentage)
(A&l (=gl
g8 B8t (Bt
Scope 1 Combustion of fuels in mobile sources Petrol 28.01 28.01 25%
Direct emission ' EERERE b
#E
R3304
Scope 2 Purchased electricity 66.45 66.45 60%
Energy indirect emission 2 ENHEE
&E2
EA ik 3G
Scope 3 Paper waste disposed at landfills 5.00 17.41 15%
Other indirect emission RAREEE R E R
#E3 Electricity used for processing fresh water by 0.05
H it BN government departments/third parties
HFEA,/ E=h AREEAKNE SN
Electricity used for processing sewage by 0.02
government departments/third parties
HEEr/ =7 AREREKNE N
Business air travel by employees 12.34
EEZMEEIR
Total 111.87 100%
@t
Note 1: Emission factors were made reference to Appendix 27 of the MIEET - BR B A BN EFESIE%UER
Main Board Listing Rules and their referred documentation as set EERBRGREAMBRA
out by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, unless stated Iﬁiimiﬁﬁ‘ﬂﬁﬁfﬂ‘tﬁﬁ
otherwise. Rt 9 3 A o
Note 2: Combined margin emission factor of 0.79, 0.84, and 0.63 tCOseq/ M2 : A ERFEREBREIRER
MWh was used for purchased electricity from HKE, CEM Macau, 0.79 ~ 0.84%0.63M8 — & (b #ix
and the Guangdong Province, the PRC. EERARTERE R KH
B & SR A 0 D H FEHE AR
Al3 BZEREEY

A1.3 Hazardous Waste

The Group’s business

of any significant hazardous waste, approximately
2.5 kg of waste electronic product and computer

did not involve generation

hardware from the office were generated during the

reporting period.
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Non-hazardous Waste

Approximately 12 kg of general office waste (e.g.,
waste packing, waste food, waste cardboards) from
the office were generated during the reporting
period. 1.04 tonnes of paper was
consumed for daily office operations, resulting in an
approximate total of 1.05 tonnes of non-hazardous

In addition,

waste.
Measures to Mitigate Emissions

The Group encourages employees to take public
transportation rather than the Group’s vehicles
for business commuting in order to further reduce
our impact on local air emission and related GHG
as the Group
keeps exploring business opportunities to enlarge
its shareholders’ wealth, travelling outside Hong

emissions. For business air travel,

Kong is essential and vital to the sustainable growth
of the Group’s business. Nevertheless, the Group
will monitor employees’ travel and will consider
alternative transportation or communication
channels when necessary.

Wastes Handling and Reduction Initiatives

The Group’s business did not involve significant
amount of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
Waste electronic product and computer hardware
were collected by licensed supplier. Non-hazardous
waste were collected by licensed handlers for
municipal waste treatment.

For daily operation, the Group encourages
employees to reuse or recycle paper and adopts
below paper saving practices

° Promote the use of electronic communication;
and
. Encourage employees to use the paper on

both sides or reuse the paper for draft work.
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A2

y. =504
%té?ﬁifiﬂz#&ﬁﬁ
Use of Resources

The Group conserves resources for environmental
preservation and operational efficiency purposes. To
meet our environmental commitments, various efficiency-
initiatives have been implement for minimising the use of
energy and water consumption.

A2.1 Energy Consumption

During the reporting period, electricity consumption
by the Group was 85,045 kilowatt hour (kWh).
Consumption of petrol was also converted to kWh
unit, resulting in 94,700 kWh. The Group’s business
operations resulted in total energy consumption of

A2

BREA

AEBERRERERZERKE
HENE BIR - RETTHRFIMRRA
o AREEERZERGMESR
H o ARER DR N ANER -

A2.1 BEFFEE

KEBRBREHHNEE
£ /385,045F B o 7 m FE
ENEHRATRRNEN &
94,700F FLBF o REE M
BREBEMARRAEER

179,745 kWh. 179,745F FLB o
2018/19 2017/18 2016/17
“E-N\/-1E —E-t/-N\E —E-X/—tE
(in kWh/m?) (in kWh/m?) (in kWh/m?)
Electricity Intensity RERE (KTEE/FHK:) (MTEE/FHK) (UTRE/FHK)
The Group A&E 89.71 81.78 77.81

A2.2 Water Consumption

During the reporting period, the total water
consumption for the Group was 112.55 m?, with an
intensity of 0.12 m3¥m?2. Water was supplied from
municipal water supplies. No issues on sourcing
water were reported during the reporting period.

A2.3 Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

The Group ensures the rational use of energy
resources at work. It encourages employees to
switch off computers and monitors during off hours.
They are also reminded to switch off all the lights
when they are the last one to leave the office.

Energy efficient electrical appliances are also
encouraged such as purchasing refrigerators with
Grade 1 energy label under the Mandatory Energy
Efficiency Labelling Scheme by the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department of Hong Kong.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t R = £ E AR AR
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A2.4 Water Use Efficiency Initiatives

The Group’s business did not involve significant use
of water, hence no information related to water use
efficiency initiatives is being presented in this report.

A2.5 Packaging Material

The Group's business did not involve any use of
packaging materials, hence no data nor information
is being presented in this report.

The Environment and Natural Resources

A3.1 Significant Impacts of Activities on the Environment

The Group's operation did not cause significant
adverse impacts on the environment and natural
resources. The Group continuously monitors air
emission, wastewater discharge, and noise level
to ensure minimum impacts on the surrounding
environment and creation of a healthier environment
for its workers. The Group did not receive any
complaints from the surrounding community
regarding air pollution, odor, noise, or night light
pollution.

Social

1.

Employment and labour practices

The Group relies on its employees and business partners
to consistently follow applicable laws and industrial good
practices to maintain its goodwill. The vision of the Group
is to become a leading supplier and trading company.
The Group is a value-based organization. The value is
mainly derived from integrity which provides the common
framework for its management style, decision making and
working behaviour. Therefore, the Group aims at meeting
the highest standards of corporate behaviour in all aspects
of our business and operations. The foundation of the
Group is integrity: to be open, honest and trustworthy in
dealing with all stakeholders namely, customers, suppliers,
sub-contractors, employees, creditors, shareholders and
the community as a whole.
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The Group stringently complies with laws and regulations
concerning employment and labour practices, such as
the Macau Labour Relations Law, Labour Law of the PRC,

Labour Contract Law of the PRC. No non-compliance with

relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare had been identified during the
reporting period.

B1.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t R = £ E AR AR

Employment

The Group had a total number of 54 employees
as of 31 March 2019 (76 as of 31 March 2018), in
which 100% of them were full time employees.

During the reporting period, there were no major
changes in policies relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity and
anti-discrimination for the Group. The termination
of labour contracts includes different types and
categories, such as resignation, dismissal, and
termination under various situations. The recruitment
procedure is guided by the Labour Law of the PRC.

The Group ensures employees’ benefits and welfare
have been provided under applicable laws and
regulations. The Group’s Employment Policy has
listed out details about employee’s responsibility,
probation period, hours of work, salary, several types
of leave (annual leave, sick leave, compensation
leave, compassionate leave, maternity leave,
marriage leave, jury service and court attendance),
mandatory provident fund scheme, bonus, employee
share option, service award, medical benefits and
compensation insurance. Employees can always refer
the information from the Employee Handbook.

Annual Report 2018-19 —Z— \E—NFHFEHE

AEBBRETERERRS T
BREDERROER - PIamRFI 8

EE PEARKVBESEE-
REARKMBLEEHERE - KR
SHEA - RERRERYAEE
EEBATEHRGHEER B
BRET TERR KSER-
FEH#E ZHRE RERARE

i A &
E"j‘ﬁ/

B1.

& K 18 A B BE R RORR

EF

*ﬁ—hijﬂ:+—
REEE HERSAE
(—g*)\gzﬂ Eqr=—I[g
BI6R)EE HEHEE
BES -

Ry EHE SEA B
BeEfrie HEESN T
TEREFE R T EH
ZHME MR BAE R AN &
BRBEEERE (LK 1L
LEE R BETRER ME
BomER BERKRES
BIENK L - BEBREF TR
BrhE AR AL T RE

7o

AEBEBREBEREAZE
BREHAEHEENE K
B AEBMEFBBEE
L EBEEE 2BE &
RE-IK Fe 5ER
H(FR R fR 2
BRER ERBR BEEER
RHERMK) @ElER
HeFrE -t -EEBR
RS EE BERN R
BRBRZFHE - EE R
EHMEIFMER-



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group offers opportunities for employees to
develop their career and challenge their potential.
We adopt a performance management system to
instil a performance culture and a performance
based annual salary adjustment policy. Tasks and
targets are discussed annually among department
heads and employees. Annual performance appraisal
is conducted to encourage a dialogue between the
employees and the Group so to evaluate individual
employee’s task and targets and their deliveries,
behavioural performance in the aspects of work
attitude, time management and corporate objectives.
The performance appraisal would be used as one of
the criteria to consider employee’s promotion.

The Group follows the guidelines in the
Sex Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance, the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and the Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance. The Group commits to being an equal
opportunity employer and will not tolerate any
illegal discrimination or harassment based on sex,
race, religion etc., so each employee should respect
the others who come from a different culture. The
Group also seeks diversity at all levels and aim
to create a work environment for all employees
to develop and contribute to their full potential.
Furthermore, the Group supports human rights
consistent with the United Nations Declaration of
Human Rights.
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Total Workforce by Employment Category
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RE-HERE

Turnover

The Group's annual turnover rate was 52%. The
high turnover rate was due to the organizational
restructuring, resulting in a job-cut among
employees with low-productivity and unsatisfactory
performance. The Group offered compensation of
HK$125,000 for six laid-off employees during the
reporting period. Severance payment/Long Service
Payment (LSP) has been fully settled by set-off
Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) contribution of
employer’s proportion.
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RIB g RERBME

B2.

Employee Health and Safety

The Group highly values the importance of providing
a safe and accident-free working environment for
employees. During the reporting period, there were
no major changes in policies relating to occupational
health and safety.

We aim to provide employees a safe and healthy
work environment by following applicable
environmental, safety and health rules. Immediate
reporting should be made to the Administration Unit
for any accident occurs at the Group’s premises.
Basic first aid medical supplies are available in the
pantry. There is a non-smoking policy that employees
may use designated areas for smoking. The Group
also maintain goodwill in compliance with its quality
processes and safety requirements. All inspection
and testing documents are handled in accordance
with all applicable specifications and requirements.
In return, all employees are expected to perform
their work in a safe manner, free of the influence
of alcohol, illegal drugs or controlled substances
which are not tolerated in workplace. The Group
did not note any cases of material non-compliance
in relation to health and safety laws and regulations
during the reporting period.
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Occupational Health and Safety Data
BXRERZZEE

RIG e RERBRE

Work related fatality
ETEREMmET

Work injury cases >3 days
THEER(Z1N3R)

Work injury cases <3 days
THER(PREERIA)

Lost days due to work injury

AITERATIERE
Development and Training

The Group provides comprehensive career
development and training to employees. During
the reporting period, there were no major changes
in policies relating to development and training.
We provide internal and external trainings to
employees, and also encourage employees to
take up conferences, workshops, seminars, and
getting recognitions from external professional
and technical institutes which are relevant to the
jobs and development of the employee through
reimbursement and providing subsidy. During the
reporting period, a total of 56 training hours was
conducted for 3 employees during the reporting
period.
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B4.
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Labour Standards

All employees must show the original supporting
documents to prevent illegal labours when joining
our Group and a copy of documents will be kept by
Human Resources Department, to ensure no child
nor forced labour in the Group's business operations.
As stated in the Employee Handbook, directors and
employees must comply fully with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations that govern the Group’s
business conduct in Hong Kong, Macao and
Mainland China, and any other regions or countries
in which the Group conducts its business, including
but not limited to securities laws, Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, environmental laws, insider
trading and other market misconduct laws.

The Group strictly follows relevant laws and
regulations such as Labour Law and Labour Contract
Law of the PRC, Provisions on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labour, the Employment Ordinance of
the Laws of Hong Kong, the Labour Law of Macau
government. All newly engaged employees are
required to provide an identification document for
the background check. Upon any violations against
the above stated laws, the labour contract will be
terminated immediately.

There were no major risks associated with incidents
of child labour, forced or compulsory labour within
the Group. No non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the
group relating to preventing child and forced labor
had been identified during the reporting period.
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2.  Operating Practices

B5.

Bé6.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has no standardized policy on managing
the environment and social risks of the supply chain.
Nevertheless, it encourages suppliers to maintain a
high standard on business ethics and conducts, with
satisfactory environmental and social performance.
The Group ensures fair dealing with suppliers and
contractors through open tendering or an approved
selecting process which are solely based upon
price, quality and need. Therefore, optimal use of
competition and careful selection of capable and
responsible suppliers and contractors are pursued.
The Group has standard practice on obtaining
multiple quotations from suppliers before making
decision as well as engaging independent risk and
asset management company to carry out credit
report of the suppliers when necessary.

Product Responsibility

Product Labelling, Health and Safety, and Advertising

During the reporting period, the Group did not note
any cases of material non-compliance with laws and
regulations regarding health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided.
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Quality Assurance

To ensure best quality service provided to customers,
the Group ensures detail explanation of the
products/services are given to customers before
signing the contracts. Communication channels such
as email (enquiries@trcf.com.hk) and contact number
(852 2698 6093) are available for any enquiries,
general concerns and complaints. Administrative
department regularly checks the email box and will
assign the case to relevant departments for further
handling.

Data Protection

The Group ensures strict compliance with the
statutory requirements to fully meet a high standard
of security and confidentiality of personal data
privacy protection. Unless prior approval is obtained,
employees shall not disclose any information relating
to the Group, customers, intangible assets, business
secrets or any price-sensitive information which
may come to their knowledge during the course
of their employment or after termination of their
employment.

Every computers and servers in the Group's offices
had been installed anti-virus programs in order to
protect all confidential data. The program will be
updated periodically, make sure that most of the
virus can be screened out. Each employee has a
unique login information to prevent third parties
using the computers. The Group has dedicated
IT department to monitor the network and the
computers to ensure the stability of the network and
run smoothly.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in
relation to the Group's investment practices and data
privacy that had a significant impact on the Group
during the reporting period.
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Intellectual Property

All directors, management team and employees must
protect the Group's tangible and intangible assets
and ensure their proper and efficient use. such assets
include, but not limited to trade name, trademarks
(logos), patents, copyrights and confidential
information. The Group also supports the use of
copyrighted products according to the copyright
regulations. Employees must not bring in any fake
or copied program, software or materials including
computer software, books, audio and videotapes,
journals and magazines which are not copyrighted
materials.

Anti-corruption

To ensure ethical conduction of business, the Group
strictly follows the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of
the PRC, Criminal Law of the PRC, and other laws,
regulations and regulatory documents related to
commercial bribery.

At stated in the Employee Handbook, bribery and
corrupt practices, unlawful or unethical behaviors
are strictly prohibited by the Group. Any personal
gain acquired from normal business activities such as
customers’ rebate, suppliers’ cash reward, or others
in similar nature should be immediately reported
within one week to local general manager, local
Board of Directors, and Chief Executive Officer of the
Group.
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BS.

The Group has a whistle-blowing system that states
all directors, management team and employees
can be whistle-blowers. The whistle-blowers should
make their complaint to Chief Executive Officer or
any Executive Director of the Group. Depending on
the severity and circumstances, the Chief Executive
officer, any Executive Director or the Board of the
Group, may follow up with investigations and
consequential actions for the person involved in the
violation.

The Group has not aided, abetted, assisted or
colluded with an individual who has committed,
or conspired to commit any unlawful activities. No
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering had been identified during the Reporting
Period.

Community Investment

The Group strives to implement corporate social
responsibility and actively participates in public
welfare activities. During the reporting period, the
Group has actively participated several community
engagement events, and donated HKD 138,000 to Po
Leung Kuk as Diamond Sponsor during April 2018.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t R = £ E AR AR
Annual Report 2018-19 —Z— N\E—hWFEFERE

BS.

AEBRBERES - B
REMBES EREBRK
BEHRKBERE - BHH
F& [R)1T B AR B SR A SR B (1]
WITEERF -BFEEN
RBRME  THAR K
SEEARTEETHEES
AEREHIZEALTHRAER
HigETH-

REBTEED BE- W
Bhsk R B EETTHA RE
TTERBEEEHMAL R
HBEME MERRERY
AEEELAEAFEARE
SRR MEFAR
HRERBEERIOERDN

B e

HERE

AEBHIRETLELS
BEERBEBSENRED -
REHE AEEERS
HZIAM R 2 ETE RN
—E-N\EHAERER
EODARRRBIBELE
138,0007T °



Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW ON CONSOLIDATED OPERATING
RESULTS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group achieved a revenue
of approximately HK$105,502,000 (2018: HK$5,536,378,000%)
and a gross profit of approximately HK$70,066,000 (2018:
HK$146,472,000), representing a decrease of 98% and 52% from the
year of 2018 respectively.

The decrease in the Group’s revenue was mainly due to the impact
of initially adoption of HKFRS 15 at 1 April 2018 in relation to the
revenue recognition by shifting from the risk-and-reward approach
under HKAS 18 to transfer-of-control approach under HKFRS 15.
Under the transition method chosen, comparative information is not
restated. By considering the aggregation of total sales from customers
in commodity trading segment and revenue in other segments of
the Group, the Group achieved gross income of approximately
HK$2,180,416,000 (2018: HK$5,536,378,000), representing a
decrease of 61% from the year of 2018. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to decrease in sales from customers in the commodity
trading segment.

While the decrease in gross profit was mainly attributable to decrease
in trading volume in the commodity trading segment.

The Group recorded consolidated operating loss of approximately
HK$339,899,000 (2018: HK$148,709,000) representing an increase of
129% from the year of 2018. Increase in operating loss of the Group
was mainly due to decrease in revenue in commodity trading segment,
allowance for credit losses on trade receivables, impairment losses
on prepayments and impairment losses of assets relating to a PRC
subsidiary.

i The Group has initially adopted HKFRS 15 at 1 April 2018. Under the transition
method chosen, comparative information is not restated.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Commodity trading

In the reporting period, the commodity trading business contributed
the majority revenue of the Group, amounting to approximately
HK$72,796,000 (2018: HK$5,500,164,000%) which accounted
for 69.0% of the Group’s revenue (2018: 99.3%), representing a
decrease of 99% as compared with the year of 2018. Such decrease
was mainly due to the impact of initially adoption of HKFRS 15 at
1 April 2018. Under the transition method chosen, comparative
information is not restated. Whereas the total sales from customers
for the reporting period was approximately HK$2,147,709,000 (2018:
HK$5,500,164,000), representing a decrease of 61% as compared
with the year of 2018, such decline was mainly due to a decrease in
trading volume in non-oil product lines in particularly plastic materials
products, chemical products and display driver IC products during the
reporting period.

The demand and supply of oil product in both China’s domestic
and international market took a turn for being excessive again after
returning to a balance. The international oil price experienced a rise
generally as compared with last year. Due to geopolitical risks and
frequent unexpected events, the oil price fluctuated frequently in a
short period in the year. For the reporting period, the trading volume
of oil products of the Group decreased as compared with last year. The
reduction in trading volume of plastic products was the main reason
for the reduction of total trading volume of the Group.

To reduce the reliance of few major customers and suppliers, the
Group has recently put in place measures to gradually diversify both its
customers with more diversified product lines as well as securing new
suppliers.

As for the oil products trading, the Group recorded sales from
customers of approximately HK$2,083,646,000 for the reporting
period (2018: HK$2,867,748,000), representing a decrease of 27% as
compared with 2018. A total of 459,790 tons (2018: 678,473 tons) of
oil products were traded in China and other Asia Pacific countries and
maintaining steady gross profit.

To ensure a steady profit growth in commodity trading business and
achieve risk diversification, our operating teams carried out non-oil
product lines for trading such as display driver IC products, chemical
products and non-ferrous metals. During the reporting period, revenue
of approximately HK$64,063,000 (2018: HK$2,632,416,000) was
generated from these product lines.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Looking forward into the next year, our operation teams will put
effort to expand markets and the business scale, including the trading
transactions of more new product categories such as non-ferrous
metal, and aim to lead the Group’'s commodity trading business into
a new field and increase the Group's competitiveness in the field of
commodity trading.

Crude oil

The Group owns 96% interest of an indirect subsidiary 75750 /3
MR A HEAZEAFRET2AR, which owns an oilfield project in
Fularji District near Qigihar City of Heilongjiang Province of China
("Oilfields").

During the reporting period, for the purpose of renewing the licence
(ZEHEEFFAIRL) for the forthcoming operation in the Qilfields, the
modification works to the Qilfields have been completed in accordance
with the local fire safety requirements and the inspection of the fire
safety modification has been completed, the Oilfields subsequently
obtained the acceptance from the relevant governmental department
for the PRC fire safety modification. The renewal of the licence (%%
HEFFAIEL) is expected to be completed by late of 2019.

Financial services

The financial services segment includes money lending, securities
brokerage and asset management businesses.

(a) Money lending

Two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company have
obtained the money lending licences in Hong Kong. During
the reporting period, interest revenue was approximately
HK$19,468,000 (2018: HK$15,941,000), representing an
increase of 22% and maintained a steady profit.

The licensing of money lenders and regulation of money-lending
transactions are governed by the Money Lenders Ordinance,
Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong. The market of money
lending business by licensed money lenders in Hong Kong is keen
and competitive. In order to optimise the funding use in business
but also to ensure the compliance of the related laws and
regulations, the operation team has established a credit policy
and loan approval process to minimise the credit risk.
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(b) Securities brokerage

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, namely
China-Hong Kong Link Securities Company Limited (“CHKLS"),
has obtained a licence by Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activities on 30 September 2015. The Group commenced the
business on 30 March 2017. During the reporting period,
CHKLS mainly provided securities brokerage, underwriting and
placements services. CHKLS has successfully acted as placing
agents, co-lead managers and underwriters for several listed
companies in Hong Kong. During the reporting period, CHKLS
has generated revenue of approximately HK$6,833,000 (2018:
HK$15,973,000) to the Group, representing a decrease of 57%.

(c) Asset management

To cope with the development strategy of stepping into the
financial services market in Hong Kong, a newly acquired
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, namely China
Hong Kong Link Asset Management Limited (“CHKLAM"),
has successfully obtained a licence by Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong to carry out type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities on 16 February 2018. On 7
May 2018, CHKLAM also successfully obtained a licence by
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong to carry out
type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities.

Insurance brokerage

In August 2017, the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary, namely
People Insurance Broker Limited (“People Insurance”), is carrying
out insurance brokerage service in Hong Kong with the licence
to transact all types of general insurance business and long term
insurance business in Hong Kong. During the reporting period, the
insurance brokerage income was approximately HK$3,260,000 (2018:
HK$1,371,000) representing an increase of 138%.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECT

In 2019, the global economy is expected to recover slowly with the
economic environment still facing risks and challenges. As supply and
demand in the global oil market gets eased up, the international oil
price is likely to demonstrate a wide-ranging volatility and remains
uncertain to a large extent. China’s economy is expected to stay within
a reasonable ambit and the consumption demand for oil in China
maintains a growth momentum generally, with its reported steady
domestic growth rate of 6.4% in the first-quarter 2019. However, the
market is still dragged by the US-China trade war, the stable growth
of the economy depends on when the US-China trade war and the US
duty on imported Chinese goods will end.

China continues to promote the progress of marketization of the
financial systems. In 2019, the central government was determined
to stimulate the domestic economy and stock market. It aimed at
driving the economy, beginning with private enterprises, through a
series of measures such as financial easing, tax cuts, fee reductions
and streamlining administration. Hong Kong is sheltered by a number
of positive factors, such as the economic development of Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Bay Area comprising nine cities in the Pearl
River Delta together with Hong Kong and Macau is in the pipeline,
Hong Kong's leading position as an international financial centre
for providing professional consultancy, legal and financial services
will definitely be highlighted, and its economic growth will be fully
benefitted. In the meantime, the market anticipates that the central
government will launch more easing measures for stable growth so as
to motivate the growth of economic data and make a turnaround of
the negative market sentiment.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue and operating review

The Group recorded a consolidated revenue of approximately
HK$105,502,000 (2018: HK$5,536,378,000%), representing a
decrease of 98% from the year of 2018. The Group's loss for the
year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$402,302,000 (2018: HK$199,630,000). Basic loss per share of
HK$4.49 cents (2018: HK$2.63 cents). The decline of the Group's
results was mainly due to the decrease in trading profit in commodity
trading segment, allowance for credit losses on trade receivables,
impairment losses of assets relating to a PRC subsidiary and increase in
interest expenses on bonds.

v The Group has initially adopted HKFRS 15 at 1 April 2018. Under the transition
method chosen, comparative information is not restated.
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Allowance for credit losses on trade receivables

The Group's largest customer within the commodity trading segment
which has a significant outstanding trade receivable balance due to
the Group with gross carrying amount of HK$711,733,000 (2018:
HK$551,620,000) as at 31 March 2019 was assessed for allowance for
credit losses individually. The management assessed for the allowance
for credit losses by estimating default rate taking into account historical
and forward looking information. As at 31 March 2019, impairment
allowance of HK$218,000,000 (2018: HK$47,000,000) was made
on the trade receivable due from the Group's largest customer. In
addition, the trade receivable was guaranteed by personal guarantee
of the director of the Group’s largest customer since the guarantee
agreement entered into in September 2019. In this regards, the
directors of the Company are in the opinion that the provision of loss
allowance is sufficient and not excessive. Subsequent to 31 March
2019, with management’s follow up actions to chase the long-
outstanding receivable, trade receivable due from the Group's largest
customer with carrying amount of HK$523,291,000 has been settled
by the customer, representing 74% of the gross carrying amount of
trade receivables due from the customer as at 31 March 2019.

Impairment assessments on property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

During the year ended 31 March 2019, based on the impairment
assessments on oil properties and construction-in-progress and oil
exploitation licences relating to the crude oil segment, representing
an individual cash generating unit (“"CGU"), performed by the
management, the recoverable amount of the CGU is estimated to
be higher than the carrying amounts of these property, plant and
equipment and intangible asset. Accordingly, reversal of impairment
losses of approximately HK$9,827,000, HK$4,120,000 and
HK$64,598,000 are recognised for oil properties, construction-in-
progress under property, plant and equipment and oil exploitation
licenses under intangible assets respectively, on a pro rata basis with
reference to the carrying amount of these assets before impairment,
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: impairment loss of
approximately HK$42,706,000, HK$17,904,000 and HK$92,310,000
are recognised for oil properties, construction-in-progress under
property, plant and equipment and oil exploitation licenses under
intangible assets respectively).
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Loss of assets of a PRC subsidiary

During the year, the Group recognised the impairment losses on
prepayments paid to suppliers according to certain supply agreements
entered (”"Supply Agreements”) and full impairment loss of bank
balances (“Relevant Accounts”) of a PRC subsidiary amounting to
approximately HK$68,107,000 and HK$23,131,000 respectively.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 8
March 2019 and 28 June 2019 and Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements in relation to certain affairs of the PRC subsidiary,
the Board has subsequently taken the following remedy actions:

(i)  An independent review expert has been appointed by the Board
and has completed their review on the Relevant Accounts of and
the Supply Agreements to assist the Audit Committee and the
Company'’s advisers for understanding of the matters in relation
to the PRC Subsidiary;

(i)  The Board has engaged an independent PRC legal advisers to
review the Supply Agreements and assist the Group to recover
the prepayments and assist the liaise with the bank and to take
appropriate steps to unfreeze bank account; and

(iii)  The Board has in engaged an independent PRC legal advisers and
has been seeking advice from them to assess the feasibility to
report the suspected criminal offences pertaining to the Supply
Agreements and the Relevant Accounts to the PRC police.

Working capital

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's current assets were kept at
approximately HK$724,719,000 (2018: HK$1,126,094,000) whilst
current liabilities were approximately HK$169,022,000 (2018:
HK$158,993,000). The current ratio, being the proportion of
total current assets against current liabilities, was 4.3 (2018: 7.1).
The Directors consider that the present working capital level is
conservatively sufficient to meet the upcoming operating needs.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flows and facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong Kong
and in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR E SR

The Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$82,768,000 as at 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$348,923,000). The
Group had cash and bank balances which were mostly held in Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's outstanding bank borrowings
and bonds were approximately HK$32,182,000 (2018: 29,477,000)
and HK$684,552,000 (2018: HK$619,771,000) respectively,
while total assets were approximately HK$988,368,000 (2018:
HK$1,371,502,000).

The gearing ratio, calculated by dividing the total borrowings by the
total assets, was 73% as at 31 March 2019 (2018: 47%).

Pledged assets

As at 31 March 2019, the Group pledged the following assets to
secure the Group's trading facilities:

(1)  Corporate guarantee executed by the Company for an unlimited
amount (2018: same);

(2)  Investment properties with carrying values of HK$79,845,000
(2018: HK$103,887,000).

INFORMATION ON CRUDE OIL RESERVES AS
OF 31 MARCH 2019

During the reporting period, the management appointed APEX
Reservoir Service Inc. (“APEX") as independent professional technical
valuer (the “Technical Valuer”) to evaluate the estimated oil reserve
and recoverable amount of Qigihar oilfield for impairment assessment
purpose as of 31 March 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The reserves evaluation performed by APEX was conducted in
accordance with Petroleum Resources Management System (the
“PRMS"), an internationally recognised reserve standards and
guideline. The evaluation subject was petroleum asset (the "Asset”)
owned by the Company in Fulaerji Qilfield, including Fu 710, Fu
718 and Meilisi 723. The management of the Group has accepted
the newly calculated reserve and a set of technical and economic
parameters proposed by APEX (including discount rates, oil price
and cost projections, and oilfield development plan) as the basis for
recoverable amount calculations. According to the PRMS definition,
the oil reserve should be classified into Proved reserve (“P1"); Probable
reserve (“P2") and Possible reserve (“P3"). Based on management
internal assessment of reserve, the total 1P, 2P (“sum of P1 and P2")
and 3P (“sum of P1, P2 and P3") reserve of Qigihar oilfields as of 31
March 2019, are approximately 491,000 tons, 1,236,000 tons and
1,671,000 tons respectively.

EEENRR AN

BA I BT 07T B9 B =2 FTAS TO IR BE B R SR A A9 B
SEFRERESIABERERESE ([PRMS])
EIT A ERARATINENREMEESR
WEBREE ([BE])  BESE710-E718&
BEHT723 - AEBEEEBEENZHTED
EERMENEZEN —ARTROELE (2
FEPTIRE - BB &K AN T8 B DA Ko 5 2%
&) (ERFTE AT E & ZEA ELE - IRIRPRMS
EE ABRBEEIEATER=([P1]) 8
BfEE ([P2]) RATREREE ([P3]) - IRIBE
BAIFEF G EERRBEER=ZZ—N1
F=ZA=+—HMIP 2P ([P1K&P2Z A1) &
3P([P1P2RP3ZF)MBRHES RN A
491,000 - 1,236,00008 51,671,000

Report on crude oil reserve Fohf#ERE
Proved Probable Possible Total
reserve reserve reserve oil reserve
REME BMEHE THERE LRHBFE
('000 tons) (‘000 tons) (‘000 tons) (‘000 tons)
() (FmE) (Fmg) (Fm)

Crude oil reserve Fm#EE

As at 1 April 2017 RZZE—+tFWMA—H 546 824 664 2,034
Adjustment to estimation* HEFTERIE* (24) (35) (71) (130)
As at 31 March 2018 R-ZE-—N\F=A=+—H 522 789 593 1,904
Adjustment to estimation* HEFTARIE* 31 (44) (158) (233)
As at 31 March 2019 RZE—NF=ZA=+—H 491 745 435 1,671

During the year ended 31 March 2019, adjustments were made due to the change
in market condition (2018: due to the oil price depreciation and change of market
condition).

2 BEZ-NF=-A=+—RHLFE BETREL (=
F-N\F BAAHERTREETREM)EHAE-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEETWE D
Reserve evaluation criteria

The volumetric estimate method was used to calculate hydrocarbon in
place and then recover using the huff and puff recovery method and
oil reservoir fire-flooding thermal-ignition method. As at 31 March
2019, APEX has used the deterministic method (as opposed to the
probabilistic method) to calculate the reserves estimates, in which three
discrete scenarios were delineated to represent high, medium and low
cases.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at end of
the reporting year.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
AND INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s business transactions are mainly denominated in United
Stated dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Most of the Group's
bank borrowings are interest bearing at floating rate basis. The
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
The Group also uses derivative financial instruments to manage interest
rate exposures for hedging purpose only.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has an aggregate of 63 (2018: 76)
employees of which about 24 (2018: 23) were located in mainland
China while the rest were based in Hong Kong, Republic of Kazakhstan
and Macau. The employees’ remuneration package includes salary,
bonus and share options. Pursuant to the Group’s remuneration policy,
employees are rewarded on the basis of merit and market conditions
and in accordance with the statutory requirements of the respective
jurisdiction where the employees locate.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of any
dividend during the year (2018: Nil).
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Corporate Governance Report

This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents the corporate
governance matters during the year covering the financial year ended
31 March 2019 (“CG Period”) required to be disclosed under the Rules
Governing the Listing of the Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (“Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the corporate
governance codes of the Company.

During the CG Period, the Company has adopted and complied with
all the Code Provisions set out in the Code except for the deviations as
follows:

The Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) of the Company
are not appointed for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Company'’s Articles of Association.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company’s
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 March 2019, the Board comprised a total of nine Directors,
with four Executive Directors (“EDs”), two Non-executive Directors
(“NEDs”) and three INEDs. Two of the INEDs have appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting, or related professional
management expertise, which is required by the Listing Rules. During
the CG Period, eighteen regular Board meetings were held.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERWE

During the CG Period, the composition of the Board, and the

REXERME EFeNEARIESTZAL

respective attendances of the Directors are presented as follows: FIBRIT

Director Board Capacity Attendance
= Exa549 HE =
Mr. Huang Guobiao (appointed on 8 January 2019) ED & Chairman 3/3
ZEREE (RZTE-NAE—-AN\BEZEE) WITEEFRERE

Mr. Li Zhenjun (vacated on 14 March 2019) ED & Chairman 9/17
FREEE (RZZE-NF=ATHBEHHEE) WITEEHRER

Mr. Chen Yongsheng (appointed on 7 December 2018) ED & Chief Executive Officer 6/6
BROKELRE(RZE-—NFT_ALHEZHE) MITEERITRARR

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED & Vice Chairman 18/18
=EEREE HITEEREIEE

Mr. Poon Wai Kong (re-designated on 4 January 2019) NED 18/18
EERAEE (RZZE-NF-AWHBERE) FHMITES

Mr. Gan Xiaohua (appointed on 24 September 2018) ED 717
HRELEE (RZZE-N\FLA-THBEEZE) WITES

Mr. Wu Hao (appointed on 14 March 2019) NED 0/0
REFE(RZE-NF=ZATNBEEZE) EMITES

Mr. Wu Zhou (resigned on 7 December 2018) ED 5/12
IRMEE(RZE-N\F+ZALBEE) HMITES

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 13/18
FoR 181 BR 5 A B EMITES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 13/18
R EE B IFMITES

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 13/18
EERELE BIMIMITESE

REEERRE ARARERETT +NARE
2R3 ORE/REREENTBR
BRE WS SHmk/ LBRABEBR
REEH UARRBAERMRAR MEEES
EHEeRERSRARELRANARE LB
M- LABAEESHERERETRMAAZIZN
YRS

The Board held eighteen meetings during the CG Period to discuss
and/or approve the financial performance/results of the Group, report,
discuss and/or resolve for the ordinary business and operation matters,
and the corporate development and decisions. At least 14 days’ notice
is given for all regular Board meetings together with the meeting
agenda such that all Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t R = £ E AR AR
Annual Report 2018-19 —Z— \E—NFHFEHE



Corporate Governance Report

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective supervision over the
management. Daily operations and administration are delegated to the
management. During the CG Period, none of the Directors above has
or maintained any financial, business, family or other material/ relevant
relationship with any of the other Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are held separately by Mr. Huang Guobiao and Mr. Chen Yongsheng
respectively.

The separation of duties of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
ensures a clear distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility for
running the board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility for
running the Company's business. Details of the duties of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are available on the
Company's website.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
on 21 June 2013 and amended with effect from 1 January 2019. A
summary of this Policy, together with the measurable objectives set
for implementing this Policy, and the progress made towards achieving
those objectives are disclosed as below.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERME

SUMMARY OF THE POLICY

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. In designing the Board’'s composition,
the Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of services. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

IMPLEMENTATION

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition under major
diversified perspectives was summarised as follow:

BUREE

ARARREFEENREZTIERAXFHFEE
IBRERRERUREERNBERTR-
ARRERTEETERENERE  SHZE
TEEREREERBEZLL BREEATRRE
A Fik - XERBESR Bk FELHR-
e MBEREFEHR -EFGNMERES
MRAMES BRA WHEEZBAERATEIR
BERADBEREFTEKNEZTILMEER -

AFTERE

AENBE R - R ST(CBERERE
BIEETRNMER  Fik XERBEEER
ik BELR L MBRRBER - &
B ANENRERAIREESRENTRM
fEHIRTE ©

AT

RABRERH EFEETEZTILBEZE
PR LA :

Gender

R

Nationality
B%E

Age Group
FheiR

Year of Services 0-10

60-64 65-69 70-74

1 2 3 4 5 6 v/ 8 9

Number of Directors =& H

AR5 4 HA

o
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was formed on 21 March 2005 and has
adopted specific written terms of reference in accordance with the
provisions set out in the Code which are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The role and function of the
Remuneration Committee includes:

o to make recommendations to the board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.

° to review and approve senior management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

o to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.

o to consider salaries paid by comparable companies with
reference to time commitments and responsibilities and
employment terms and conditions for overseas staff.

o to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

o to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate.

. to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors.

SREARE

rMEES

¥NEEeR _ETREF=_A_t+—BK"
B AR 1% 5T B P 8 A9 5 SCER AR E B T R
(AIRBRFARARRMEUER) -HFME
BgmAaekBERE:

«  RARARBEERBAEEABNOF
BER R KRR ERERAEN
ERRFHTFMERE AEESRY
e

s REEFSMIICENIRBFEMR
R EBREE A BNFBEZ -

s MEFERFIMHATEZERSAE
BABNMFMEE WEETEIFSE
Ma BRARSEIILBEESE (2HER
R LB IS RE M E & (TR

&) -

. ERALBATDIANFH 2285
B T 0B R R B R 1R R IR
et o

«  RARBARNNTEEREREEAR
BELEE K LK U B B A
BB 18 - DA TR 225 B 1 R A K —
BB R ERA K BER— B B EE
ATLE THBES -

o R RHMEREETRAEMBERENE
PEREEMERNBEERS LR
ZELTHRAOFER B BRERS
WEFR—2 EHEETAEREEE -

s NFNTEFEHNFHAEFSRLEZ

2y
A ©

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited Z @R E S EGR A A

Annual Report 2018-19 —Z—N\E—NFFERE

43



Corporate Governance Report

TEERWE

. to ensure that no director or any of his or her associates is BREMES S EEMABHEATSRA
involved in deciding his own remuneration. EBEAERSHEH-

o to consult the chairman and/or the chief executive about e TNEE SR EMMITEENEINE

remuneration proposals of the Remuneration Committee for E%a’éa’]If’&/iE THRAB-nE
other executive directors. The Remuneration Committee should FE - TNEEQRASRETEEE
have access to independent professional advice if necessary. R

During the CG Period, the Remuneration Committee held six physical ~R{EEEAHRE FHEE € EE L8217
meetings. The composition of the Remuneration Committee and the A& -HMEESMERNEEEK
respective attendances of the committee members are presented as  HE BRI

follows:

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
RE ZEE5H R R
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu Chairman of the committee 6/6
EERRLE ZEEXR

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 6/6
PR a1 BR S A BMIHITES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 6/6
R E L BN EMITES

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung (resigned on 28 January 2019) ED & Vice Chairman 5/5
BEREE (RZE-NAF-—AZTN\HEE) WITEERE T

Mr. Chen Yongsheng (appointed on 8 January 2019) ED & Chief Executive Director 2/2
BRKEXE(RZE-—NF-RANBEZEE) MITE R RITAER

Mr. Huang Guobiao (appointed on 28 January 2019) ED & Chairman 171
BEREE (RZZ-—NF-AZTN\BEZE) WITEEHRER

During the CG Period, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee is R {>ZEES HHF' HTHEESTFEAERIZ.
Mr. Chiu Wai Pui and he was appointed as the chairman on 26 March 4 FBR-_Z— \F=ZA -+ ~BEZITAEE
2018. &

The summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee ~ REIEMKFEE HrMEE @HITH TIEHE
for the financial year under review included: B

fon 5 BB R BN ORI E AZ

o to review the current remuneration policies and appraisal system;

. to recommend to the Board the director’s fee for the year ended MEEEEREBE-_FT—NLF=A
31 March 2019; and =T HLIEFEZEEFHBE R

e to consider and approve the remuneration of the directors and e EEMMEEERSREERE 2 -
senior management.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors for
the financial year under review is set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The share options granted to/or entitled by the Directors during
the financial year under review are inscribed in the section headed
“Directors’

Interests in Equity or Debt Securities” of the Directors’

Report.

DIRECTORS' TRAINING

Pursuant to CG Code Provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in
the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company'’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board.

requirements as well as

The Company also continuously updates Directors on the latest
amendments of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure their compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance
notes are also issued to Directors where appropriate to ensure their

awareness of best corporate governance practices.

The Directors are continually updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate them to discharge
their responsibilities. If necessary ad hoc seminars and training
programs are to be arranged for Directors. Directors also participate in
courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director or further enhancement of their professional development by
way of attending training courses or via online aids or reading relevant

materials.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umlted RER=

AU fbe S

fl= /|:13FE(|:|

EEHYFr A

DEMBEE BN/ HENEMLESN
%%EM%X MR B M BRI -

REEFBEE EFRR REENBERE
REZERE [EFNRAHEBEE SR
—ER R -

E5%5

RBOXREATARXFEAGSKE MEES

A2 R EHEER  ARRRE M
KR - B EREHAMIE S MR AR

BETHRABARREBNRE ERREE
RESTHNRNEE WEHAELHARE
ENAE  BEE R BE R R

MEERERERR—OABRTH EhE3
BRARMERE EMRVNRE  URESRE
BTEERBRBTNIED] & T MINE e2E A
RARMTENPBEREAREESRB
EEEREMRIN -

ARBMFEAEETEH LR REAME
EERENRIER  UHERESEE R RIR
AREHRFERE AT RARE - ARRITF
SHEAERBATAESH D BRKEIES] AR
RERETHEECEERTR-

EEeRBERMEAEREENENRERR
B UARERSERITBE RNUERBARES
ZH BB g RIEIEE - EF T2 HEH
MAREENAC BERBENRE X
A2 MFIREF N EBA LEHEH T Ak
MEREME  E—SRAEEEERE-

EEMERRAT

Annual Report 2018-19 —Z—N\E—NFFERE

45



46

Corporate Governance Report

TEERWE

All Directors have participated in relevant trainings and have provided
the relevant records to the Company. Through participations in those
training courses, Directors have been able to improve and update their
knowledge and skills.

Company Secretary’s Training

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Company Secretary must
take no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year. The Company Secretary provided his training records to
the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending in-house briefings, attending
seminars and reading relevant guideline materials for the financial year
ended 31 March 2019.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the reporting
period.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S REMUNERATION

For the CG Period, the remuneration of the members of the senior
management excluding directors by band is set out below:

AU fbe S

fl= /El#&l:l

JE 2 %7 B

EVRHIE REFEUINZ SREEEK
FNsEHIMT

SREE
s

i
gz

Number of individuals

Remuneration band e E A8
HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 7B #8500,001 7T 2 78 #1,000,0007T 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 75 #51,000,001 7T &8 #1,500,0007T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 7 #51,500,001 7 278 #2,000,0007T 1

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
three were Directors of the Company. Further particulars regarding the
remaining two individuals with the highest emoluments as required to
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee was formed on 26 November 2011
and has adopted specific written terms of reference (re-adopted by
the Board with effect from 1 January 2019) in accordance with the
provisions set out in the Code which are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination Committee
was appointed by the Board and consists of three non-executive
directors and two executive director of the Company. The meetings
and proceedings are governed by the provisions contained in the
articles of association of the Company for regulating meetings and
proceedings of the Directors. The role and function of the Nomination
Committee include:

o To review the performance of the Board and ensure that the
Board and its committees consist of Directors with appropriate
balance of skills, diversity and knowledge of the Company to
enable that the Board is able to function.

J To assist the board in its succession planning for the board and
senior management.
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To review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. When
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the board, the
Committee shall take into consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience in accordance with the
board diversity policy adopted by the Company from time to time
to achieve Board diversity.

To draw up, review and update, as appropriate, the diversity
policy for the Board’'s approval making due regard to the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and to review and
update the objectives that the Board has set for implementing
such policy.

To develop, review and implement, as appropriate, the policy,
criteria and procedures for the identification, selection and
nomination of candidates for directors for the board’s approval.
Such criteria include but are not limited to the potential
contributions a candidate can bring to the board in terms of
qualifications, skills, experience, independence and gender
diversity.

To identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.

To assess the suitability of independent non-executive directors,
including but not limited to the individual’s independence,
whether the individual would be able to devote sufficient time
to the board having considered whether he/she is holding his/her
seventh (or more) listed company directorship, the perspectives,
skills and experience that the individual can bring to the Board,
and how the individual contributes to the diversity of the Board.
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To make recommendations to the board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for Directors
and senior management, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive, taking into account all factors which the Committee
considers appropriate including the challenges and opportunities
facing the Company and skills and expertise required in the
future and ensure that senior management succession planning
is discussed at the board at least once annually.

To ensure the Company's awareness of the importance of
leadership skills and its programs in providing leadership training
in order to enhance the competitiveness of the Company and to
ensure the Company's future succession.

To evaluate the needs for, and monitor the training and
development of, Directors.

To develop procedures for the performance evaluation of the
board committees:

(i) review and assess the skills, knowledge and experience
required to serve on various board committees, and make
recommendations on the appointment of members of
board committees and the chairman of each committee;

(i)  recommend candidates to the Board to fill vacancies or
new positions on the Board committees as necessary or

desirable;

(iii)  review feedback on the role and effectiveness of the board
committees and make recommendations for any changes.

To consider other matters as defined by the board.
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The selection criteria for Directors are comprise the candidate's
experience in business relevant to the Company or in corporate
management, or in relevant profession and must be able to contribute
effectively to achieve the objectives of the Company. Any committee
member may propose suitable candidates for directorship for
discussion and approval by the Nomination Committee, after which the
Board will consider and, if appropriate, approve such nomination.

For the CG Period, the Nomination Committee had held seven physical
meetings for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on appointment and re-appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors.

During the CG Period, composition of the Nomination Committee and
the respective attendances of the committee members are presented as

EEREANHESLEBEBREANAR

MABEBREEE ﬁiﬁﬁ%?%%ﬁg

BH&R RUARS ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ@i

B EMEZEEKNBHAREEEAR A

REZEGIWMEEL BHiZ- i%A%%F
K (@ E ) R IBERE

REEERME REZESER BT T
ﬁ?% EEREENEREFAESTIRH
BARZE L IFRTESMIBILIM -

REXEERME RAZEENEKREZES
RBEBHFEERIT

follows:

Member Committee Capacity Attendance

4= ZE85H HE=

Mr. Huang Guobiao Chairman of the committee, 171
(appointed on 28 January 2019) ED & Chairman

HEIESLE A ZERERE BUFNTEEHREIRE

(RZZE—NF—-AZTN\BEEE)

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 717

REBEE BYFERITES

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 717

PR 481 BR 5 A BYFRITES

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 717

EERERLE BYFRITES

Mr. Li Zhenjun ED & Chairman 0/6
(vacated on 14 March 2019)

FIRE L4 HITEERERE
(RZZ—NF=A+MHA BB

Mr. Chen Yongsheng ED & Chief Executive Officer 2/2

(appointed on 8 January 2018)
BRoK & 5 &
(R=ZE-—NE—-AN\BEZE)

MITEERITHAR

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Huang Guobiao and
he was appointed as the chairman on 28 January 2019.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has adopted specific written terms of reference
(re-adopted by the Board with effect from 1 January 2019) in
accordance with the provisions set out in the Code which are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The principal
duties of the Audit Committee include:

o to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

J to review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences and
ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

o to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to provide non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
auditor” includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity
that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee should
report to the board, identifying and making recommendations on
any matters where action or improvement is needed;

o to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them. In reviewing these
reports before submission to the board, the Audit Committee
should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(iii)  significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and qualifications;
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(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and;

(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in
relation to financial reporting;

Regarding above:—

(i)  members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management and the Audit Committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditors; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in
the report and accounts, it should give due consideration
to any matters that have been raised by the Company’s
staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditors;

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless expressly
addressed by a separate board risk committee, or by the board
itself, to review the Company's risk management and internal
control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should include
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the board or on its own
initiative and management'’s response to these findings;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and
final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to discuss (in
the absence of management where necessary);

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of controls and
management'’s response;
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o to review the Company’s statement on risk management and
internal control systems (where one is included in the annual
report) prior to endorsement by the board;

o where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

o to ensure that the board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

o to report to the board on the matters in provision of terms of
reference of the Audit Committee;

o to review the group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

o to review arrangements by which employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The Audit Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation
of these matters and for appropriate follow-up action; and

o to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company'’s relations with the external auditor.

The Audit Committee meet at least twice each year. During the CG
Period, the Audit Committee met two times for discussing and/
or approving the periodic financial results of the Group, discussing
the auditor’s performance, reviewing the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function and their training
programmes and budgets.
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During the CG Period, the composition of the Audit Committee and
the respective attendances of the committee members are presented as

REXERME ERREendKREZEE

REBEBHFEBERIT

follows:

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
24=1 ZE85% HE=R
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Chairman of the committee 2/2
PeR At BR 5 A= ZEEXF

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 2/2
REBEAE B FNITES

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 2/2
EEREE BYIERNITESF

Mr. Wu Hao (appointed on 14 March 2019) NED 0/0
ﬁ?%i

(RZEB-hF=ZATHOEEZT) FRITES

The chairman of the Audit Committee since its establishment has been
Mr. Chan Shu Kin.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The analysis of the Auditor's remuneration for the CG Period is
presented as follows:

HEZZBENUE HEXFEARERLE-

(HK$'000)
Fee amount A (A% FT)
Audit Service Z B AR 2,000
Non-audit services IERZBRTES 11
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE TXEREES
The Corporate Governance Committee of the Company was formed AAFTZPEEARZTEEN T ——F+—
on 26 November 2011 and has adopted specific written terms of A =+ 7S BAKI - I B R 3% 5F Bl BT 8 49 1§ 32
reference in accordance with the provisions set out in the Code which M EEZEBESLE (AR ARFHHE
are available on the website of the Company. The role and function of ) -t EEARZEEeMACKBE B

the Corporate Governance Committee include:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continual professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

Directors;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and

disclosure in the corporate governance report;

o to review the Company’s risk management and internal control

PAETRT R

fl= /|:13FE(|:|

. BT RERARNREETEEZREER
TFHEMNBREER:

o HE RAKEBEAREEREEW
BTEARERFM(BE)

o BIARRESTAMBERER
SAMEAEHIE:

pme

. i Ef AR R A E L B R e BB AR Y &

systems. Fi

For the CG Period, the Corporate Governance Committee held two  ROZEEAHE  CEEARLTESER L8217
physical meeting. The composition of the Corporate Governance TRA@Z EBALRZESNHEKRLEZES
Committee and the respective attendances of the committee members KEZBAHFEBEREFIT ¢
are presented as follows:
Member Committee Capacity Attendance
24- ZEE5H HE =
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung Chairman of the committee 2/2
REB LA ZEGXRE
Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 2/2
PR A8t B2 5 A B IEAITES
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 2/2
EEEAAE BYUIENITES
Mr. Poon Wai Kong NED 2/2

(resigned on 4 January 2019)
EBEBISEE (RZTE—NF-ANBEE) FERTES
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED & Vice Chairman 2/2
mEIR A WMITEEREI R
Mr. Huang Guobiao ED & Chairman 0/0

(appointed on 28 January 2019)
BEREEEE
(R=ZF-NF-A=-+NBEZE)
Mr. Chen Yongsheng
(appointed on 24 September 2018)
BRoK &
(RZEBE-NFAA-_+HBAEEE)

HITEERER

ED & Chief Executive Officer

MITESRITRAE
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The chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee is Mr. Cheung
Kwan Hung and he was appointed on 26 March 2018.

The summary of the work performed by the Corporate Governance
Committee for the CG Period included:

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Code

o to review the training and continual professional development of
Directors and senior management

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the management of the
Group and is collectively responsible to ensure sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal
control systems are designed for managing risk rather than eliminating
the risk of failure to achieve business objective, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss or fraud.

The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with the responsibility
to oversee the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group on an on-going basis and to review the effectiveness of the
systems annually. The review covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Management recognizes its responsibility to ensure the Company
maintains a sound and effective risk management and internal
control system. The Group’s internal control system is designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal,
complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained
in accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group'’s
performance are appropriately identified and managed. Review of
the Group's internal controls covering major financial, operational

relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and

and compliance controls, as well as risk management functions. The
internal control system can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss or fraud, as they are
designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.
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Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Group's risk management framework includes risk identification,
risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring and reviewing of the
effectiveness of the measures. This risk management framework is
guided by the three-tier risk management approach. At the first line
of defense, business units are responsible for identifying, assessing
and monitoring risks associated with each business or deal. The
management, as the second line of defense, defines rule sets and
models, provides technical support, develops new systems and oversees
portfolio management. It ensures that risks are within the acceptable
range and that the first line of defense is effective. As the final line of
defense, the audit committee of the Company, with the professional
advices and opinions from the external professional consultant by
whom internal audit work of the Group was conducted on annual
basis, ensures that the first and second lines of defense are effective
through constant inspection and monitoring.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

Risk management process is integrated with the internal control
system, so that the Group’s ability to handle risks that hinder the
achievement of financial, operational and compliance goals is
strengthened and the allocation of resources on control measures
against specific or high risks areas is more adequate.

The key elements of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk portfolio to
monitor, evaluate and assess the identified risks. The Group updates
the responsive mitigation procedures to ensure their effectiveness on
an ongoing basis. In addition, a risk matrix approach is adopted to
determine risk rating after evaluation of the risk in accordance to the
impact and likelihood of the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the level
of management’s attention and risk responses.
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Process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The Group develops a preliminary inventory of events that could
impact the achievement of the Group's business objectives. The events
identified were inventoried and translated into opportunities or risks.
The Group identifies outside and inside events by reviewing its external
and internal environment and stakeholders, which have an influence
or potential influence on the Group’s ability to achieve its strategy
and business objectives. Furthermore, the operating units and support
functions report any risk events and incidents found in a timely manner
to the management.

The risks identified are evaluated with a risk matrix which prioritises
risks according to the likelihood of their occurrence and the
significance of their impact on the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives. Following the review of the risk matrix, the Group
selects and deploys the corresponding risk responses and investigates
the mitigation procedures to be executed to ensure the identified
significant risks were managed to an acceptable level. The Group
monitors substantial change which may lead to new or changed risks
to ensure the risk responses are operated effectively.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed
annually to ensure appropriateness and effectiveness. With the
establishment of an independent internal audit function, the financial
condition, operational control and compliance control are examined
and reviewed according to the risk based audit plan. Different audit
areas are assigned according to risk priority.

The Group’s Internal Audit Department plays an important role
in the internal control function. It provides objective assurance to
the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and
operated in compliance with the established processes and standards
by performing periodic audits over all major operations of the Group,
typically over a three year cycle. An annual audit plan (comprising
annual audit focus and audit frequencies) is prepared based on
the development’s independent risk assessment. Such work plan is
discussed and agreed with the Audit Committee at the beginning of
each financial year. Major internal audit findings will be submitted
to the Audit Committee for review and all recommendations from
the Internal Audit Department will be properly followed up to ensure
that they are implemented within a reasonable period of time. The
Directors have received the report from the Internal Audit Department
which conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Group.
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During the period under review, certain deficiencies were found in the
Group'’s internal control system resulted in loss of certain assets. Those
deficiencies related partly to the design of the system; but, to a larger
extent, related to subsequent execution and compliance procedures.
In response to those issues, the Audit Committee and the Board took
remedy action by mandating an external consultancy firm to conduct a
thorough review of the Group’s internal control system. The Board has
accepted all recommendations proposed by the external consultancy
firm and the Audit Committee is satisfied that appropriate measures
have been undertaken to rectify the situation and will continue to keep
monitoring the efficiency of the internal control system.

Inside Information Policy

To handle and disclose inside information under the Listing Rules
and SFO, the Group has established a policy which contains a strict
prohibition on unauthorised use of inside information. Such policy is
set out inside the staff manual and all staff is required to comply. In
addition, each personnel are granted a specific access right to the price
sensitive and inside information. The Directors, senior management
and employees are informed with the latest regulatory updates. For
the year ended 31 March 2019, inside information was disseminated in
accordance with the inside information policy and the applicable laws
and regulations.

Review of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Functions

The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function, their training programmes
and budget, and was satisfied with the results of the review.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy
reflecting the current practices of the Company for communication
with its shareholders, which is available on the website of the
Company.
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The general meeting of the Company provides a platform for

shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The attendance of

each Director at the general meetings of the Company held during the

CG Period is set out as follows:

ARRZBERRER/EREHBEETGIN
BRAZFE -BEFHENEREAMEST
ZARRBERRE 2HFEBEREINAT

Director Board Capacity Attendance
5= EEg54 HE=
Mr. Huang Guobiao ED & Chairman N/A
(appointed on 8 January 2019)
HEESLA WITEERERE 5 A
(RZZE—NF—ANBEZEHT)
Mr. Li Zhenjun ED & Chairman N/A
(vacated on 14 March 2019)
FIREEE MITEERER i@
(RZZ—NEF=A+HA R
Mr. Chen Yongsheng ED & Chief Executive Officer N/A
(appointed on 7 December 2018)
BER i A 5 A MITE R RITRAER TEA
(RZE-—NE+_A+BEZEE)
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED & Vice Chairman N/A
BEER %S WITEEREIEE i@ A
Mr. Wu Zhou ED N/A
(resigned on 7 December 2018)
RN HE WITES NEA
(RZE-—NEFE+ZRA+RHEE)
Mr. Gan Xiaohua ED N/A
(appointed on 24 September 2018)
HBESE WITES 5 A
(RZZE—NFLAZTHBEEZE)
Mr. Poon Wai Kong NED N/A
(re-designated on 4 January 2019)
EE M5 & FERITES i@ B
(RZZE—-NF—-AMNBEHRT)
Mr. Wu Hao NED N/A
(appointed on 14 March 2019)
RELSE EMITES EA
(RZZE-NEF=ZRA+HBEEZMF)
Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED N/A
PR 181 BR 5 A BYUFNITES i@ A
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED N/A
SR $998 5T A B IFERITESF TEA
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED N/A
EEREEE BYIENITES TE A
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting ("EGM")

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call an EGM. Any one or more
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association of the
Company or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures
for shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings other
than a proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an EGM for any
business specified in such written requisition.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting, unless notice signed by a Member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his/her intention
to propose such person for election as a Director and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be
elected shall have been given to the Company or lodged at the head
office or at the Registration Office provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such notices are given, shall be at least
7 days. The period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the
date of such meeting.

A shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring director
or recommended by the Directors for election as a Director by validly
lodging the following documents within the period hereinafter
mentioned at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at 21st Floor, 80 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

1. a notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director, which must state the full name of the
person, include the person’s biographical details as required
by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and be signed by the
shareholder; and

2. anotice in writing signed by that person of his/her willingness to
be elected as a director together with his written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.

Such documents shall be lodged with the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong within the period of 7 days after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting. Upon receipt of such documents,
the Company shall verify the documents and, if the proposal is found
to be in order, publish an announcement and/or issue a supplemental
circular in respect of the proposal in accordance with Rule 13.70 of the
Listing Rules.
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In the case of any general meeting called by at least 10 clear business
days’ or 14 days’ (whichever is the longer) notice in writing, such
documents lodged within the aforesaid period may be received less
than 10 business days prior to the general meeting, the Company
will consider the adjournment of the general meeting in order to
give shareholders at least 10 business days to consider the relevant
information disclosed in the announcement or supplemental circular.

The aforesaid procedures are available on the Company's website.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company.
The contact details are as follows:

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
21st Floor,

80 Gloucester Road,

Wan Chai,

Hong Kong

Attn: Company Secretary

Email: enquiries@trcf.com.hk
Tel No.: 852-2698 6093
Fax No.: 852-3580 7793

Constitutional Documents

During the CG Period, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Acknowledgement of Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial statements
for the financial year under review, the Directors have:

o based on a going concern basis;

o selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

o made judgments and estimates that were prudent, fair and
reasonable.

The statement of the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in detail in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 87 to 99.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Guobiao
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 8 November 2019
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The Directors submit their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHIC
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year by business and geographical segments is set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion
on the Group's prospects are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 7 to 9 and
pages 29 to 38 of the Annual Report respectively. Description of key
risk factors and uncertainties that the Group is facing are provided in
the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 29 to 38 of the
Annual Report while the financial risk management of the Group is
discussed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to support the environmental sustainability.
Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected by our
continuous efforts in promoting green measures and awareness in
our daily business operations. The Group encourages environmental
protection and promotes awareness towards environmental protection
to the employees. The Group adheres to the principle of recycling and
reducing. It implements green office practices such as double-sided
printing and copying, promoting using recycled paper and reducing
energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliances. The Group will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of the Group’s businesses to move
towards adhering the 3Rs — Reduce, Recycle and Reuse and enhance
environmental sustainability.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company was not aware of
any non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets. Thus
the Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract and
motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration
package of employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to
the market standard. The Group also understands that it is important
to maintain good relationship with business partners and bank
enterprises to achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, our senior
management have kept good communication, promptly exchanged
ideas and shared business updates with them when appropriate.
During the year under review, there was no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its business partners or bank
enterprises.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 100. No interim dividend was paid or
declared in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil). The
Board recommends/does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).
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SHARES ISSUED AND USE OF NET PROCEED

Details of movements in shares issued for the year ended 31 March
2019 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
During the reporting period, the Company did not issue any new
shares.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of principal properties held for development and/or sale and for
investment purposes are set out in page 246 of the Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2019, calculated
under Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)
amounted to approximately HK$54,358,000, representing the amount
standing to the credit of the share premium amount after deduction of
accumulated losses. Under section 34 of the Companies Law (Revised)
of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available for distribution
to shareholders subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association
of the Company, and no distribution may be paid to shareholders out
of the Company’s share premium unless the Company shall be able to
pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in Five Years Financial Summary
on pages 247 to 248 of the Annual Report.
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ESERE

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries, purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the securities of the Company during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 June 2013, the
shareholders of the Company adopted the new share option scheme
(the "“Share Option Scheme”) which enabled the grant of options to
subscribe up to 460,062,382 shares, representing 10% of the issued
shares of the Company as at the said date.

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to acknowledge the contributions made or to be made
by participants to the Group. The Board of Directors may, at its
discretion, offer employees, contracted celebrity, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint venture partner
of the Company and its subsidiaries (including any director of the
Group), the grant of options to subscribe for shares of the Company.
Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 March 2019, the total number of shares available for issue
pursuant to the exercise of all options granted and to be granted
under the Share Options Scheme was 244,762,382 shares (including
share option that have been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised),
representing about 2.72% of the issued share capital of the Company.
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, 212,300,000 share
options has been lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. The
Directors will have the absolute discretion to fix the minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised, and the
performance targets that must be achieved before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the
Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares,
(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in daily
guotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) for the five consecutive trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option and (iii) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of offer of the option (which must be a trading day).

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of such
period to be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
notified to the grantee. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
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Details of the share option outstanding at 31 March 2019 which have

been granted under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

RIZB-NF=A=+—8 REBLETS
B2 HARITERBREFENT

Number of options Price of Company's shares
BREHA ERARBER
Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Exercise As at during during during As at For For
price 1 April the the the 31 March Options Options
Participants Date of grant per share  Exercise period 2018 period period period 2019 granted  exercised
R
R Zg2-NF
ZE-N\F =B=t-8 2R g
28% RERH BROEE ATES BA-B  REARE REAGE REAXN HALTE BRE BRE
HKS '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 HKS HK$
A% FH FH FH TH T % A%
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(i) (Hit2)
Executive Directors
ki £
Mr. Li Zhenjun 22 April 2016 0.193 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 5,000 - - (5,000) - - -
TRERL i St ey = 2 ETA-tzRE
“F-\§MAZ+-A
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung 22 April 2016 0.193 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 50,000 - - (50,000) - - -
BER%A “F-EMAZTZR ZE-ETA-tzRE
ZE-\fmAZt-B
Mr. Poon Wai Kong 22 April 2016 0.193 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 25,000 - - (25,000) - - -
ERALE “F-FMAZTZR “E-ETA-tzRE
“2-\fEA-t+-A
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTES
Mr. Chan Shu Kin 22 April 2016 0.193 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 3,500 - - (3,500) - - -
RE254 Z2-7FBAZTZR Z2-R"FTAZTZBE
“2-\fmA-t-H
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung 22 April 2016 0.193 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 3,500 - - (3,500) - - -
TR 2 EmAZTIA R ETAZTIRE
“2-\§mA-t-A
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu 22 April 2016 0.193 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 3,500 - - (3,500) - - -
ERBRE Z2-AFBAZTZR Z2-RFTAZTZBE
“2-\fmA-t-A
Employees
]
In aggregate 22 April 2016 0.193 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 71,800 - - (71,800) - - -
aif “2-¥mAZTZA Z2-R"ETAZTZEE
“2-\¥MAZt+-A
Other participants
RftgRE
In aggregate 22 April 2016 0.193 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 50,000 - - (50,000) - - -
it ZT-7FMAZtZA Z2-RETAZTZBE
“2-\fMA=t+-H
Total 212,300 (212,300)
it
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Notes:

1. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for options granted is the closing price
of the shares immediately before the date on which the options were granted.

2. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for options exercised is the weighted
average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were exercised.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or their spouse
or children under the age of 18, had been granted any right to
subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any of
its associated corporations, or had exercised any such right during the
year.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

On 16 October 2008, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme
in which selected employees of the Group, including without limitation
any Executive and Non-executive Director, officer, agent or consultant
(with payroll) of the Group, are entitled to participate in the Share
Award Scheme pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme. The
purposes and objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to recognize
the contributions by certain employees and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.
The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a selected
employee under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date. The
nominal value of the shares awarded by the Board under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the adoption date.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, no share was purchased for the
Share Award Scheme. There were no awarded shares granted forfeited,
vested or outstanding during the period.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Li Zhenjun

(vacated on 14 March 2019)
Mr. Huang Guobiao

(appointed on 8 January 2019)
Mr. Chen Yongsheng

(appointed on 7 December 2018)
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung
Mr. Gan Xiaohua

(appointed on 24 September 2018)
Mr. Poon Wai Kong
Mr. Wu Hao

(appointed on 14 March 2019)
Mr. Hu Dehua

(resigned on 15 February 2018)
Mr. Wu Zhou

(appointed on 26 March 2018 and resigned on 7 December 2018)
Mr. Chan Shu Kin'
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung'
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu’

L Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Huang Guobiao, Mr. Chen Yongsheng, Mr. Gan
Xiaohua and Mr. Wu Hao shall retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and in accordance with Article 87(1) of the
Articles of Association, Mr. Wong Kwok Leung, Mr. Chan Shu Kin and
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All retiring Directors, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a Director
of the Company and the Director's connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Guobiao, aged 40, was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company with effect from 8 January 2019 and was appointed
as chairman of the Board with effect from 28 January 2019. Mr.
Huang has extensive experience in the medicine industry. From 2005
to 2009, Mr. Huang worked at %3R4 AR QA RIFEFES A
7] (Guoyao Holding Hubei Co. Ltd. New Special Medicine Branch), a
company principally engaged in the trading of medicine and medical
appliance, as the general manager, responsible for the overall business
operation. From 2005 to 2016, Mr. Huang worked at 1t ¥ X £ &
ERF R A F (Hubei Xinwenxing Medical Technology Co. Ltd.*), a
company principally engaged in medical research and development,
and investment in medical projects and companies engaged in medical
market research, as the general manager, responsible for the overall
business operation. Mr. Huang currently works at #it A@HT X2 &
#B PR /A 7] (Hubei Renfu Xinwenxing Medicine Co. Ltd.*), a company
principally engaged in the wholesale and research of medicine, as the
general manager, responsible for the overall business operation.
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Mr. Huang was the legal representative and an executive director of
RNZEMXEEMEEFMAR AT (Wuhen Xinwenxing Biological
Medical Technology Co. Ltd.¥) which was a company established in
the PRC principally engaged in the research of biological and medical
appliances and consultancy services, and was deregistered in November
2016 by its members due to the cessation of business. Mr. Huang was
the general manager of H )& Jk$& % %5 255 R 2 7] (Wuhen Zhaofeng
Medicine Development Co. Ltd.#) which was a company established
in the PRC principally engaged in the research and development of
medical appliances and healthcare products and consultancy services,
and was struck off in July 2005 due to its failure to comply with
annual inspection requirements. Mr. Huang confirmed that there is no
wrongful act on his part leading to the above dissolution of companies
and that he is not aware of any actual or potential claim has been
or will be made against him as a result of the dissolution of such
companies.

Mr. Chen Yongsheng, aged 39, was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 7 December 2018 and was appointed
as Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 28 January
2019. Mr. Chen graduated from Nanyang Technological University, the
Republic of Singapore, in 2004, with a bachelor degree of engineering
(electrical & electronic engineering) and from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology, Hong Kong, in 2010, with a master degree
in business administration. Mr. Chen passed the £ & A B & KZE
& (fund management practitioner’s qualification examination®) of
BHFEFICEESEME (Asset Management Association of China¥)
in 2017. He was a licensed representative for type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) until March 2016.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen has over 15 years experience in
capital markets and the financial services field. From 2004 to 2006,
Mr. Chen worked at Citicorp Investment Bank (S) Ltd., a company
principally engaged in assets management and investment banking.
From 2006 to 2008, Mr. Chen worked at Stirling Coleman Capital
Limited, a company principally engaged in investment banking. From
2010 to 2012, Mr. Chen worked at CIAM Group Limited, being
a subsidiary of CITIC International Assets Management Limited, a
company principally engaged in investment and assets management.
From 2013 to 2016, Mr. Chen worked at Quam Capital Limited, a
company principally engaged in the provision of financial services, with
his last position as a director.
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Mr. Gan Xiaohua, aged 46, was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 24 September 2018. Mr. Gan graduated
from the Zhejiang University (J#)T K2) , the People’s Republic of
China in 1994 with a bachelor degree in computer technology and
application. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Gan worked in Hangzhou
Rongbang Investment Management Company Limited® (#71 /| @ 36
WEEEAR AT, a company principally engaged in investment
management and consultation services, as a director and the general
manager from 2008 to 2014; in Hangzhou Guangda Equity Investment
Fund Management Company Limited” (#1/ X AR EESERSE
[R7A®]), a company principally engaged in investment management
and consultation services, as the general manager from 2014 to 2016;
and in China EBest Holding Group Co., Limited (A B3¢ i ik & &
BBRA7F]) a company principally engaged in computer information
technology services, as the chairman from 2016 to 2018. Mr. Gan
is currently the chairman of Zhejiang EBest Investment Management
Co., Limited* (I K TR EEIRBRAF]), a company principally
engaged in investment management and consultation services,
since December 2017 and the chairman of Zhejiang EBest Gold Co.,
Limited* (AT T LESBRAA]), a company principally engaged in
the design and sale of jewellery, since January 2018.

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung, aged 61, is an Executive Director. He was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer during the period from 1 April
2012 to 28 January 2019. He was appointed as the vice chairman of
the Board with effect from 28 January 2019. He is responsible for the
Group’s daily operations, administration and production management
of the Group's subsidiary in the PRC. He obtained the qualification
of LCC-Higher Accounting from London Chamber of Commerce and
diploma of supervisory studies from Hong Kong Productivity Council.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked in the field of finance and
accounting for over 17 years and has obtained extensive knowledge
therein. He joined the Group in September 1997.

# The English translation of the Chinese names(s), where indicated, are included for
information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official English name(s)
of such Chinese names.
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Non-Executive Director

Mr. Poon Wai Kong, aged 47, is an Non-Executive Director. He
is a member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Certified Practising Accountant of Australia and
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He also holds a Master
degree in Business Administration and a Master degree in Professional
Accounting and Corporate Governance from the City University
of Hong Kong, a Master degree in Practising Accounting from the
Monash University, Australia and a Bachelor degree in Economics from
the University of London, United Kingdom. He has more than 28 years’
experience in accounting and financial field. He joined the Group in
September 2005. He was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 21 March 2006 and was re-designated as Non-Executive
Director on 4 January 2019. He was the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company during the period from 1 April 2014 to 1 January 2019.
He was the Company Secretary for the Company during the period
from September 2006 to January 2019. He was an independent non-
executive director of TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited during the
period from June 2015 to June 2018 (Stock Code: 515, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). He was also
appointed as an non-executive director of Wing Chi Holdings Limited
in October 2018 (Stock Code: 6080, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange).

Mr. Wu Hao, aged 58, was appointed as Non-Executive Director of
the Company on 14 March 2019. Mr. Wu graduated from the China
University of Political Science and Law (F BIBUEARZ ), the People's
Republic of China (“PRC"”) in 1986 with a bachelor degree in Law.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu has over 20 years’ experience in
the legal industry specialising in corporate mergers and acquisition,
restructuring, legal risk management, commercial and international
law. From 2002 to 2016, he worked at Beijing CUIPPC Law Firm (3£
MR AR B2 EKAT) as the head and partner of a PRC law firm.
Mr. Wu is currently the senior partner of Zhongrui Law Firm (1t =T A
I 2R EISFT) , a PRC law firm.

el
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Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan Shu Kin, aged 65, is an Independent Non-executive Director.
He was appointed on 21 October 2002. He is a certified public
accountant and is a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified
Public Accountants. He is an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a Certified Tax Advisor of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He
has over 40 years of experience in the field of auditing, accounting as
well as financial management. He is the past president of the Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. He is also an independent
non-executive director of PYI Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 498,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and GTI
Holdings Limited (Formerly known as Addchance Holdings Limited)
(Stock Code: 3344, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange) respectively.

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung, aged 67, is an Independent Non-executive
Director. He was appointed on 30 September 2004. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has many
years of experience in accounting, finance and corporate management
and has considerable years of experience in investment banking
specialising in equity/debt fund raising, mergers and acquisitions
and corporate and debt restructuring as well as private financial
consultancy work. He was also an executive director of publicly
listed companies undertaking corporate management, planning and
strategies development functions. Currently, he is an independent non-
executive director of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
342, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange),
Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3683, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and Zhuoxin
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8266, a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange).
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Mr. Chiu Wai Piu, aged 72, is an Independent Non-executive Director.
He was appointed on 11 December 2015. He is a very experienced and
reputable journalist and has over 43 years of experience in journalism.
He has been a reporter, an editor, the main news assignment editor,
the local news assignment editor, the managing editor and the
editorial writer in newspapers and a senior research officer in “One
Country Two Systems Research Institute”. Mr. Chiu has been the
founding treasurer and the second-session chairman of the “Hong
Kong Federation of Journalists”. In 2006, he was elected as the Vice
Secretary-General & Treasurer in the new session of re-election of
committee members of the “Hong Kong Federation of Journalists”;
and he was also elected as the Director-General in 2009. Mr. Chiu
has, for many years, devoted himself wholeheartedly in boosting
cooperation among local journalists, enhancing professional conduct
of journalists and developing the relationship and advocating the
interchange of knowledge between journalists in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. His contribution in this field is highly praised and
recognised. Mr. Chiu served as an independent non-executive director
of Global Strategic Group Limited (Stock Code: 8007, a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange) and resigned on the said
position on 16 June 2016. Mr. Chiu currently serves as an independent
non-executive director of GTI Holdings Limited (Formerly known as
Addchance Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 3344, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and Zhuoxin International
Holdings Limited (Formerly known as Gold Tat Group International
Limited)(Stock Code: 8266, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange).
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Senior Management

Ms. Tsang Hau Wai, aged 39, is currently the Chief Financial Officer of
the Group since January 2019. She is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is also a certified
Project Management Professional of Project Management Institute.
She holds a Bachelor degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Company in December
2011, she had more than 15 years’ experience in the field of auditing,
accounting and financial management mainly from international
accounting firms and a listed company on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

Business unit
Commodity trading

Mr. Lee Siu Fung, Stephen, aged 43, is currently the head of
commodity trading sector. Mr. Lee holds Bachelor Degree in Arts from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has considerable years of
management experience in both People’s Republic of China and Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’'s Republic of China.
He was once the Associate Director of Convoy Global Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1019, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange), the Executive President of £EFREERAR A A CRYI)
and the Vice President of ARHEHRAE (EIM) .

Financial services

Mr. Chan Wing Sum, Sam, aged 39, is currently the Chief Investment
Officer of China Hong Kong Link Asset Management Limited. Mr. Chan
holds an MBA degree from the University of Wales and a Postgraduate
Diploma in Marketing (PG Dip) from Edinburgh Napier University,
both in the United Kingdom. He is an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers (AHKIB) and Accredited Banking Practitioner (ABP)
of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in asset management and financial services field for over 15
years of in both People’s Republic of China and Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China. He was the
Executive Officer and the Chief Investment Officer of Glory Sun Asset
Management Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Glory Sun Financial
Group (Hong Kong stock code: 1282.hk) and assisted with clients’
portfolio management at Hong Kong Headquarter of Hong Kong
and Shang Hai Banking Corporation. He was also with Dah Sing Life
Insurance Company Limited and ACE Life Insurance Company Ltd. in
their respective wealth management departments before.
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Mr. Wong Chi Kan, aged 57, is currently the Representative Officer and
Director of China-Hong Kong Link Securities Company Limited effective
from October 2016. Mr. Wong has been licensed to carry out Type
1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under the SFO since April
2003. Mr. Wong is currently the head of sales and trading, in which
capacity he supervises the dealing department and is responsible for
the front office operations, including executing client orders, advising
clients and general day to day sales and trading work. Mr. Wong has
worked at several Hong Kong-based brokerage and securities houses
as a Responsible Officer (RO) or a representative over the past 14
years; he was a RO in CSC Securities (HK) Limited from April 2003 to
August 2003 involved in dealing in securities; from September 2003
to October 2004 he was a Licensed Representative of First Securities
(HK) Limited involved in dealing in securities; from January 2005
to September 2012 he was a Licensed Representative at Luen Fat
Securities Company Limited involved in dealing in securities; and from
September 2012 to September 2016 he was a Responsible Officer in
Pinestone Securities Limited in involved in dealing securities.

* The English transliteration of the Chinese name in this report, where indicated, is
included for information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official
English name of such Chinese name.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2019, the interests of the Directors and Chief Executive
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
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on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) were as follows: RETABERT :
Total % of

Name of Directors Capacity Nature of Interests Number of Shares Equity Derivative Total Interest Issued Shares

HERTRAN
Espz af BRtE RH#8A RASTETA BER AR
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 1) 116,285 - 116,285 0.00%
EEREE ERBAA fH ARz (MEE)
Mr. Poon Wai Kong Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 1) 7,900,000 - 7,900,000 0.09%
EEALE EHRBEA fH AR (MzH)
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 1) 61,500 - 61,500 0.00%
REBEE ERBAA fH AR (ME)
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 1) 234,000 - 234,000 0.00%
REBEE ERBAA fH AR (zH)
Mr. Gan Xiohua Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 1) 70,980,000 - 70,980,000 0.79%
HBEELE ERBEA fH AR (MizH)
Note: B 3
1. All interests in the shares of the Company are long position 1. FTERARBIRDERE RITE
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the directors B EXFEEEZN RZE—HNE=A :Jr*
and chief executive of the Company had held any interests or short H @ ARRIEZEERETETHRAEBERER

positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2019, the interest of the shareholders, not being
a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FTERRAER

RIE-NAF=ZA=1T—0 BRR(LFER
AEEATBETHRAR) RAR AN KA
B B RIEE S LB R £336146A7F
EME MRS ERINT

Name of Substantial Number of Total% of
Shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares held Equity Derivative Total Interest Issued Shares
\ KERABAN
IERRESE /4R af BEtE BENROHAE RafisIA BER BEA
Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Interest of Controlled Corporation ~ Corporate Interest 2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000 22.30%
Fu Financial Services Group (Notes 1 &2)
Limited B
INkRRECREBER REsEEESR EEER (M k2)
BRAF
Tou Rong Chang Fu (HK) Beneficial Owner Corporate Interest 2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000 22.30%
Holding Co., Limited a (Notes 1 &2)
RRERE () BRERLAE ERHAA =B (F k)
Mr. Li Zhenjun Interest of Controlled Corporation ~ Corporate Interest 2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000 22.30%
(Notes 1 &2)
FRERE REsEESR EBER (M k)
Wang Chao Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Notes 2) 2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000 22.30%
T 532N EAES (fi5E2)
Notes: B & -
1. The issued share capital of Tou Rong Chang Fu (HK) Holding Co., Limited is owned 1. BRREE (FB)ERERAARANEHITRAH -—BR

as to 100% by Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu Financial Services Group Limited, a
company established in the PRC with limited liability, which in turn is owned as to
90% by Mr. Li Zhenjun.

2. All interests in the shares of the Company are long position.

Save as disclosed above, there was no person known to the directors
of the Company, other than a director of the Company, who as at
31 March 2019 had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company are recorded in the register kept
under section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers were approximately 99.3% and the sales attributable
to the Group's largest customer were approximately 95.5% of the
Group's total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers were approximately 99.7% and the purchases
attributable to the Group's largest supplier were approximately 76.1%
of the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, there were no transactions, which need
to be disclosed as connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed in this annual report,
none of the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual report is a
connected transaction.
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its parent company a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the share option scheme are set out in this report and Note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into during the reporting period or subsisted at the end of the
reporting period.

PENSION SCHEME RULES

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (“MPF scheme”) was set up for certain employees in Hong
Kong, in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of the
employees’ gross earnings with a ceiling of HK$1,000 per month to the
MPF scheme. With effect from 1 June 2012, the ceiling is revised from
HK$1,000 to HK$1,250 per month. With effect from 1 June 2014, the
ceiling is revised from HK$1,250 to HK$1,500 per month. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the MPF Scheme.

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiary are required to participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The PRC subsidiary contributes 2% to 22% of
the employee payroll to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of
the employees.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable under the above schemes.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors
for the time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duties,
or supposed duties, in their offices, provided that this indemnity shall
not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which
may attach to any of said persons.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) has resigned as auditor of the
Company with effect from 11 June 2019. Moore Stephens CPA
Limited (“Moore Stephens”) has been appointed as the auditors of
the Company with effect from 11 June 2019 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of PwC. The financial statements for the
Year have been audited by Moore Stephens who retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Details of the Change of Auditors were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 11 June 2019.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Guobiao
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 8 November 2019

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t R = £ E AR AR
Annual Report 2018-19 —Z— N\E—hWFEFERE

G

BEBKBERAEHHA (BB DEE
RAAZEM BT hFAA+—HERE
Mo AEBHEEGFTMEBRERIA ([K
EFHEEERZERARRZEEN 5 =
T-NFRA+— BEERAREE SR B
FRZGRZR - N FE BRI CAARE
SHEEZ MAESHESRELAERESR
REERRBFAE LET 2BMEE 2
BHEREARAREHRS-_E-NAFAA+—H
ZREAR-

REEFS

HITEF
BEE
EE —F-NAF+—HANB



Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the Shareholders of Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tou Rong
Chang Fu Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 100 to 245,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2019, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREESSEHE

Impairment assessment of oil properties and
construction-in-progress included in property, plant
and equipment and oil exploitation licences included
in intangible assets relating to the crude oil segment
FRERIBzBREERERIR (FFAYE - BER
RE)RABBRFUE (FARKEE) 2B ETE

As detailed in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, the operation of the oilfields located at the
Heilongjiang Province of the People’s Republic of China
has been suspended since 2015 and there was a surge in
oil price during 2019. The management considered that
impairment indicators on oil properties, construction-in-
progress included in property, plant and equipment and oil
exploitation licences included in intangible assets relating
to the crude oil segment existed as at 31 March 2019.
Accordingly, the management assessed whether there was
any impairment of these assets relating to the crude oil
segment at 31 March 2019 by estimating the recoverable
amount of these assets with the assistance from an
independent external expert engaged (“Management’s
Expert”), in which key assumptions included estimated
average oil price, estimated total extraction of oil, discount
for lack of marketability and discount rate.

AR E A TSR MR 16FT Rt (IR P E AR AT E
BIAZHAERE - Z—AFEEFLERN_Z-NLER
FA-BEEERE RZE—NF=-A=+—HHREFR
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNAEERRERTSEE

We have performed the following procedures in relation
to the management’s impairment assessment of oil
exploitation licences included in intangible assets, oil
properties and construction-in-progress included in
property, plant and equipment:
EEERERBYAMRAKIAE (GTABTEEE) &K
HEERERZIRE (GTAYME BEREE) 2 RET G
B TR :

o We obtained understanding on the key controls
relating to the impairment assessment process used
by the management;

SEAMBEBEREMRAZBENGEBEZE
B I%‘J.% :

. We assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Management’s Expert;
ZEENHEREERCER ROREHL:

° We involved our in-house valuation expert to
assess the appropriateness of methodology and
model used by the Management’'s Expert in their
impairment assessment;
EEGRAANBAEEERTHERBERNAERE
RATERZ ERERE 2 #EE M
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREESSEHE

Impairment assessment of oil properties and
construction-in-progress included in property, plant
and equipment and oil exploitation licences included
in intangible assets relating to the crude oil segment
(Continued)

FRER B2 REEREEIR (FFAYE - BER
RE) REHBARFUE (FFABKEE) 2 BHENE (8)

We identified that impairment assessment of oil properties,
construction-in-progress included in property, plant
and equipment and oil exploitation licences included in
intangible assets, relating to the crude oil segment as a
key audit matter due to the involvement of significant
judgements and assumptions in estimating the recoverable
amount of these assets.

ANEEZEEEZ TRE B RERHE KRR &
SERBAR M B2EMBEERERTR (GFAME -
B K& ) R A m BRI B (FEABZEE) 2 MER
m REARETEE

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amounts of the oil
properties, construction-in-progress and oil exploitation
licences relating to crude oil segment amounted to
approximately HK$14,553,000, HK$610,000 and
HK$70,230,000 respectively. Reversal of impairment
losses in relation to oil properties, costruction-in-progress
and oil exploitation licenses relating to crude oil segment
of HK$9,827,000, HK$4,120,000 and HK$64,598,000
respectively were recognised as other gains during the
year.

RZZE-NF=A=+—8 FHRBAS 2 HEHEE
ERIBRUARABEARFAZZREES N RBE
14,553,0007T - % #610,0007T & # #70,230,0007C ° & &
REoSenEE EREIBARAMFAKTAIE
R (B /5 18 7 121 7% #59,827,0007T « 145 #54,120,0007T & 7% #5
64,598,0007T B X 4 M i R /3 H th W s
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNAEERRERTSEE

o We benchmarked key assumptions including
average oil price, discount for lack of marketability
and discount rate against available and relevant
industry data;

EEEHIERRJVETELERA BFEFHKE-
TRz MBI eI R R B AT A R ARRATT B
BE SR BRI & ;

3 We tested the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the impairment assessment; and

EFRAFABENETE BRI &

o We reviewed sensitivity analysis prepared by
management over the key assumptions.
EEEHEEEHERRREHNOBRES-



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREESSEHE

Assessment of loss allowances for expected credit
losses on trade receivables

BSRWHRACHAMGEER R 2 BRBRENL

As detailed in Note 22, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$760,570,000 as at 31
March 2019 against which expected credit losses of
approximately HK$244,370,000 was provided.

MM 22T R - NWF=A=+—H - E&
H 2 %2 5 EWGRIEL) AE 760,570,000 - I 2 FETE AP
BB B BT IR X8 %244,370,0007T ©

Significant judgement is required when management
assesses and estimates the expected credit losses on
trade receivables (e.g. determining the default rate of the
debtors). Estimated default rates are based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information.
In addition, trade receivables that are credit-impaired or
significant outstanding balances are assessed for expected
credit loss individually.
EERENARGTESRKRFIE EREEEE (NE
EEBAZENER)RAFRERNAB BHRENET)
BB EB ATERT R EE L B SE LR T AEE RFt AT
BEMEERHERFE - AN BEHIREEREREARRHKE
N#Etr e B 5 RUCRIEEBIZTEREE BB ED TG

As disclosed in Note 3(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised an additional amount of
HK$171,626,000 of allowance for credit losses on trade
receivables for the year.

IR G M B RERMEQGNAHRE BXEERSF
FEESRWFEZ EEEERERRBENEESTEL
171,626,0007T °

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

BT =18 (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNAEERRERTSEE

We have performed the following procedures in relation
to management’s assessment of loss allowances for ECL
on trade receivables:

EEENEEEYESRERE EREERECER
BHEIMERANER

o We obtained understanding on the key controls
relating to the assessment of loss allowance for
expected credit losses on trade receivables;
EEEMBEHE SRR F A HREEBECE
BEREGTH 2 ETEEFEER:

° We tested the accuracy of receivable ageing analysis
on a sample basis;

E SO SRR IR BR ik 5 T B0 RN

° We reviewed the Group's overall policies and
procedures in relation to expected credit loss
framework for estimating impairment provisions
and assessed the appropriateness of the credit
losses provisioning methodology applied by the
management;

TEEH ESEAUHMAGRERENEREES
BEANEBRBECRKEF W GEEEMERN
EEERBERENESL:

o We required the information used to determine the
expected credit losses by considering cash collection
performance against historical trends and the level
of credit loss charges over time; and
EZFBEREHBEBENR S WORIE RER
RN EEBIEKTEREBUEEEBE
BEBEANER: R

° We involved our in-house valuation expert to assess
the appropriateness of methodology and model
used by the management in their assessment of loss
allowances for ECL on trade receivables.
EEHEARABEHEEZRTHERENE S RKFIA
ZHEHEEBEsBERBEHE TERRER 2 A
NRE) 2 EE M-
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B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREESSEHE

Assessment of loss allowances for expected credit
losses on loans receivables

ERERzBHFEBBEZERBETMG

We identified the assessment of loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECL"”) on loans receivable as a key
audit matter due to significant management judgement
involved in identification and measurement of ECL.
HREMEEER (BHEEEE]) NEMNKFTEP R
BEABREAE NESHERVERZEREEEEZE
BRETGEBR AERENS=E

The key changes arising from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are
that the Group's credit losses are now estimated based on
an expected loss model rather than an incurred loss model.
RAEBUBRELNFORELNTIZEH R E5H
NEEEERRRBNBRREAMIFCSELBEREA(L
5o

As disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had loans receivable of
HK$62,351,000, after recognising an impairment
allowance of HK$11,546,000 as at 31 March 2019.

WA E M BRERMF23IMERE R —LF=A
=+—H ' EBESEEWNEFHRER62351,0007T (&
TR E B # B #511,546,0007T ) ©

The assessment of loss allowance for ECL on receivable
involves significant management judgements and estimates
on the amount of ECL at the reporting date.
BRERZFEREEEEBERBHIEIRERNEERE
FIET - R E B HREREEB RS A M-
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNAEERRERTSEE

We have performed the following procedures in relation
to management’s assessment of loss allowances for ECL
on loans receivable:
EEENEREBYBKNERZEREEBREEERE
FHEERIA TR

o We inquired the management to understand the
approach applied on ECL model of loans receivable;
EERRERE ATREAREKRERNTERE
BEEBREANFE:

3 We obtained understanding on key controls on how
the management estimates impairment for loans
receivable;
EETHEHEEBNAMGRKRERZRENH
bkl

o We tested the inputs used by the management to
assess the ECL, by comparing individual items in
the analysis with the relevant loan agreements and
other supporting documents;
EEAHERENHTEREEBEMARASE
TEREO T RELIA R EARE N E R RE R E
b 3 B ST VELL

° We challenged the management’s basis and
judgement in determining the appropriateness
of the management’s grouping of the loans
receivable into different categories, the inputs and
assumptions applies on the ECL model, including
probability of default, loss given default the Group’s
historical loss experience and forward-looking
information;
EEEETEREREBRERDEENREERNE
BIER EREEENEERAE EBRARNEREE
BEEANEASERRE BEEOEE ED
BAX. BEXEENBEERLCRRAEEER:



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREESSEHE

Assessment of loss allowances for expected credit
losses on loans receivables (Continued)

ERERzBHFEBBEZBERBETMG @

The Group performs the ECL assessment based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors specific to the borrowers, general economic
conditions, the current conditions at the reporting date
and forward-looking analysis. The Group also reviews
the value of collateral received from the customers in
measuring ECL, if any.

EXERE ERENBIEEEBRCHRETERAEES
BRE WIRBERANTEER  —REBEAR RS
HHOWBRARAEESTELRAE . BREET2TEH
EEEERTERN ETPERNERRERE (MEF) -

As disclosed in Note 3(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised an additional amount
of HK$26,631,000 of allowance for credit losses on loans
receivable for the year.

BANAR A IS RERMFE3@)NTHEE - BHRECHFERE
KWERZEEEBEREINEESEE26,631,0007T ©

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

BB =1E (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNAEERRERTSEE

o We assessed the appropriateness of the inputs and
assumptions applied on the ECL model of term
loans, including probability of default, loss given
default and forward-looking information;
EETHEARERNEFNEREEBEEXNE
ABERBROEEN BEEONE BUBX
ERAIEEER

o We reviewed the Group's historical loss experience;
TEmy BEEENBEEBLR:

3 We assessed the reasonableness and appropriateness
of the management’s judgement on applying the
relevant accounting requirements;
EENHEREYEMAAMESTRERTEHENS
BHREE N

o We tested the mathematical accuracy of the loss
allowance for ECL;
EEAFAAHEEBEENBEIEREERS LR
1

° We examined on a sample basis the underlying
documentation supporting the value of collateral, if
any, and the Group’s management'’s key estimations
used in the individual impairment assessment for
loans receivable on a sample basis; and
EEMEREFRERREENRR T (1F)
Uk BEXEEEEERMEEEHERER @R
BT AR &

° We evaluated the disclosures regarding the
impairment measurement of loans receivable in
Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
EEAERA MR 23R E B EKRE AR
B BORE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREESSEHE

Loss of assets

BEEBR

As detailed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into several supply agreements
with certain suppliers in the PRC and deposits of
HK$56,364,000 in aggregate were made by the indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary in relation to these supply
agreements with the authorisation of a director of the
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary (who was the former
chairman of the board of directors and an executive
director of the Company) during the period from April
2018 to September 2018. Besides, the indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary made a prepayment amounting to
HK$11,743,000 to a service provider in July 2018 while
there is no valid contractual agreement entered into
between the indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary and the
service provider. The Group lost contact with the finance
personnel of the indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary and
the director since early July 2018. In addition, certain bank
balance amounting to approximately HK$23,131,000
in a bank account of the indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary in a reputable PRC bank has been frozen by the
governmental authorities since January 2019 as the bank
balance is suspected to be related to a case which the
director is one of the suspects.
WMAnsRE B mRM TR BARZ —HEE
2EMBAREE THEMERIZE THERS ZH
E2EAMBRARR_ZE-—NFHNAZE-_Z-N\FNLAH
e BEARIHEZEWBLARIz —RER(HA &R
AEEFEVAEEIRRATES) RERZSHERZS
H R € %56,364,0007T WM ZEEEEHNE A
ARZZE-N\FtAR—BRBHEENBENRIEE
#11,743,0007T - 52 @ 5 2 & I & 22 7] 22 AR 7% 4 FE 7 I
BIIVEREAMR -BEZZE-N\FELAVMNUKR E&E
EHEZEZEZENBRA U BABRBEREMRE It
SVBRHREE T -hE-ARREZHEEZENER
AR — KA BERTTHVIRITRR P A 4978 %23,131,0007T
ZETRITES REARZSRITABWEREESTRIL
FMBRAZ—HN—REMHERA-
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNAEERRERTSEE

We have performed the following procedures in relation
to the loss of assets:
EEEREEBEEMRATER:

° We obtained and reviewed the supply agreements
and service agreement entered into by the indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
EEERGIEN BEARMAEZEMBARGIZ
2 e KR TS e

. We obtained and reviewed the bank statement of
the frozen bank account for the bank balances as at
the end of the reporting period;
EERMERRERRITERESWEHFTRAER
TIRP ZIRITHBRES



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREESSEHE

Loss of assets (Continued)

=93 F:-4¢ )

The Group has engaged an independent PRC legal
advisor to assist the Group to recover the prepayments
and the frozen bank balance. In the opinion of the
independent PRC legal advisor, the prepayments paid to
the abovementioned suppliers and service provider and
the frozen bank balance are unlikely to be recoverable.
Accordingly, the management of the Group concluded
that impairment losses amounting to HK$91,238,000
in aggregate should be recognised for the year ended
31 March 2019 and presented as “loss of assets” in
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
March 2019.

EXEEZRE-EBUTEEAEERNURE S£EKT
TANRIARRERNRITASR - BUPBEEZZBERRR
ST T s A R 7 R AR R 7 2 TR AN RRIE DA K AR A B
RITHEB TR E-FA EXEEEERR IE
REZE_Z-NEF=A=1t—HLFRARIDRNEESES
491,238,000 YRBE—FT—NF=A=+—H
IFFEEZRAaBRRNEINRTEERBRE] -

We identified the loss of assets as a key audit matter
due to its materiality and the involvement of significant
judgements and assumptions in estimating the impairment
losses recognised on these assets.

RRNEFT R EEECHARNEBEENEZE LA EE
EERAREEERTRASHEMERR RESHEE
BEBR SR ETEE-

Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBERE

BB =1E (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNAEERRERTSEE

We obtained the legal opinion from the
independent PRC legal advisor engaged by the
Group and enquired the independent PRC legal
advisor to assess the procedures and approach of
investigation used by the independent PRC legal
advisor; and

T%58 BSEEFZsBUPEAEERESEE
BRI AREE A BDE R E AR (48 L BDA
FEEMRMACRAEEFRTE &

We obtained and reviewed the assessment by
the management on the recoverability of the
prepayments paid to abovementioned suppliers and
service provider and the frozen bank balance.
EEERBUEMEREBYH N T L gtEr &R
TSR 2 TR IR LA R PR 45 B0 R1T A% 84 2 AT IR
ol 1% By &F A o

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited Z @R E S EGR A A
Annual Report 2018-19 —Z—N\E—NFFERE

95



96

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

B ZBERE

R E RS M SRR
ENEE

BEENER REGAMBERREBESTF
FE R PO BRAF S BE R T 8 BUA B A 86 AR BRI R
BAERE YHABRKRESE ROZEEER
HF-EEER BT (ERER)BE KUtz
SMRREFIEEMB N - BEF TSR AR ER
NBREMEMALE ERFAEETFAEE-A
BRERSKFORE  BTRERIRR (F
BEEL) ETNER AR —EXRBRR
AP FERT AR RE B3R o SR RRPRI R LA e BRFF e
Mo - IR B IEAH T M B s E AFE R ]
B ERAVBMAEME KBS S MR
FRETTE L VAR TE - A B A #5 SR BR 2L AT 4%
BIEEAKN -

EiRE (CBARER) ETEFNBES
ELXERTERAE - RETEXRREK -

e o
[=Ear N

o ELAUANFEfh B P BRRF SR AR T 8 BUR
EUBBRRFEERBRRANER
RET MBITRERT ARE LR
AR R R B E WERERE R
EEBRMER AN RFFATRE S RSB
RoBE ERER ERRL F0ER
A EBEESI 2 £ - B 1tk R e 3 3R X KR
i S B ) B A B8 RR PR L Y LB = I AR B
IR RME R B AHERRA AR

o
o THRABIAENNEBEE - URIHE

EMEHEF BENLEY EEE

PRI AR R E R -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan, King Keung
Practising Certificate Number: PO6057

Hong Kong
8 November 2019
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Consolidated Income Statement

e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #HZ=Z=F

—“NE=ZA=t—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BEET T
(Note)
(FF#E)
Revenue Wz 105,502 5,536,378
Cost of sales SHE AR (35,436) (5,389,906)
Gross profit E7 70,066 146,472
Other losses, net HibEs5i8 - 558 6 (5,971) (120,043)
Allowance for credit losses on ERERFEZEEER
trade receivables B 3(a)(ii) (171,626) (38,040)
Allowance for credit losses on RUWER 2 EEBEREE
loans receivable 3(a)(ii) (26,631) (21,024)
Selling and distribution costs HE RO HKA (8,449) (20,555)
Administrative expenses ITHRRAX (106,050) (95,519)
Loss of assets BERE 11 (91,238) =
Operating loss KE BB (339,899) (148,709)
Finance income BB WA 12 569 61
Finance costs B & KA 12 (65,708) (53,009)
Loss before taxation B 4 Al s 18 (405,038) (201,657)
Income tax credit FriSfi e 13 71 846
Loss for the year FAEBE (404,967) (200,811)
Loss for the year attributable to: AT ATEEFEAES:
Owners of the Company ARARHEA A (402,320) (199,630)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 6 M R A (2,647) (1,181)
(404,967) (200,811)
Loss per share (HK cents) TR EE (B
Basic and diluted HA K #5E 14 (4.49) (2.63)

Note: The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time for the year ended 31 March B aE -
2019. The Group has chosen to apply the modified retrospective approach and under
such transition method chosen, comparative information is not restated and certain

comparative information may not be comparable. See Note 2(b)(iii).

The notes on pages 109 to 245 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t R = £ E AR AR
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EWRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ##Z—_ZT—-hF=A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BT T
(Note)
(HtEE)
Loss for the year FREE (404,967) (200,811)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hmzm (FAX) A
income:
Item that may be reclassified GETE AIBEREFT I ZE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz ZHA -
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations ME X E (15,569) 26,756
Item that will not be reclassified EEHTERETHEE
subsequently to profit or loss: B HE -
Changes in fair value of BEATEEBEMEME
financial assets at fair value WPk EREE
through other comprehensive A EE S
income 21 (2,127) 4,635
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FARHEME2E (FAX) BA
income for the year (17,696) 31,391
Total comprehensive expense FRE2EMAZBE
for the year (422,663) (169,420)
Total comprehensive expense ITATEEEZEREZ
attributable to: 4a%E -
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ Z=IN (419,660) (168,595)
Non-controlling interests FEIE Il 1 f (3,003) (825)
(422,663) (169,420)

Note:

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time for the year ended 31 March

fiz: AKRBERBE-_F-AFZA=+—RALFEERE

2019. The Group has chosen to apply the modified retrospective approach and under
such transition method chosen, comparative information is not restated and certain
comparative information may not be comparable. See Note 2(b)(iii).

REBMBHRELF15% AEERRBRALERT
BWERBEERMRBES LBREARYKRTIAES
B TSR AT BE A LB« KB RE2(b)Gii) ©

The notes on pages 109 to 245
consolidated financial statements.

FI109B £2458 2 M AZER AP IFHRE
BRE T — Do

are an integral part of these
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e I AROR 3R

As at 31 March 2019 RWZZ—h&F=A=+—H

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
R=Z—hF RZZE—)\F
=HA=+—H —A=+—H
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T R T
(Note)
(B 3E)
Assets EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BENRRE 16 30,512 26,580
Investment properties wEYE 17 101,656 103,887
Intangible assets B EE 18 77,628 30,900
Interests in associates iR l/N o v 19 - =
Prepayments, deposits and TEfFFRIE - ?Tzﬁ&
other receivables H fth i U R T 20 49,500 52,391
Financial assets at fair value ?ﬁ/_\$@}ﬁiﬂﬁ1ﬁ£ﬁ
through other comprehensive MRz e BEE
income 21 1,952 4,079
Financial assets at fair value RATEERBERYE
through profit or loss LEBMEE 24 2,401 27,571
263,649 245,408
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 223 1,182
Trade receivables Z 5 fEWGRIA 22 516,200 525,933
Loans receivable FEWE K 23 62,351 73,933
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - Ee Rk
other receivables H b W 5008 20 50,718 122,748
Financial assets at fair value BATESBERIE
through profit or loss ZEMEE 24 4,653 46,747
Current income tax recoverable BVEA AT Y2 [0 Fr 15 75 2,967 1,218
Client trust bank balance EPERRITER 25 4,839 5,410
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEeFEIEER 25 82,768 348,923
724,719 1,126,094
Total assets BEEHBE 988,368 1,371,502
Equity and liabilities ERREE
Equity attributable to owners KAREEAEBML 2 ER
of the Company
Share capital A& s 30 89,679 89,679
Reserves f# 85,139 504,599
174,818 594,278
Non-controlling interests FEVE B A A (6,714) (1,496)
Total equity AR 168,104 592,782
102 Al eS0T B A AR



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e R AROR 3R

As at 31 March 2019 R=—ZE—hF=ZA=+—H

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
R=B-NE  R-F-N\F

=A=+—8H =—A=+—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 7 BET T BT T
(Note)
(FH5E)
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred taxation IRIET IR 32 421 547
Bonds &EF 33 650,821 619,180
651,242 619,727
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables 2 5 RN RIA 26 49,613 19,085
Contract liabilities aHEaE 27 =
Accruals and other payables JE &t SR I8 [ E A E < FR I8 28 52,629 108,831
Bank borrowings RITIEE 29 32,182 29,477
Current income tax liabilities BNERRT SR B f& 867 1,009
Bonds &5 33 33,731 591
169,022 158,993
Total liabilities BEAE 820,264 778,720
Total equity and liabilities EahEaEHEE 988,368 1,371,502

The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 245 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8
November 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Kwok Leung
EER
Director

EFE

Note: The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time for the year ended 31 March
2019. The Group has chosen to apply the modified retrospective approach and under
such transition method chosen, comparative information is not restated and certain
comparative information may not be comparable. See Note 2(b)(iii).

The notes on pages 109 to 245 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FI00BE E2458 B2 A B HRERER =
T NE+—AN\BESESHERRET
B UHTINEERERES

Huang Guobiao
EHEE
Director

EF

i K?ﬁlaﬂﬁlf? NE=ZA=+—HILFEERE
RERBRBREERE155 - AEE R BRAEIEET
BWERBEEEAMRBEEL  LBRARY KT IAES
K T HBE K AT R MOE LU B o KB EE2(b) i) ©

FI109B £2458 2 M AZER AP IFHRE
BRE T — Do
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERRREBmK

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZE-_ZT—-—NF=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATREARE
Share- Fair value
based through other Non-
Share Share payment Other Merger ~ Statutory comprehensive  Exchange  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve Teserves reserve Teserve income reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
ROPERR
R Ef2EGE Faut
BE  BBEE  RERE  HeEE  ABRE  iEEE  TIBZBRE EREE  2iER ag BE  BmEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT RETn BMTL A¥Tn #ETh RETn BT BETn MMt BETn #TT ERTn
Motef@) — Moed)  Moteld)  (Mote(d)
(@) (o) (BH0) (K@)
At1 April 2017, as restated W-E-tERA-R £E) 15,501 916,506 12,087 (216412) 38 136 (32516) 290 (145,770) 615,788 (2611) 613,117
Comprehensive expense 353
Loss for the year ERBR > - - - - - - - (1980 (19630 (8 (o)
Other comprehensive income Ah2ENE
Exchange diferences risng on BEBNSREEL
trandlation of foregn operations EXZE - - - - - - - 26400 - 26,400 35 2675
Changes in far value o financial asets RATERAENZE
at fairvalue thiough other et va iy
comprehensie income LTEEY - - - - - - 463 - - 463 - 4635
Tansfer relating o fnancil asses t farvalie~ EMEEH ERLTERE
through other comprehensiv income Eh2EAETIEL
disposed of during the year SREEER - - - = = = 24,90 = (24960) = = =
Totalother comprehensive incomellexpense) &2 T/ (8%) 48 - - - - - - 295% 26,400 (24960) 31,035 3% 31,391
Total comprehensive income/ Fh2ERE/ (BR)48
(expense) for the year - - - - - - 19,59 26,400 (224590) (168,595) (829 (169.420)
Transactions with owners and others EEEAZRERER
Placement o new shaes (ote 3) REFRH (H0) 141n 134629 - - - - - - -l - 1
Fupenses incured for issue of EREELTRA
shares by way of placing E47ER - (1716) N . . - - - . (1716) - (1.716)
Capitalcontrbution fom a non-controling ~LHARRRTE
shareholder - - - - - - - - - - 2,000 2,000
Forfeitue of share options (Note 31(2) BRERK (HE310) - - 18) - - - - - 78 - - -
Total transactions with owners and others ~ EEEAZRBRERSE 1m 12913 ) - - - - - 7 147,085 2000 149085
At31 March 2018 W-§-NE=f=1-R 89679 1,049,419 12,009 (216412) 38 36 291) 29302 (370280) 594,278 (1.4%) 592,782

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 1B & & £ @A R Q)
Annual Report 2018-19 —T—N\ZE—NFFERE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2019

maEm B ERK
HE-P-NF=A=+—ALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANAREARE
Fair value
Share-based through other Non-
Share Share payment Other Merger  Statutory comprehensive  Exchange  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve Teserves Teserve Teserve income reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
RAFEER
HREERZ Afb2EkE FEHE
Brx  ROEE  RERE  HpEE  AORE  fRHE  GIRBE EXEE  EiER 1] B2 BEAE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
AETn  BETn BRTR EETn BETr BT EMTn BMTr EBTn BMTr BT EMTR
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c) (Note (d))
(K@) (K20)  (KRQ) (K@)
At 31 March 2018 (Note (e)) R=B-N§Zf=t-8
(Kik(e) 89,679 1,049,419 12,009 (216,412) 3,48 36 2921) 29302 (370,282) 594,278 (1,49) 592,782
Comprehensive expense R T T T T T T e e e
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - - (402,320) (402,320) (2.647) (404,967)
Other comprehensive loss 1 -
Exchange diffeences arsing on BEBNERELEL
translation of foreign operations - - - - - - - (15.213) - (15.213) (356) (15,569)
Changes in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - - - = @121) - - (@121) - (2121)

Total other comprehensive expense b2 ERXAE - - - - - (1) (15213) - (17,340) (356) (17,69)

Total comprehensive loss for the year FRREERLAE D (_2.15) - _(E.ZE) - _(40;‘32_0) - _(41;.5@ o (;,0&) - _(42;.651

Transactions with owners and others BEEAZRARAL

Forfeiture of share options (Note 31(a)) Bt 31d)) - - (12,009) - - - - - 12,009 - - -

Acquisiion of shares from a non-controling A-AFARRRBERR

shareholder (Note (f) (PzEh) - - - - - - - - 200 200 (2.215) (2,015)

Total transactions with owners and others ~ EEBAZXAREMEE - - (12,009) - - - - - 12,209 200 (2.215) (2,015)

AL31 March 201 HZE-ABZATH-R meD A - @A) % Z6 6o wes (mm) mgs 69 (6

Note: Lik:3

(a) Other reserves mainly represent the difference of approximately a debit of (a) HHEEEZERERNMBAREZHNEMRIS
HK$221,862,000 (2018: a debit of HK$221,862,000) between the amounts paid or (ZERXRHGETEERREREZM B AR Z ZHI4)
received from transactions related to the changes of shareholdings in subsidiaries B3k B UHR & B8 2 BT U B o S JR IR Il A AR R 2
without the loss of control and the non-controlling interests being acquired EE N RERE®221,862,0000 (ZT—N\F &
or disposed of and the capital contributions from substantial shareholders of T #221,862,000) R FERFEHEN RERBE
approximately a credit of HK$5,450,000 (2018: a credit of HK$5,450,000). 5,450,0007T ( =T — /\ 4 : #E BR A #5,450,0007T) °

(b) Merger reserve represents the difference between the aggregate of the nominal (b) AHREFHEERER -_TT_F+A-tBEKRZER
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group re- BB AE P U R P R 1 ] 2 AR A 4R T B A A A b AT DA
organisation completed on 26 October 2002 over the nominal value of the share ERMZRAEER 2 Z5-
capital of the Company issued in exchange there for.

(e} Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations governing foreign investment (© RIBRFEARKANE ([HE])KIZINE © FEFTERE
enterprise established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the articles ZHRBERAIRBRE URAEEETHRBENBE AR Z4H
of association of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group, the subsidiaries are required BERMA ZEWBERRASBRBESFNZETR
to transfer an amount of their profit after taxation to the statutory reserve fund, BHEZATHERES BEERITSHREEZS AR M
until the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their registered capital. The BARZ50%RIE SEEREES TR ABITAN
statutory reserve fund may be distributed to equity owners in the form of bonus ADERTFEEHEBA
issue.

(d) Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve represents the accumulated (d) RATFEEBHMEEKEIRZFEEERSREDRR
fair value changes of equity investment classified as financial assets at fair value PERBATEEBEMEZAKRSEIRZEMEEZR
through other comprehensive income as at the end of each reporting period. KEREZ Bt AT EEZH

(e) The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time for the year ended 31 March (e) AEEERBE_T-NAF=ZA=+—HLEFEERE
2019. The Group chosen to apply the modified retrospective approach and under AEBHBRELERE 1% - ARE DB REALBSE
such transition method chosen, comparative information is not restated and certain BYWERBIRERMATEREL LLRERERFIAESG]
comparative information may not be comparable. See Note 2(b)(iii). BB T L BE R AT A A L8 o BT ER2(b) i) ©

(f) During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company negotiated with a non- G} HE-_Z-NF=ZA=+—BILFE AAREALQA

controlling shareholder of an indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
to acquire all of its shares in the subsidiary for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$2,015,000, representing the carrying amount of the non-controlling interest
at the date of acquisition. The acquisition of shares was completed and the cash
consideration was paid to the non-controlling shareholder during the year.

Z—RRRFEENBARTZ — R IFERBREE N
WEARZMERAZAAERD RERBEHR/BE
2,015,0007T * #8°% A4S B H3 2 JF 1 R A s AR 1 1 - B
HIKEEE T - AREREERF AU FIFRRBIR

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited Z @R E S EGR A A
Annual Report 2018-19 —Z—N\E—NFFERE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘l-_r\ }Eﬁ/ﬂbgﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ-_Z—NF=A=+—HLFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF =— N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
[ihg=3 BT T EEEF T
(Note)
D
Cash flows from operating RELETBHZ2HERE
activities
Loss before taxation B H A1 5 18 (405,038) (201,657)
Adjustments for: FHE
Interest income FE WA 12 (569) 61)
Interest expenses FERMXE 12 65,708 53,009
Depreciation, depletion and wE -BEEREHE
amortisation 7 9,943 24,129
Allowance for credit losses of BZRBFIEZEE
trade receivables EiE 3(a)(ii) 171,626 38,040
Allowance for credit losses of ERE R EEBERE
loans receivable 3(a)(ii) 26,631 21,024
Loss of assets BEERE 11 68,107 =
Loss on deregistration of — BB A 7 2 #H
a subsidiary B EE 6 703 =
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE BERE&EZ
plant and equipment E51E 6 30 -
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ V¥ R M RE
impairment loss on property, CREEERR),
plant and equipment BEEE (13,947) 60,610
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ mEEE 2 OREEBE
impairment losses on BE),/REERE
intangible assets 6 (48,981) 99,241
Impairment losses on prepayments, JB{fFRIE « #& M H Aty
deposits and other receivables JELBZ,TAIEZMTEEST@ 6 12,280 13,771
Changes in fair value of financial ?E’&?@ﬁLTE §|J@EZ
assets at fair value through CRMEEZATEE
profit or loss 6 31,971 (18,722)
Write back of BEEMRE
consideration payables 6 - (5,900)
Operating cash flows before HEBESEHAIZ
movements in working capital KERBRE (81,536) 83,484
Changes in working capital: LEESEE:
Decrease in inventories FER D 882 1,208
Increase in trade receivables & 5 R IE g (161,893) (151,321)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FBffFIE - x& M EAM
deposits and other receivables U FRIE (38 0n) R (5,414) 17,023
(Increase)/decrease in FEUE & (ijJD)/WQ\
loans receivable (15,049) 16,079
Decrease/(increase) in BATEEABREIEZ
financial assets at fair value SREERLD ()
through profit or loss 35,293 (27,793)
Increase/(decrease) in trade Z 5 e FRIAR I,
payables -2 30,528 (110,212)
Decrease in accruals and JE 5T 3R I8 K E At JE A
other payables RIE R D (56,641) (58,643)
Decrease/(increase) in client trust XPEELRTE
bank balances () 571 (354)
Cash used in operations REEBA RS (253,259) (230,529)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBREH (1,896) (2,910
Net cash used in KRETHMAZESTE
operating activities (255,155) (233,439)
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited % fi & = & @4 (R
Annual Report 2018-19 —Z—\&— jﬁiri&%



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘lj_\ }Eﬁl}lbgﬂ%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #HEZT—hF=A=+—HIEFE

2019 2018
—®-n% L i
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt 5 BET T BT
(Note)
(P =E)
Cash flows from RERETHZEHERE
investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE WFENREH
equipment (1,955) (3,706)
Interest received 2 U FE 569 61
Proceeds from disposals of property, &3  BE & & H
plant and equipment Z FTiSRIR 32 -
Proceeds from disposals of financial H &% A $@5ﬁiﬂﬁ‘rﬁiﬁ
assets at fair value through other W ZFIFEZEREEZ
comprehensive income Fr1S 3R - 29,797
Purchase of an intangible asset BE-EEPEE = (500)
Net cash (use in)/generated from R&EEE (FrH),
investing activities FrEESFHE (1,354) 25,652
Cash flows from financing REBMETBHZHERE
activities
Net proceeds from issuance of bonds 377 1& % Ff 15 5B /% 58 33 36,700 170,110
Proceeds from new bank borrowings 7% 85178 & 1S 5UE 35,000 =
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITEE (32,295) (3,341)
Interest paid BEAFE (27,027) (36,575)
Repayment of bonds BEES (10,600) (6,000)
Capital withdrawal from a —ZIEERBREEE
non-controlling shareholder (2,015) =
Net proceeds from placement of Bic & ¥ AR 1) P 15 3R I8 )% 58
new shares 30 - 148,801
Contribution from a non-controlling — % JE#ERE LR E &
shareholder - 2,000
Expenses incurred for issue of FEREEBITRG
shares by way of placing FrEE X 30 = (1,716)
Net cash (used in)/generated mEEE (FTA),
from financing activities BB FHE (237) 273,279
Net increase in cash and RekBREEEER
cash equivalents I 58 (256,746) 65,492
Cash and cash equivalents FYRekBEEEEER
at beginning of the year 348,923 278,866
Effect of foreign exchange IIEERESH
rate changes (9,409) 4,565
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEHEER
at end of the year 25 82,768 348,923
Note: The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time for the year ended 31 March B 3 < K‘ilEEA%zI_7 NE=ZR=+—BILFEEARE
2019. The Group has chosen to apply the modified retrospective approach and under B E LR E 155 - AREEERBEAKEE
such transition method chosen, comparative information is not restated and certain ?E?‘ﬁii&ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁﬁi@ixii B AR R T IAESD)
comparative information may not be comparable. See Note 2(b)(iii). KB T LEBUE R AT B8 BB L8 o BB R 2(b)(il)
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umlted R RREEEER AT
Annual Report 2018-19 —Z— N\E—NFEEERE 1 07



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-.r\ Iﬁﬁ/}lbi%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ-_Z—NF=A=+—HLFE
(a) Liabilities from financing activities () BMEIBHEE
Bank
borrowings Bonds Total
RITEE &% et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEETIT BT T
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—+F 32,818 439,227 472,045
Financing cash flow: MERERE:
Issuance of bonds BITES = 170,110 170,110
Repayment of bonds BEES - (6,000) (6,000)
Repayment of bank borrowings {&E#R1TEE (3,341) = (3,341)
Interest paid BARFIE (751) (35,824) (36,575)
(4,092) 128,286 124,194
Other changes: Hib %8 :
Interest expenses (Note 12) FERMZ (KFE12) 751 52,258 53,009
At 31 March 2018 and R-ZZE-—NF=ZHA=+—H
1 April 2018 EZZE—-—N\FMHHA—H 29,477 619,771 649,248
Financing cash flow: RMERERE
Issuance of bonds BITES - 36,700 36,700
Repayment of bonds EEEH - (10,600) (10,600)
Proceed from bank borrowings  R{TEE Z FT{5 35,000 = 35,000
Repayment of bank borrowings (EERTEE (32,295) (32,295)
Interest paid BT B (952) (26,075) (27,027)
1,753 25 1,778
Other changes: Hih#s:
Interest expenses (Note 12) FIERZ (MzE12) 952 64,756 65,708
At 31 March 2019 RZE-—NF=R=+—H 32,182 684,552 716,734

(b) Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2018, deposit paid in previous
years of acquisition of equity interest of an investee which
was included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
amounting to HK$27,571,000 (2019: nil) was reclassified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss upon the
completion of the acquisition of equity interest of the investee
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The notes on pages 109 to 245 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t R = £ E AR AR
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(b) EXFBREXRS

REBEE-_Z—/\F=A=+—HLFE
K Béﬂﬁif;ﬁdzuﬁzﬁ%—%%&&é/\%
mZBMEE PIABNARE ZER
H fth fE Ug 3k 38 ) 7 #627,571,0007T (=
T-hF E)REE=-FT—\F=A
=t+—HIEFERZEXREZLHEE
AR BETHEAR AT EERIE
WHRZ S EAVEE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands and 21st Floor, 80 Gloucester Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong, respectively.

The trading of ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange has been suspended since 3 July 2018 due to, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Company fails
to publish the annual results of the Group for the years ended
31 March 2018 and 2019 and interim results of the Group for
the six months ended 30 September 2018 and the despatch of
annual reports of the Group for the years ended 31 March 2018
and 2019 and interim report of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2018 within the time limit pursuant to the
Listing Rule.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are trading of commodities
and chemical products, property investment, money lending
business, securities brokerage, asset management, insurance
brokerage and the exploitation and sale of crude oil.

The Company’s functional currency is the United Stated
dollars ("US$"). However, the presentation currency of the
consolidated financial statements is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
as the directors of the Company consider that HK$ is the most
appropriate presentation currency in view of its place of listing.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Thousands of Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise
stated.

e M A MR
—SRER

ERmEE&EBEBRAT ([AAF])
A—ERAERSEMKIZERA
A ERNEEBBEZIMERAT
([BZ2FT]) £ e AR R Z MR ER
N B S B 2 sk 55 Bl B Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands &2 & 7 & (& +$T 88052 11& ©

ARBlzEBREE T N\FLA=
FERBIMEEEER NAREER
B WTHERAARATIEREERE
—E-NERZTE-NEF=ZA=+—8H
LFEZEERERASEABE_ZT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NT\

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of

these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

(i)

(i)

Compliance with HKFRSs and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“HKCO") Cap.
622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"), which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FTESHBEHE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(a) WREE (@)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i) FHAEBSELEEESZ

(iii) Issues relating to the Group’s ability to continue

as a going concern

The Group has incurred losses and reported a loss of
approximately HK$404,967,000 for the year ended
31 March 2019. In addition, the Group has incurred
net cash used in operating activities since 2014 and
reported a net cash used in operating activities of
approximately HK$255,155,000 for the year ended
31 March 2019. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern.

Certain measures have been and are being
undertaken by the management of the Group to
manage the Group’s liquidity needs and to improve
its financial position, which include, but are not
limited to, the following:

(i)  The Group has been actively negotiating
with the debtors to settle their outstanding
past due trade receivables. Subsequent to
31 March 2019 and up to the date when
the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, trade receivables (net
of allowance of credit losses) with aggregate
carrying amount as at 31 March 2019 of
approximately HK$540,568,000 have been
settled by the debtors.

&

HE-Z-NAF=A=1—
BLEEE AEECEL
BEIYZWHREENBE
404,967,0007T ° th 40 - AN
B _ZE—FEURDE
SR EEESFAES FE
YREBEE_ZT—NLFE=ZA
=+ —BLEFEREREE
EBATAR S FEABE
255,155,0007C ° ZZ 150
KAAGFHEE AT R 6
HASE ZFEK S NE
DED N

AEBEEEELATEER
METHENEEREE Y
MBESH R RIS HEY
B R BFRETRR
ATNHIA:

() AEBE—EHEBEGRHERE
EAERLEFER
EEBEE SRR
H-R_TE—h&F=
A=Z+—RAZ%BRE

ERERELEEH
BHREZB R_Z
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H BRERELNSE
540,568,000 7 &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n‘/T\

2

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii) Issues relating to the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Subsequent to 31 March 2019 and up to
the date when the consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, the Group
repaid bonds with principal amounting to
approximately HK$11,024,000. Besides, the
Group renewed certain bonds upon maturity
with principal amounting to HK$3,000,000
of which the Group will settle the bond with
after 2020.

On 3 May 2019, the Group entered into a
provisional sale and purchase agreement to
dispose of a directly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company to an independent third party
for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$104,782,000. The concerned subsidiary
owns investment property and is located at
Units Nos. 11, 12, 13, 14 on 8th Floor, Wing
On Plaza, No. 62 Mody Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. The disposal transaction was completed
on 19 July 2019 and the cash consideration
has been fully settled by the acquirer in July
2019.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)

Annual Report 2018-19 —Z—\&—

NEEERE

2 EE;ZE u-I_JBZEEwR (ma

(a) WHEEE @)

(i) BFHAEBSELEEESZ
5 2E (4%)

(i)

(iii)

R-_ZT—-hE=A
=+ HZBREHE
ERENEEZESH
BWEAZB AEE
BEEERNSEHS
#11,024,0007T 2 (&
FHoltih AEBEE
HEFTASHEABE
3,000,0007T 2 B HAfE
H HiEBAAEER
TETFREE

R=ZZE—hh&EEA
ZH AKEBEFTYBR
BEBERELNR—F
BUFE=FHELAE
ExEEZEWBAR
ACREREABE
104,782,0007C ° A
M EBAREENRE
75 1L BE E Hb 3862587 Kk
ZEHSIEINE 12
13 MAEZIRE
ME-LEXFER
—nEtHA+Ah
Bl BRSNRE
BER-ZE—hE+LA
RS BEAEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B R AR M EE

2 353:Eaﬁ+ﬁkﬂ%ﬁ%3z(ma

n\/T\

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(a) WREE (@)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

BEHEEFGEEERE 2

(iii) Issues relating to the Group’s ability to continue (iii)

as a going concern (Continued)

(iv) The Group applies cost control measures in

28 (#&)

(iv) AEERHEKA

cost of sales, administrative expenses and THRAXEREATH
capital expenditures. 73 TEBR PR R A 2 ) 4R
i

(v)  The Group is also maximising its sales effort,

(vi) AEBETRIEHHEE

including seeking new customers and sales &% =Sk R R
orders and implementing comprehensive B E UREKT
policies to improve operating cash flows. ENHEARELL

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that, taking into account the above-mentioned plans
and measures, the Group would have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due
within the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the directors of the

At =y
HEeEnE-

ZEE LatctE RiEE - R
ARAIEERBAEEBAE
RAMEEES URMNES
EATH WA RS AR
ATARRFZEARNEEEITE
EIMBBEE B A
RIEERARFECEESE

Company are of the opinion that it is appropriate REBE_ZT-NLF=A
to prepare the consolidated financial statements for =+ —HIEFEZEATT
the year ended 31 March 2019 on a going concern WKREBERE-

basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate
as a going concern, adjustments would have to
be made to write down the value of assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-

fid 5 AR B AR IR R
e EELE BIAELH
BB BEEEBEMREA R
&5 AAEEL ZE—
FREFLEE YRIER

current assets and non-current liabilities as current BEERERBAEAIE

assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect FoEARBEERRB A

of these adjustments has not been reflected in these Bt FRABZHEWER

consolidated financial statements for the year ended HE-_Z—hF=A=1+—

31 March 2019. HILFEZFaMBREAN
Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures

(i)  New standard, interpretation and amendments

to existing standards adopted in current year:

Standards

Subject

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

As part of the Annual
Improvements to the HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment
Property

Except as described in Note 2(b)(iii), the application
of the new standards and amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e AR MR

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FTESHBEHE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) EFfBHRRHREEN 2D

(&)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(i) EEMEERELR 5 A2
BERAZHER  BEER

(i)  New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations have been issued

but are not effective and have not been early RB2EZEFTX
adopted
Effective for
annual periods
Standards Subject beginning on or after Note
RUT A
BB
bl HH FEHBEN fitst
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 (a)
ERRBRELNE 1657 HE —Z-NE—HA—H

HKFRS 17
BAMBRERAE1TH

Insurance Contracts
REaH

1 January 2021
“F--%-A-H

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
B (BRMBRERE
Z8%®) -REFBH®

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

BB 2 T HEE 1t

1 January 2019
—ZE-hg—R—H

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB BREENEIR
EHEN

Definition of a Business

FBLER

1 January 2020
—E-TE-H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Feature with Negative 1 January 2019

Compensation
EBMBRELAFENRZ ABEREZENES

{EETA

—T-NE—A—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NT\

2 EE;ZE u-I_JBZEEwR (

(b) EBRRBRBENZET
(#)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(i) EEMEERELR 5 A2
BERAZHER  BEER

(i) New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations have been issued

but are not effective and have not been early RB2EZIEGTE (&)
adopted (Continued)
Effective for
annual periods
Standards Subject beginning on or after Note
RUT A8
ZEREBZ
%8 HH FEHBEN i3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28
BAENBHRELNEI0R K

B LR85 2
CHEN

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

BRGHENSIRRE LGS

HERIZE8HE 2 (BRI

Amendments to HKAS 19

BRGHERF 9% 2 EFTTA

Amendments to HKAS 28
BB GRERIE285R 2 183]

Amendments to HKFRSs
BANBREEUNZBIA

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

REEMHEBENRHEE DA ZHE
BEHELRZA

Amendments to Definition of “Material”

[ERM] ZERZEFA

Employee Benefits: Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement

BERH BB BRASER

Long-term Interests in an Associate or Joint
Venture
REERAHAERAIZ KRR
Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle
—IEE_ZT+ERYPZFERE

The Group is assessing the impacts of these new

standards, amendments to existing standards and

interpretations and will apply them once they are

effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(i)

New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations have been issued
but are not effective and have not been early
adopted (Continued)

Note (a):
HKFRS 16 “Leases”
Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in almost all
leases being recognised on the statement of financial position of a
lessee, as the distinction between operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The
only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases. The accounting
for lessors will not significantly change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group's
operating leases (as lessee). As at the reporting date, the Group
has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$5,160,000. The Group estimates that the impact on the amount
for short-term or low value leases is immaterial. The Group has
not yet assessed what other adjustments, if any, are necessary for
example because of the change in the definition of the lease term
and the different treatment of variable lease payments and of
extension and termination options. It is therefore not yet possible to
estimate the amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities that
will have to be recognised on adoption of the new standard and how
this may affect the Group’s profit or loss and classification of cash
flows going forward.

n‘/T\

hY
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REBZETF @)

Wit ()

ERUBREENE 1635 AR
HBHH

BRMBREENE16RENF—K
F—ARM - AREREBEMBER
BNt RS BEME e ERE
FHREHEREABANMBMRRE
MR R LR AE (REEE
MERE) IXNRSNES A EARE
RARK - EERnEinEEaEH
HE-HEANEHEERTERERR
o

7

REMKTIEZXEASERLENE (
REBA)ZBFTRIE -NRERS K
SEZ TUBHEEROREOREE
5,160,0007T * A 5= Bl {5+ $1 78 H SR (B
ERESENTEL TER - AEE R
REPEAEHMEA Mt AE (MF) -
Bl AR EERz BREBURTR
AENREREREIDREE Z TRE
I o F L R BE B AT A R AT T 22 B
BUARAZEAREAERAEAES
HARE AR R & AR 2 B
BARRERED R

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group L\mited BRERESEERAT

Annual Report 2018-19 —E—\E—NWFFEHRE

117



118

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(i)

(i)

New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations have been issued
but are not effective and have not been early
adopted (Continued)

Note (a): (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)
Date of adoption by the Group

This standard is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date. The Group intends
to apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

Apart from aforementioned HKFRS 16, the Board of Directors
("Board”) are in the process of assessing the financial impact of
the adoption of the above new standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations. The Board will adopt the new
standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretations
when they become effective.

Change in accounting policy

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
the related interpretations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B R AR M EE

2 353:Eaﬁ+ﬁkﬂ%ﬁ%3z(ma
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) EFfBHRERMEER 2
(%)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

EiEEEE (@)

(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued) (iii)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

The Group has chosen to apply HKFRS 15
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of the
initial application of this standard being recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 April 2018.
Any difference at the date of initial application
is recognised in the opening retained profits and
comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected
to apply the standard retrospectively only to
contracts that are not completed at 1 April 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 and the
related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following
major sources which arise from contracts with
customers:

Trading of commodities and chemical products

o Trading of petroleum products

BB BB EERE 155
[EFE#WKa] (%)

AEBEDBRIZEREASTS
SR EERIEISH e
RERARBEUMNEH
ERERERABE (=2
—N\NE@EA—RB)ERR
BIRIER BT EEEY
R HMR B % T F FER -
MW EHLEBRERETE
Bl o A o AR 4R B S B 7S R
R FE 155 M BRI

AEEREREHR T
—N\FEMA— B EARTERE
AHEBRPREASEEN - H
It o B T EEEUE B AT BE R w4
EHEIRIE B A SR 2ERE

18 R B A G EAFEN
FRAEREARR R
BEREITHR

REE B T 2HRRHER

BEAHI

s EEEmMmRAMCIER

s hLHEMESH

e Exploitation and sale of crude oil . R K 85 5 RO

0 Leasing of investment properties . HEXREMFE

0 Money Lending, securities brokerage and asset . ER-BEALLEKE
management business EERER

. Others . HAth
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 353:5u+ﬂhﬁﬁ%${(

(b) EFfBHRERMEER 2

(b) Changes in accounting policies and

120

disclosures (Continued)

(%)

(iij) Change in accounting policy (Continued) (i) B BEEE (&)
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with BB B HREERIE 159
Customers” (Continued) [EF&A) K e (&)
Information about the Group's performance FArSEBRARERER
obligations and the accounting policies resulting BRI E LR 155 T
from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in Note 5 B BRENER S B
and Note 2(z) respectively. B FES R 2(2) B 8% -
Summary of effects arising from initial application of EPNIEEN G =
HKFRS 15 EISFER C FEME
The following adjustments were made to the IATREDIBRR _Z—\F
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement WA —HZERE MBI R
of financial position at 1 April 2018. Line items that %ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@Z%%ﬁﬁﬁf’Fﬁ i
were not affected by the changes have not been XEPT B EEARER
included. Comparative information is not restated. BERN - LLBRER KR TUE
5] o
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 March 1 April
2018 Reclassification 2018
REEBHK
%A
SRR F155 R
—E-N\E —E-N\E
=B=+—H A—B2
BEZREE BHAE BRMEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BET T BT T
Accruals and other payables FEETFRIE R E A R
RAE
— Receipts in advance from —HREFPBK
customers 13,874 (13,029) 845
Contract liabilities SR OE=E - 13,029 13,029
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B R AR M EE

2 353:Eaﬁ+ﬁkﬂ%ﬁ%3z(ma

n\/T\

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) EFfBHRRMEER 2D
(%)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(iii) EFrHEEE (@)

(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

BB BB EERE 155
[EFE#WKa] (%)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of BRERE BB E AR
HKFRS 15 (Continued) FISHER T ERE ()
As at 1 April 2018, receipts in advance from —\FWEA—A" %

customers of HK$13,029,000 in respect of contracts
with customers previously included in accruals and
other payables were reclassified to contract liabilities.

Determining whether the Group is acting as an
agent or a principal under HKFRS 15 differs from
HKAS 18 as a result of the shift from the risk-and-
reward approach to transfer-of-control approach.
Under the HKAS 18, the Group concluded that

AT ET AFERT I8 & E Ath JE <
FEZRBBEFZBEEN
TEUR FRIE B #513,029,0007T
EEFHDEEZEANEE-

REBEBBMEHRELLF15
HEEAEBER L IFRRE
ARZRFEA EBEBEFTE
AIFE 185 M A 2 TR A
B Ko [ 3 77 A 8 AR PR il 4

it was a principal in the transaction when it has BEH L BRBEEEGER
exposure to the significant risks, including credit F189 NEBERBEER
risk, and rewards associated with the sales of goods. %%E}\ﬁ/\*%qﬂgﬁi‘éﬁﬂ
The Group considers several indicators under the S (PREEERR)REE

transfer-of-control approach under HKFRS 15 and
determines that the Group is acting as an agent
in trading of commodities and chemical products,
although the Group still exposes to credit risk in
these sales transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

This change in accounting policies resulted in a
reduction of revenue by HK$2,074,914,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2019. Revenue from trading
of commodities and chemical products reported
on gross basis for the year ended 31 March 2018
amounted to HK$5,536,378,000.

The application of HKFRS 15 has had no other
material impact on the Group’s accumulated losses
as at 1 April 2018 and the loss for the year ended 31
March 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B R T MIET
2 FESTBEBE (&

n\/T\

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) EFfEHRRBREERN 2D

(b) Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (Continued) (%)

(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued) (i) B BEEE (&)
Disclosure of the estimated impact on the amounts RZFE—NFEMA—HERER
reported in respect of the year ended 31 March BB TS & BRI 15554
2019 as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 BE—_F—NF=H=+4—
April 2018 HiF FEEHE B2 15T

HEZEE

TREMRABT BB RS
EREISHEAEEEE—
E-NFE=A=+—RIF
F“Zﬁv?/m\@ﬂ&i&%ZﬁE -7

The following tables summarise the estimated
impact of adoption of HKFRS 15 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2019, by comparing the amounts reported

under HKFRS 15 in these consolidated financial BEBRBIELRETBR
statements with estimates of the hypothetical EEF”FETJ%%E B 755 i 5 2E R
amounts that would have been recognised under FBISHER ST HBIE

HKAS 18 if those superseded standards had BAESETERIF18RERZ
continued to apply to 2018 instead of HKFRS 15. BRRES\ B HTIELR
These tables show only those line items impacted by (M2 EHEA 2 ERF R
the adoption of HKFRS 15: B AN mEERE 1558
BEERBRN-_ZE—-N\F)-
S REBEARIRNES
SRS ERIB 1SR E Y

B A :
Difference:
Estimated
Amounts impact of
reported in  Hypothetical adoption of
accordance amounts under HKFRS 15
with HKFRS 15 HKAS 18 in 2019
EZ8 R
REEBEHK —E-NEFREH
BREER BHEEHELN BEEUBERS
BISHEH2  EIBKETZ  ERIEISHZ
£H8 BEREE fhat %
<A> <B> <A> - <B>
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ko BT BT
Line items in the consolidated REBEEZ-_ZT—NF=
statement of profit or loss for A=+—H8LtHFE
the year ended 31 March 2019 24 ABREKRTZ
impacted by the adoption of RN E B HHRE
HKFRS 15: HERIFISHREZ
IHRE :
Revenue Wiz 105,502 2,180,416 (2,074,914)
Cost of sales 85 B (35,436) (2,110,350) 2,074,914
The significant differences arise as a result of the BAEREBR LM EFTI
changes in accounting policies described above. REENFTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NT\

2

(c) Subsidiaries

(i)  Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is

exposed to,

or has rights to, variable returns from

its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the

entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

a. Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or

other

assets are acquired. The consideration

transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

fair values of the assets transferred

liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquired business

equity interests issued by the Group

fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)  Consolidation (Continued)

a.

Business combinations (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:

(i) consideration transferred,

(i) amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquired entity, and

(i) acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquired
entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.
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Subsidiaries (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Disposals of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in OCI are reclassified to
the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased

has significant influence but not control,

or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in an associate includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the consolidated
income statement where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group'’s share of results in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Associates (Continued)

(e)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of results of an associate’ in the consolidated

income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group's financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in an associate.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in an associate
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Executive
Directors of the Company that makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).
The Company’s functional currency is United States
dollars (“US$") and since the Company'’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
the Board of Directors considered that it is more
appropriate to adopt HK$ as the Group’s and the
Company’s presentation currency in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within “other
gains/(losses), net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as financial assets at FVTOCI are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
consolidated statement of financial position;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Exchange translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprises mainly plant
and machinery, furniture, fixture and equipment, motor
vehicles, oil properties (Note 2(h)) and construction-in-
progress, is stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation, other than oil properties, is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Plant and machinery 5-11 years

Furniture, fixture and 3-11 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 4-8 years

Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction of
buildings, the costs of plant and machinery, installation,
testing and other direct costs. No depreciation is made
on construction-in progress until the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NT\

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(k)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the consolidated

within “other gains/(losses), net”

income statement.
Oil properties
(i)  Exploration and evaluation

Oil exploration and evaluation expenditures are
accounted for using the “successful efforts” method
of accounting. Costs are accumulated on a field-
by-field basis. Geological and geophysical costs are
expensed as incurred. Costs directly associated with
an exploration well, and exploration and property
are capitalised to
property, plant and equipment or intangible assets
according to the nature of the expenditure incurred
until the determination of reserves is evaluated. If
it is determined that commercial discovery has not
been achieved, these costs are charged to expense.

leasehold acquisition costs,

Once commercial reserves are found and production
has commenced, the capitalised, exploration and
evaluation assets are tested for impairment and
transferred to development tangible and intangible
No depreciation and/or amortisation is
charged during the exploration and evaluation

assets.

phase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Oil properties (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Development assets

Expenditure on the construction, installation or
completion of infrastructure facilities such as
platforms, pipelines and the drilling of commercially
proven development wells, is capitalised within
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets according to nature. When development is
completed on a specific field, it is transferred to oil
properties or intangible assets. No depreciation and/
or amortisation is charged during the development
phase.

Oil properties

Oil properties are aggregated exploration and
evaluation tangible assets, and development
expenditures associated with the production of
proved reserves.

Oil properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation, and impairment losses.

Depreciation of the oil properties is recognised using
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NT\

2

(h) Oil properties (Continued)

(iv) Impairment — exploration and evaluation assets

)

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for
impairment when reclassified to development
assets, or whenever facts and circumstances indicate
impairment. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the exploration and evaluation
assets’ carrying amount exceeds their recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the exploration and evaluation assets’ fair value
less costs of disposal and their value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, the exploration
and evaluation assets subject to testing are grouped
with existing cash-generating units of production
fields that are located in the same geographical
region.

Impairment — development assets, oil properties
and plant and machineries

Development assets, oil properties and plant and
machineries are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

()

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group. Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to
write off the cost of investment properties over the shorter
of the term of the lease and 50 years, using the straight-
line method.

Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of consideration transferred
over the Group’s interest in net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NT\

2

()]

Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

Exploitation licences

Exploitation licences acquired are shown at historical
cost and have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation.

Amortisation of the exploitation licences is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, which is determined as the
remaining contractual life of the oil exploitation
licenses. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relations have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method of ten years over the expected
life of the customer relationship.

Others

Licences to run the insurance brokerage, securities
brokerage and asset management are recognised as
intangible assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position. They have indefinite useful lives
and tested annually for impairment and carried at its
cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
(i)  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

3 those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n‘/T\

2

)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model
in which the investment is held. For investments in
equity instruments, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the financial
assets at FVTOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risk and rewards of
ownership.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL
are expensed in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Financial assets (Continued)
(ij)  Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the asset is
derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

n‘/T\

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Financial assets (Continued)
(ij)  Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVTOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue
and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit and loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to the consolidated
income statement and recognised in “other
gains/(losses), net”. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or financial assets at FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured
at fair value through profit or loss and is not
part of a hedging relationship is recognised
in profit or loss and presented net in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other
gains/(losses), net’ in the period in which it
arises. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in the ‘finance income’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present gains and losses
on fair value changes of equity investments in OCl,
there is no subsequent reclassification of gains and
losses on fair value changes to the consolidated
income statement. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in the consolidated
income statement as other income when the Group's
right to receive payments is established.

Gains and losses on the fair value of financial assets
at FVTPL are recognised in “other gains/(losses), net”
in the consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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n‘/T\

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets

(n)

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables, see Note 22 for further details.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the Group, and a failure to make contractual
payments for a period of greater than 1 year past due.

For loans receivable and other financial assets, the Group
measures the loss allowance equal to 12 month ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition.

Impairment losses on trade receivables, loans receivable
and other financial assets are presented as net impairment
losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the
same line item.

Inventories

Inventories represent mainly finished goods for resale and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Trade receivables, deposits, other receivables
and loans receivable

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. Loans receivable are loans granted to
customers in the ordinary course of business. If collection/
realisation of trade receivables, deposits, other receivables
and loans receivable is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables, deposits, other receivables and loans
receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Client trust bank balance

The Group has classified in the consolidated statement
of financial position the clients’ deposits as client trust
bank balances in the current assets and recognised a
corresponding trade payables to the respective clients
under the current liabilities.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new

shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Trade payables, accruals and other payables

(t)

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables, accruals and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses and
included in finance costs in consolidated income statement
in the year in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n‘/T\

2

(v) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date
in the countries where the Group and an associate
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred

income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)

Annual Report 2018-19 —Z—\&—

NEEERE

2 EE;ZE ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂ%y (ma

(v) ENEARIEEFTSH (4

(i)

(ii)

BRI P 13 8

BERFT1S i 2 B TR I B 75
%%%E%F$$@&%%

Rl R E R RRIRA
m:%aﬁ%aagﬁ%z
MEE -BREXRBERB
BEPIREATRR ZIERE
B EmBI R 2 AR - WE
BAER TRIEER AR
SRR 2 B & B
&

EFE P 158

A EEEEEEE

EEFRSHAAREERE
EMBBEZHRERERAR
Bk 2 REEESE 2 L
ERER AT HEREHR
FREXREBEZNTHE
BRI T HER HIRE
BRREERS (TEEX
Baf) FHEEXRARYZ
VTHER MEXHETF
BeitBERERT RN
BE RITERRRR EE R
BERERERBARE BB
RIS R E LR AW
BRZECHMEHEEZR
HELEFREHRABEEER
RS EEAZHE (R
1) i EE 5

EEPTIS A E(ERL A BE

2R IR FE SR04 1 1 B bt A i
RER =R mMMER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally, the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference for associates. Only
where there is an agreement in place that gives
the Group the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the associate’s undistributed
profit is not recognised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n‘/T\

2

(w) Retirement benefit costs

The Group maintains a number of defined contribution

plans in the countries in which it operates, the assets
of the retirement benefit are generally held in separate
trustees-administered funds. The retirement plans are
generally funded by payments from employees and by the
Group.

(i)

(i)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on
a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e AR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Share-based payment transactions

(i)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees or
suppliers as consideration for equity instruments
(options or warrants) of the Group. The fair value
of the employee or suppliers services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options or warrants granted:

° including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options or warrants that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n‘/T\

2

(x) Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees
or suppliers may provide services in advance of
the grant date and therefore the grant date fair
value is estimated for the purposes of recognising
the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options or
warrants that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original
if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

estimates,

When the options or warrants are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity in the
Company'’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Provisions

(2)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been
reliably estimated.

Provisions, including those arising from the contractual
obligation specified in the service concession arrangement
to maintain or restore the infrastructure before it is handed
over to the granter, are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect is material).
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Revenue from contracts with customers (upon EFEEH W (#R1EHE2(b)(iii)
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with ZBERXEHE B BEHEE
transitions in Note 2(b)(iii)) BIE1555#)
Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when R IRE P B i s 2 A 281558
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when REBN S E ST BAE T (B
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular RERFEORETHEBNE DK
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. PR ey [1EhliE] % T % PE)
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A performance obligation represents a good or service (or B EEE —EHREE MRS
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of (F—#HERIRBE) I —FRIK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2(b)(iii)) (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Group's unconditional right to consideration,

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FTESHBEHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(z) BRUWEHE (&

(z) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2(b)(iii)) (Continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group
is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to
be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer. When the Group acts as a principal, it recognises
revenue in the gross amount of consideration to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for the specified good
or service transferred.

Indicators taken into account by management of the
Group to determine whether the Group acts as a principal
or an agent include, but are not limited to, the following:

(@ whether the entity is primarily responsible for
fulfilling the promise to provide the specified good
or service;

(b)  whether the entity has inventory risk before the
specified good or service has been transferred to a
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customer or after transfer of control to the customer ?’ XFEREAGEGFER
(for example, if the customer has a right of return); B (Bl MEFPHEERE
#E)

() whether the entity has discretion in establishing the
price for the specified good or service, indicating
that the entity has the ability to direct the use of that
good or service and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits; and

(d)  whether the entity bears the customer’s credit risk
for the amount receivable from the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(z) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2(b)(iii)) (Continued)

Principal versus agent (Continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service
by another party. In this case, the Group does not control
the specified good or service provided by another party
before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified
goods or services to be provided by the other party.

Sales of commodities and chemical products

Revenue from sales of commodities and chemical products
are recognised on a net basis as the Group only involves in
arranging for the provision of commodities and the Group
does not obtain the control over the goods before passing
on to customers.

Revenue is recognised when goods are transferred to
customers which are taken to be the point in time when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the customer’s specific
location on which the customer’s obtain control of the
goods.

Sales of petroleum products

Revenue from sales of petroleum products are recognised
on a gross basis as the Group has he control over the
petroleum products before passing on to customers and is
therefore exposed to inventory risk.

Revenue is recognised when goods are transferred to
customers which are taken to be the point in time when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the customer’s specific
location on which the customer’s obtain control of the
goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2(b)(iii)) (Continued)

Principal versus agent (Continued)
Commission income for security brokerage

Brokerage and commission income are recognised on
a gross basis at the rate agreed in the contact with
customers at the point when the transaction of securities
trading is completed.

Commission income for insurance brokerage

Brokerage and commission income are recognised on
a gross basis at the rate agreed in the contact with
customers at the point when the terms of the insurance
policy have been agreed contractually by the insurer
and policyholder, and the insurer has a present right to
payment from the policyholder.

Rental income

Revenue from rental income from investment properties
is recognised in the consolidated income statement in
accordance with HKAS 17 on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below. The Group bases
its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NT\

2

(2)

(aa)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018) (Continued)

(i) Revenue from sale of crude oil, commodities and
chemical products is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.

(i)  Revenue from rental income from investment
properties is recognised in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(iii)  Revenue from money lending and interest income is
recognised using the effective interest method.

(iv)  Revenue on financial services from brokerage and
commission is recognised once duties under the
service contracts are performed.

(v)  Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. The respective leased assets are included in
the balance sheet based on their nature.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The
financial instruments by categories held by the Group as at
31 March 2019 and 2018 are set out as follows:

B R AR M EE

n\/T\

3 HBERER

(a)

Bt %5 R B R 3%

AEEMNERETSHE Y M SHE
g (BEEIINERR A TFER X
R\ B~ IR & A R b R B E
ﬁEA/'i) {EEH &muibﬁiﬂM#
ZEVBER - AR B EEER
ERGEEPRESHBTISHT
FABAE = - W B R IR S AN R = B

BRANBEINNTZE -A&H
RZB-NERZF-NEZA

St HfRBAZERTARE
AIEFNEAT :

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T EEEF T
Financial assets TREE
At amortised cost R SHR AR 669,140 956,851
At FVTOC| RN ESEREAM
2 HE T IR 1,952 4,079
At FVTPL RAVEERER
I AR 7,054 74,318
678,146 1,035,248
Financial liabilities at amortised cost % #45k AN 71 8k 2.
cRaE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M RIAE 86,453 79,673
Bank borrowings RITEHE 32,182 29,477
Bonds e 684,552 619,771
803,187 728,921
Management monitors and manages the financial risk EEESBOTEARREERLREE

relating to the Group through internal risk assessment
which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of
risks. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NT\

BRI

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BIHEREE
(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) () MBEEREZE @
(i)  Market risk (i) wHHEE
Foreign currency risk management SR R B
The Group conducts its treasury functions and REBLASME#EITHER T
maintains certain cash and bank balances, bank ERREE THE RRITHE
borrowings and bonds in foreign currencies, g RITEERES At
hence is exposed to foreign currency risk. The HEHINER R - NE B FE R
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely T B RHNEIE R &
monitoring the movements of the foreign currency BB EINERR - AN EE
exchange rates. The Group currently does not B B0 A INEE SR IR o A
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, i BB RN R By
management monitors foreign exchange exposure REREBRERERLETE
and will consider hedging significant foreign RINE B o
currency exposure should the need arises.
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign REBSNESENEEE
currency denominated monetary assets and E;REBaERRE RS
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as BREENT
follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE 2
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZB-hE Z—ZT-)\F ZEB-RAFE ZZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT T
HK$ ot 660 75,094 14,819 30,335
us$ ETT 42,097 1), 191 - =
Renminbi (“RMB") ARE(TAREK]) 534 290,818 53,165 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group's loss in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a
5% (2018: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A positive/(negative) number below indicates an
increase/(decrease) in post-tax loss where RMB,
HK$ and other currencies strengthen against the
relevant functional currency of the Group entities,
that is US$. As the HK$ is pegged to the USS$,
management considers that the Group’s foreign
currency exposures from the HK$ with respect to the
US$ is relatively insignificant. For a 5% (2018: 5%)
weakening of RMB and other currencies against the
relevant functional currency of the Group entities,
that is US$, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax loss.

n\/T\

B R AR M EE

3 BIRERER (&)

(a) MBEBREE &)

(i

—F-hF
HK$’000
BET R

TEE R (E)
I B E

TEERERAREEY S
AR ) FE S 3 R
AR BERE TN EE S
851 N2 S -

FREDMEBRRBEREED
SNEEHEERIER MR F
RIFEERW5% (ZT— N\
F 5% ) B m A E R
o THIE/ (B)EBERTR
AR B REMEE
HEEAASEEENIEE
B TEE R 7 AIBRTR &
BiEBgEm CRd) -
BRRBEE R T B8

EBRA AEBBEEHE
TR A 2 SINEE B B 48 4 1k
MomARBREMEEY
HEAEEEENIIEE
BETEERTES% (ZF
—\F 5% ) ' BIBRF1Z /&5
BHEHREEBRROY
5,

2019 2018
—JTEE
HK$'000

BT

RMB ARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bonds (Note 33) and loans
receivable (Note 23). The Group is also exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to bank
balances and variable-rate bank borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") arising from the
Group's HK$ denominated borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
borrowings. The analysis is prepared assuming
the bank borrowings outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point (2018: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease for variable-rate bank
borrowings is used for interest rate sensitivity
analysis and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)  Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

(M

Cash flow interest rate risk

As at 31 March 2019, the Group is
to cash flow interest rate risk in

exposed
relation

to variable-rate bank borrowings carries at
floating interest rate at HIBOR plus certain
basis points per annum. If interest rates had
been 50 basis points (2018: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 March 2019 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$161,000 (2018:

HK$147,000).

There is also no material cash flow interest rate

risk in relation to bank balances.

n\/T\

(a)

B R AR M EE

3 HBERE

B (#®)

B EREEE (#)

(i) TEEE &)

FIE G REE W ()

(1)

e RENXER

—E-hEF=AH
+—H A&EEE
el BIZEARITHE
E/EMEFHETHE
bi % TR )<
2P ERITEER
ZHERFEER -
fits I & EF /T K&
SOMEEE (ZE—N
& 50MEEE) MATE
ﬁ@‘f““l%ﬁﬁ%T\

CAEBEREEZ
TANEE AN —
HIEFEEZRBIES
BEIE R K
#¥161,000T (==
— \4F : B #147,000
JT) °

%

AEBEEGRRT
RBRNBEARERE
A = Ef -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NT\

3

BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)  Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

)

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group's bonds and loans receivable were
issued at fixed rates and expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. As at 31 March
2019, the Group has bonds of approximately
HK$684,552,000 (2018: HK$619,771,000)
and loans receivable of approximately
HK$62,351,000 (2018: HK$73,933,000)
carried at fixed rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
(2018: 50 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit derived from fixed-
rate bonds for the year ended 31 March 2019
would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$11,968,000 (2018: HK$7,767,000) as a
result of decrease/increase in fair value of fixed
rate bonds. The effect of changes in interest
rate on amortised amounts of loans receivable
is not significant.
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BEEREEE (#@)
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FI R GRS T (4#)

@)

ATEFNERR

$EIZ1%&$%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

0}

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities and unquoted
equity securities. Decisions to buy or sell listed
equity securities are based on daily monitoring of
the performance of individual securities compared to
index of relevant stock markets and other industry
indicators.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period.

If equity prices were 10% higher/lower:

- loss for the year would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$465,000
(2018:HK$4,675,000),as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL.

No sensitivity analysis is presented for the Group's
investments in unquoted equity securities which are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period.

n\/T\

3 BrigE B

B R AR M EE

A""" =
N E)

(a) BH¥EREZE @

0]

5 E (&)

H it (B 15 /22

AEERERE EHERAE
5 N IF b T AR AN R 5 17 D
EEEREAR BE LMK
RBFHREDRBEEZHE
FR A I 8 7 H < 3R B AR B AX
EMS LR EEAMT
RIRRRIEL-

HE DT
AT R BURE DT ERBERN
R HRE R A B AR B B 5T

Eo

fifd Bz A B &=
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BB R

- MBREAFESEBAE
HIEZERMEEY
NTFEZEEHEHF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NT\

3
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BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)  Credit risk

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which may cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 94%
(2018: 92%) and 96% (2018: 99%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group's largest
customer within the commodity trading segment
and the five largest customers within the commodity
trading and financial services segment respectively.
There is no other significant concentration risk
during the year.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BEERERE (E)

(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) B EREZE @

(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i) FEEE &)

Cash and bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks or financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies or state-owned banks in the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC").

Other receivables

The Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECL of other receivables. For those
balances expected to have significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
apply lifetime ECL based on aging for classes with
different credit risk characteristics and exposures.
Management makes periodic collective assessments
as well as individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience.

Ko RR{THA

HAR S F19 HEBRRE
EAREBE TR EENR
MRTTE B B EEA
RAMB([HE]) BB
RIT - BRBDESNEER
BRAMR -

H 1t fEW A H

AREBEDAAESE R 1218 A TEH
EEEBNSETEHEME
WORIE 2 R E « 5T
RERETHREERBEZE
HEINEEREE - AL EIRRER
R EETREERBRE
Kl O SR B BR B & A T8 A5
EEFE-BEEREBE
EELSRBELBREEM
JRE Ui SR IB /) BT R 1B 14 TR AV
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

3

BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

B ERER (&)

B EREE (&

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a)

(ii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) 1=EREME &)

Other receivables (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, included in other receivables
are refundable rental deposits and receivables
from securities brokers of aggregate gross carrying
amounts of HK$7,831,000 (2018: HK$9,740,000)
which expose the Group to credit risk. Allowance for
credit losses of HK$ 1,148,000 (2018: HK$1,947,000)
was provided for certains other receivables since
the management of the Group considers the
probability of default is significant in view that these
amounts have been overdue for a long period of
time and accordingly, full impairment is provided
for these assets. The credit risk on the remaining
balances are insignificant as the probability of
default is considered minimal after assessing
the counterparties’ financial background and
creditability.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect

E e JEW N IE (48)

—hEZA=+—
H EMmERZKERET
REBESES RERE
K AREZ REBTES
#7,831,0007T (= "—/\
7 1#9,740,0007T) * &
g @Z$EI%EQEHI&
fmﬁ/\ux#a'/\l/a@/ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁaﬂﬁ
AEBEBEERBE
%@ﬂéé’l‘i%ékvaﬁ#ﬁ%
T H i fE U SRIB TR S #E
1,148,0007T ( ZZE— N\ :
75 #1,947,0007T ) Z 5B
BREE At BEHESEE
ERBGHRAME KT ER
SEFHZHBESRER
EERBEH RN
MEIRFIBEZ EERRIET
EpN

B B A EL A R IR 2 &

of other receivables during the year is as follows: BRESBECEHNT:
2019 2018
—g-ng —E\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At beginning of year F 4 1,947 831
Write-offs (Note) sy (BsE) (799) (513)
Recognition for the year FERNER - 1,629
At end of year FR 1,148 1,947
Note: P 3 <
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the management of the RBE_Z-—NF=ZA=+—HILFE

A ZIS%E BERR BERAEER

Group considered that certain other receivables which have been

fully impaired in previous years with gross carrying amount of
HK$799,000 (2018:HK$513,000) are irrecoverable in view of the
legal actions taken by the Group in previous years and accordingly,
the gross carrying amount and the respective loss allowance of the
other receivables are written off during the current year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

For trade receivables, management assesses the
collectability of the trade receivables regularly and on
a case-by-case basis for the determination of any loss
allowance for the trade receivables by taking into
account the customers’ financial condition, current
creditworthiness, past settlement history, business
relationship with the Group and other factors such
as current market conditions.

The Group’s largest customer within the commodity
trading segment which has a significant outstanding
trade receivable balance due to the Group with
gross carrying amount of HK$711,733,000 (2018:
HK$551,620,000) as at 31 March 2019 was
assessed for allowance for credit losses individually.
The management assessed for the allowance for
credit losses for lifetime by estimating default
rate taking into account historical and forward
looking information. As at 31 March 2019,
impairment allowance of HK$218,000,000 (2018:
HK$47,000,000) was made on the trade receivables
due from the Group's largest customer. In addition,
the trade receivables were guaranteed by personal
guarantee of the director of the Group's largest
customer since the guarantee agreement entered
into in September 2019. In this regard, the directors
of the Company are in the opinion that the provision
of loss allowance is sufficient and not excessive.
Subsequent to 31 March 2019, with management’s
follow up actions to chase the long-outstanding
receivable, trade receivable due from the Group's
largest customer with carrying amount of
HK$523,291,000 has been settled by the customer,
representing 74% of the gross carrying amount of
trade receivables due from the customer as at 31
March 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

an\

3

BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

For the remaining debtors, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL, as the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significant different loss patterns for different
customer segments and the allowance for credit
losses based on the past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group's customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
due from customers other than the largest customer,
which are assessed based on provision matrix as at
31 March 2019 and 2018 within lifetime ECL:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B R AR M EE

3 BIERER (#)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

As 31 March 2019

(a)

Expected Gross carrying

BEEREEE (#@)
EEERE (&)

EZENE (&)

R=B-h&E=A=+-A

Allowance for

loss rate amount creditlosses
AHEBERE AEREE FEBREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T T
Customers other than the largest 7 4 [B 78 51 % % B
customer which the Group IRZ2ER
expects that they will pay on (BRRBEPBRIN :
time:
Neither past due nor impaired  BERBHEINAKRE 0% 7 _
Past due for less than 30 days  #Hi 308 0% 6,377 _
Past due for more than 30 days & Ei#EiB30H 8
but less than 90 days L H90H 0% 209 -
Past due for more than 90 days i #HE90H (2
but less than one year PR—F 18.28% 19,424 3,550
Past due for more than one year #EIHBB—F 100% 46 46
26,063 3,596
Credit-impaired customer other  EEHERF
than the largest customer: (BRARBEEBRIN
Past due for more than one year #HiFEE—F 100% 22,774 22,774
48,837 26,370
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umlted xviﬁm KEARAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BEEMRERE (E)
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MEEKEZ @
(ii) ~ Credit risk (Continued) (i) EERE &)
Trade receivables (Continued) B ZEWKIE (48)
As at 31 March 2018 RZZE—NF=ZA=+—H

Expected  Gross carrying  Allowance for

loss rate amount credit losses
BHEE X MEREE FEEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Customers other than the largest 7 4 B 78 51 % 1% B
customer which the Group IRZERP
expects that they will pay on (ZRRBEFPBRIN
time:
Neither past due nor impaired ~ BEFRBEA TR A RE 0% 25 =
Past due for less than 30 days w308 0.18% 5,348 10
Past due for more than 30 days & Ei#EiB30H 8
but less than 90 days L H90H 0% 18 -
Past due for more than 90 days @ HAfB#B90H (2
but less than one year PR—F 15.66% 18,890 2,958
Past due for more than one year #Hi#2:@—4F 100% 2 2
24,283 2,970
Credit-impaired customer other  EEHERF
than the largest customer: (BRRBEPBIN
Past due for more than 90 days ~ #EA#B:@90H 18
but less than one year PR 100% 696 696
Past due for more than one year BB —F 100% 22,078 22,078
22,774 22,774

47,057 25,744

1 70 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

IIVT\

B R AR M EE

3 BEERERE (E)

(a) MHEBEE &)

(ii)

Movements in the allowance for credit losses during

the year are as follows:

EEERE (&)

B ZEWHIE (#)

ER EEBRREZED
mT

HK$'000

SR IT

At 1 April 2017 RZZE—+tFMA—H 44,843

Allowance for credit losses EEEBERE 38,040

Write-off (Note) sy (KisE) (10,139)
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R=ZFE-—NF=A=+—8H

N_ZE—-—NFMHA—H 72,744

Allowance for credit losses EEEERE 171,626

At 31 March 2019 —NWE=RA=1T—H 244,370

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the management of the
Group considered that certain trade receivables which have been
fully impaired in previous years with gross carrying amount of
HK$10,139,000 (2019: nil) are irrecoverable in view of the legal
action taken by the Group in previous years and accordingly, the
gross carrying amount and the respective loss allowance of the trade

receivables are written off during the current year.

OF%

RBE-F-/\F=ZA=+—HILFE
N AEEEERERR ERAEER
BEFEMRMZETE RBEF
EEBEBREZE THEGEBERERZ
4R A %10,139,0007T (=T — A
F ) AR E - E it B 5 EAR
Bz BAREERARERBREN A FE
HgH

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group L\mlted BRERESEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

3

BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Loans receivable from money lending business

Loans receivable were made to borrowers with an
appropriate credit history. As at 31 March 2019,
loans receivable amounted to HK$49,938,000 (2018:
HK$48,180,000) are secured by unlisted equity
securities while the remaining loans receivable are
unsecured. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management has reviewed the recoverable
amounts of the loans receivable regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment is made for irrecoverable
amounts. The management has also assessed
whether the borrowers have satisfactory credit
quality with reference to financial background,
current creditworthiness, collateral and past payment
of each borrower. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on
loans receivable is significantly reduced.

The management of the Company catergorised the
loans receivable from money lending business into
mainly three categories; (a) either not yet overdue
or overdue for less than 30 days and not credit-
impaired and (b) overdue within 31 days and 60 days
and not credit impaired and (c) overdue more than
60 days and/or credit-impaired. The management
of the Company determines when loans are credit-
impaired and concluded that, based on the Group's
past experience in money lending business and
relevant forward looking information available to the
Group, loans with more than 60 days past due are
considered as credit impaired.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
Annual Report 2018-19 —Z— N\E—hWFEFERE
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B ERER (&)

(a)

MEEREE (#)

(ii)

EERE (&)
FKEMEEF ERE

ERERREAEEERER
R ZIERAEH R ZF
—NF=A=+—H KK
B 7% #49,938,0007T (=
=T — )\ 4 : 748,180,000

TL) A JE E TR AR H 1E I
M T KB R AR
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BT B BB TR
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FEERARTABS AR
ENEEE R -BUME
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W ERZEERBRE KR
PR o
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SRR ERGEA=KRE
LRI - (a) i) Ak 18 HA 5 e AR
DR30B BT REERE
(b)#E1 #8318 £260H R B I
ﬂi{*““ﬁﬁ&(c)tﬁﬁtﬂm
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BIFERERE (E)
(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) B EEEZE (@)
(i)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) EEEE &)

Loans receivable from money lending business KEKEEEZ EWE
(Continued) (#&)

The following table provides information about the TREHEEEREEREKE
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for loans Rz EERKRMIEREEES
receivable from money lending business as follows: BER:

As at 31 March 2019
R-ZB-hE=A=+—H

Gross carrying Loss Net carrying
amount allowance amount
HEREE EREE HREEE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal credit rating R EETR BT BT BT T
Either not yet overdue or overdue & 7 #5380 £
for less than 30 days and not L30B8 EI
credit-impaired REERME 50,894 2,284 48,610
Overdue within 31 days to 60 days #15i31HZ60H K
but not credit-impaired BYREERE 295 - 295
Overdue more than 60 days WERRIB60RA Kk
and/or credit-impaired EERME 5,667 834 4,833
56,856 3,118 53,738
As at 31 March 2018
RZZE-NF=ZR=+—H
Gross carrying Loss Net carrying
amount allowance amount
HEREE BERE REFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal credit rating NEBEETR BET T BETT BT
Either not yet overdue or overdue & 7 i £ 8§ 81
for less than 30 days and not L H30H1E
credit-impaired YRIEERE 14,528 968 13,560
Overdue within 31 days to 60 days #1531 H £60H A
but not credit-impaired B R ESRE - - -
Overdue more than 60 days AEBB60R K&,/
and/or credit-impaired EEmMME 43,472 6,399 37,073

58,000 7,367 50,633

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umlted RER=ESEERLAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

B ERER (&)

(a) MBEBREE &)

(ii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) EEREE &)
Loans receivable from money lending business K E K EEEZ EWE
(Continued) (%)
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on TERAES IR R IR R ES ATE
historical observed default rates over the expected STERARE S BRELN X
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward- FLAMEE - W BAENE T
looking information that is available without undue MBS, 2% ) BN A S Z
cost or effort. The grouping is reqularly reviewed by AT E 14 & BHE L % - Z4
management to ensure relevant information about BB EEEE B l«/UJE
specific debtors is updated. REMBEEEBAZBBEE
BB & ko
Changes in the allowance for credit losses for loans REREEG 2 BEERZ
receivable from money lending business are mainly EEEERECEHHEE
due to changes in expected credit loss rate at each EHHAX%EXZ?EHEPEEETE
stage and changes in gross carrying amounts of R B REEWE R AR
respective loans receivable are as follows: HEZZHINT:
Either not
yet overdue Overdue Overdue
or overdue within more than
for less than 31 days to 60 days
30 days and 60 days but and/or
not credit-  not credit- credit-
impaired impaired impaired Total
i KRB R
BEOR AYMAZE CAHER
30REYE 60AREY 60HE
FERE EFERE HAEERE L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T AT IT BETT
Gross carrying amount R =ZE— N F
at 31 March 2019 = H=gn=El
BERHEE 50,894 295 5,667 56,856
Gross carrying amount R =& — /\F
at 31 March 2018 =H=+—H%
HWREE 14,528 = 43,472 58,000

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERAR MR

B R b IR (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Loans receivable from money lending business

4= AR

(a) MBEBREE &)

(ii)

EEERE (&)

KEHEFEZ EWEX

(Continued) (%)
Either not
yet overdue Overdue Overdue
or overdue within more than
for less than 31 days to 60 days
30 days and 60 days but and/or
not credit-  not credit- credit-
impaired impaired impaired Total
iei R B H =
BHOR AY3MAZE CAHRE
30FBYE 60AWEY 60AE/H
FEHE EEERHE BEEHE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB T BT BB BB T
Loss allowance for ECL: TEHREEEE 2
R
At 31 March 2017 RZZ—t&F=A
=1 A 4,321 1,263 5,314 10,898
Transfer to other BHREERR
categories due to EinmERE
increase in credit risk  E fth A& B (2,118) (1,078) 3,196 —
(Reversal of allowance) EEEE (BEHE@),/
allowance for credit B
losses (1,235) (185) 14,146 12,726
Write-offs (Note) Wiss (BaE) - - (16,257) (16,257)
At 31 March 2018 and R=Z—N\F=A
1 April 2018 E+—BEk=ZE-N
FmMA—A 968 - 6,399 7,367
Transfer to other HRNMEERBRIGINmE
categories due to BEHMER
increase in credit risk (71) 71 - —
(Reversal of allowance)/ EEE#E (B ERRE),/
allowance for credit B
losses 1,387 (71) 25,185 26,501
Write-offs (Note) HhsE (P aE) - - (30,750) (30,750)
At 31 March 2019 R-ZZ—hEF
=ZA=+—H 2,284 - 834 3,118

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited Z @R E S EGR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Loans receivable from money lending business
(Continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the management of
the Group considered that certain loans receivable of which
HK$4,809,000 has been fully impaired in previous years with gross
carrying amount of HK$30,750,000 (2018: HK$16,257,000) is
irrecoverable in view of the legal actions taken by the Group in
previous years and accordingly, the gross carrying amount and the
respective loss allowance of the loans receivable are written off
during the current year.

Specifically, in estimating the amount of ECL for the loans receivable
from money lending business, the management of the Company uses
various approaches taking into account (i) aging of the Group's loans
receivable based on the categories as described above, (ii) the Group
initial assessment of the credit risk on individual basis and (iii) market
value of pledged collaterals if any. The Group also takes into account
forward-looking information, e.g. the applicable GDP growth and
unemployment rate, etc. The Group has recognised allowance for
ECLs, representing approximately 5.48% (2018: 12.70%) of the
gross carrying amount, against all loans to customers as at 31 March
2019.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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i

(a)

o = TR (4E)

B EREEE (#)

(ii)

EERE (&)

KEHEFEZ EWEL

(%)

GEE

REE-_T-AF=A=+—AL*F
EAEEERERA ERAEER
BEFERRZERTE & TRER
877 %30,750,0007T (=T — \5F:
75 %16,257,0007T ) 2 FE UL B 3K A A
W@ - HAp##4,809,0007CE N IBFE
BEUAME At R E R Z LREE
RABRARE 1R B BN AN AR -

LHER REREREES 2 ERE
R AR EEEESER KARERE
BERASEAELESAROAEBER
AR 2 FEE HERER - (AR E Y
BRI EEEERR 2 95T RGI)DE
GHRERD () ZHE - REE G
R BUHE & R (403E F GDPIE R R R %
XE) AEEEHHEE_T-NF
ZA=t+—BREFREZAEERE
REMEEHERERS BEREREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B R AR M EE

3 BEREIR (@)

n\/T\

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MBEEEEZE ®)
(ii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) EEmEE &)
Loans receivable from margin financing business KEFRBERESEZERE
#«
The management of Company determines whether ERAEEFRBEERZ

the margin loans are credit-impaired based on
the Group's past experience in margin financing
relevant forward looking information
available to the Group and the value of the

business,

collaterals pledged (being listed securities in
Hong Kong) for the margin loans. If the values of
collaterals pledged for margin loans are more than
the loans advanced, the directors of the Company
assesses and concludes that the ECL is minimal. On
the other hand, if the values of collaterals pledged
for margin loans are less than the loans advanced,
the loans are considered as credit-impaired. As
at 31 March 2019, allowance for credit losses of
HK$8,428,000 (2018: HK$8,298,000) is provided for
margin loans receivable of aggregate gross carrying
amounts of HK$17,041,000 (2018: HK$31,598,000),
since there is no sufficient collateral for the margin
loans and the management of the Group considers
that the probability of default is significant.

BALR AEEUESZ
HEERIEEEN IR FEE
R2BEEREMRMmZEE
(BIRBEB LT ZHFF) &
NRIEREETHRERRZ
GHRBEEERE -WTRE

R EERERREERR
ﬁHXZ%/T BIAREIES
S R ZTEREEEE
BheB—FHE WITERE
Rz EERERREEER
ROZEF  AZERES
ABEERE - RZT—IF
=A=1+—RH ARTEST
BRERO T EEMmEAE
EEEBERBEN 2N
BEX BHMEEREAS
#8,428,000t (=ZZF— N
4 B 18,298,000t ) 2 JE
WHFRENRTREERSE
B 575 %17,041,0007T (=
= — )\ F : #%31,598,000
TT) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEKRERE @
(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BHEREE @
(ii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) EEREE &)
Loans receivable from margin financing business KEFIRBEREEZERE
(Continued) )

Movements in the allowance for credit losses during
the year are as follows:

RENEEBRREL 2D
mT

HK$'000
¥ T
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—+FMWMA—H
Allowance for credit losses EEEBERE 8,298
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R=ZZE—NF=A=+—80K
—E-NFHOA—H 8,298
Allowance for credit losses EEEBERE 130
At 31 March 2019 R=—ZE—hhF=A=+—AH 8,428

Specifically, in estimating the amount of ECL for the
loans receivable from margin loans, the management
of the Company uses various approaches taking
into account (i) the Group initial assessment of
the credit risk on individual basis and (ii) market
value of pledged collaterals. The Group also takes
into account forward-looking information, e.g. the
applicable GDP growth and unemployment rate,
etc. The Group has recognised allowance for ECLs,
representing approximately 49.49% (2018: 26.26%)
of the gross carrying amount, against margin loans
to customers as at 31 March 2019.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
Annual Report 2018-19 —Z— \E—NFHFEHE

LERZ R REFRE
R EWE R EREEES
BeREE ARREREF
BEBEA AW LT Ri)AE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B R AR M EE

B ERER (&)

n\/T\

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MEREBEZ @
(i)  Liquidity risk (i) FHEELERE

Liquidity risk management

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank and
other borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants and timely negotiates with the lenders if
any non-compliance is expected.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a source
of liquidity. As at 31 March 2019, the Group has
available unutilised letters of credit, overdraft and
short-term bank loan facilities of HK$106,000,000
(2018: HK$192,228,000).

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are at floating rates, the undiscounted amount
is derived from the weighted average interest rates
by reference to the HIBOR of the Group's variable-
rate borrowings at the end of the reporting period.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umlted BRERE
Annual Report 2018-19 —Z—N\E—NFFERE
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R WS TE A EME
R 22 3# E’Jl /Rﬁfﬁﬁ%'&ﬁ%
LR AMEITIER o

AEBKRBRTEEESR
RBESHR-R_ZT—N
FZA=Z+-—HB A%£H
AR HE AN RS A
ERAE - BXREHBENT
B 3} EEE % 106,000,000
T(ZE—NF:BK
192,228,0007% ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

3

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @ &= E@EAR A
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BRI

(Continued)

the bank borrowings which contained a repayment
on demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed
using contractual rates. As a result, these amounts
were greater than the amounts disclosed in the
“on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
contained in the above table.

The directors of the Company do not consider that
it is probable that the bank borrowing creditors
will exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe
that such borrowings of the Group will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements.

el

s s A-'r =
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 B E Rk (&)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BHEREE @
(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iii) FEELERE &)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued) TEBE % KT E 2 g
(%)
Weighted Within Total
average 1 year or 12 25 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand years years 5 years cash flows amount
mETSH MER AiRRE
HE HRER 128 255 SENE HELE R
% HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BAML AETT BT BETT BT BB BT
As at 31 March 2019 RZE-hEZA=1-A
Trade payables HENTE N/A FER 49,613 - - - 49,613 49,613
Other payables RN NIA R#R 36,840 - - - 36,840 36,840
Bonds (Note (b)) &% (M) 10.13% 35,314 164,801 564,380 125316 889,811 684,552
Bank borrowing RilEE 276% 32,18 - - - 32,182 32,182
153,949 164,801 564,380 125,316 1,008,446 803,187
As at 31 March 2018 W-8-NE=R=1-A
Trade payables BHENAE NATEE 19,085 = = = 19,085 19,085
Other payables EHENFE NA TE R 60,588 - - - 60,588 60,588
Bonds (Note (b)) s (He) 10.4% 627 47,398 646,745 185,761 880,531 619,771
Bank borrowing RAfEE 25% 29477 - - - 29477 29477
109,777 47398 646,745 185,761 989,681 728921
The table below summarises the maturity analysis of TREMMMERRI X ESGE

RIGEX 2 RITEE 2 B8 B
D T ERE R BEA
HomMEERTHE -2HE
ﬁ%’*ﬂ'ﬂﬂ%ﬁ‘ﬁZﬂ 2t
AL REREAR L
%Fﬁ%@i”ﬁﬂ 5 AT [ 1k B 5k
BB R iR 2 BUE -

AABEZSRRBITEEZ
EEA DR REITE A E K
BN B AR BIEHE - RN AT
E=RE BERITEER
SREERMEASE BT
EXRAMPEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

n\/T\

B R AR M EE

B &R E R ()

(a) MEREBEZ @
(iii) FEE LR ()

REE 2 K E R

(%)

Maturity analysis - Bank borrowings subject to a repayment on default clause based on scheduled repayments

BB -RERERNTRENRRENRT LRTER

Weighted Within Total
average 1 year or 12 25 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand years years 5 years cash flows amount
Y MER AERE
kS FRER 128 255 SENE RESE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAk BT YT U BRI AR BN
As at 31 March 2019 RZEB-N§=A=+-H
Bank borrowing RIBE 276% 4,007 4,006 12,02 16,378 36,413 32,182
As at 31 March 2018 RZE-NFZA=+-B
Bank borrowing BlEE 2.5% 3,999 7917 11,876 8,906 32,698 29471

Notes:

(a)

For the Group's variable-rate interest bearing borrowings,
the weighted average effective interest rate of the Group’s
variable-rate interest bearing borrowings at the end of
each reporting period is used for undiscounted cash flow
analysis. As at 31 March 2019, the Group has not given any
guarantees (2018: Nil). For assets pledged to secure the bank
borrowings, refer to Note 29(c).

For the Group's fixed-rate interest bearing bonds, respective
effective interest rate of each of the Group's fixed-rate
interest bearing bonds at the end of each reporting period is
used for undiscounted cash flow analysis.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate

instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined

at the end of the reporting period.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group L\mlted BRRES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NT\

3

BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Capital management

(c)

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
equity shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the bank borrowings (Note 29), bonds
(Note 33), net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio which is calculated by bank borrowings and bonds
divided by the total assets. The gearing ratio of the Group
as at 31 March 2019 was 73% (2018: 47%).

Fair value of financial instruments

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

This note provides information about how the Group
determine fair value of various financial assets.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how fair values
of these financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and inputs used), as well as the level
of the fair value hierarchy into with which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
is observable.

(i)  Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Instruments included in level 1 comprise equity
securities listed in Hong Kong Stock Exchange
classified as financial assets at FVTPL or financial
assets at FVTOCI.
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nVT\

3

BRI

AI‘-)\—
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HKEREERE®)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) (0 EMIAEMNDFEE (&
(i)  Financial instruments in level 3 (i) FE=#ZFPLETA
The unlisted equity investment is determined by FEETRARE THIRARLE
using discounted cash flow projections. The most REREBABE -ZREK
significant unobservable input is the weighted B B B B2 ) A BUER A N
average cost of capital. The lower the cost of capital, FHEEKA - BE& KA
the higher the value. K EEHS-
The following table presents the Group’s assets that TREIR=ZZ—NEFERZ
are measured at their fair values at 31 March 2019 ZE-NF=ZA=+—HHUH
and 2018. ATEFECEAEEZE
Eo
2019 2018
“E-NF —E-\%
Level 1 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 3 Total
-4 F=& &t £—& E=8 Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT BT BETT BETT BETT
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVTPL RATEERBHSIE
LEREE
- Listed equity securities - EmRAES 4,653 - 4,653 46,747 - 46,747
- Unlisted equity securities —kEmRAES - 2,401 2,401 - 27,57 27,571
Financial assets at FVTOCI BATEEREMEE
sz eREE
— Unlisted equity investment —kETRARE - 1,952 1,952 - 4,079 4,079
Total 3t 4,653 4,353 9,006 46,747 31,650 78,397
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(9]

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

B R AR M EE

3 BEEMRERE (&)

H{F

() EMIAEMDFEE (&)

Fair value at
BOTE Significant Range
31 March 31 March  Fairvalue Valuation unobservable (weighted Relationship of unobservable
Financial assets 2019 2018 hierarchy  technique input(s) average) inputs for fair value
ZB-hE  —E-)\F EXFUBE
tREE ZRZt-B ZA=t-F ATEER #EFE BARE EE (METH) ATETUBRRASEZBHE
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BB
Financial assets at FVTPL
BRATEBBRSE
IR ERERE
- listed equity 4,653 46,747 Level 1 Quoted bid price ~ N/A N/A N/A
securities in an active
in Hong Kong market
-REBZLT £ RNERTH28 TER TER TEf
BAES #iE
- Unlisted equity 2,401 27571 Level3 Discounted cash  Yearly growth rates ~ 11% (2018: 11.0%) The increase in yearly growth
securities flow method of revenue rates of revenue would
increase in fair value
- ETRARS E=R  FEREREE FEUEHERE  N%(ZE-AFN10%) FEREERZENES

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 1% @t &= £ AR A7)

DFEEmM

Terminal growth rate 3% (2018: 3%) The increase in terminal growth

rate would increase in fair
value

RRERE 3% (ZF-\F13%) RERERTENGS ATEEN

Gross profit margin -~ 20.2% (2018: 15.9%) The increase in yearly gross

profit margin would increase

in fair value
EfE 20.2% (ZE-N\F: FEENEEMEL ATEEN
15.9%)
Weighted average  13.5% (2018: 11.0%) The increase in weighted
cost of capital average cost of capital would
decrease in fair value
METHERKA  135% (ZF-N\F: MEFHERRAENE S
11.0%) NTFEHD
Company specific ~ 3.0% (2018: 3.0%) The increase in company specific
risk premium risk premium would decrease
in fair value
RAKERREE  3.0%(ZF-/AF:30%) AANTEREELENES
RFERD
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e TR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BEERERE (E)

(Continued)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) () EMIAENLFEE @&
Fair value at
BAFE Significant Range
31 March 31March  Fairvalue  Valuation unobservable (weighted Relationship of unobservable
Financial assets 2019 2018 hierarchy  technique input(s) average) inputs for fair value
ZE-hE —2-N\% BARIHE
SREE =B=t-B Z=A=+t-B ALTEER #EF% BAHE EE (METH) ATETUBRBASEZBE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Financial assets at
FvTocl
BATEABREL
2EMRTEZ
- Unlisted equity 1,952 4,079 Level3 Discounted cash ~ Yearly growth rates 3% (2018: 3%) The increase in yearly growth
securities flow method of revenue rates of revenue would
increase in fair value
—3F ETRAES Y FREEREE FEUGERE 3% (Z2-N\F:3%) FEMREREENE?
ATEEM
Terminal growth rate 3% (2018: 3%) The increase in terminal growth
rate would increase in fair
value
REERE 3% (ZF-N\F:3%) REHEREENELATEEM
Gross profit margin -~ 5.4% (2018: 5.8%) The increase in yearly gross
profit margin would increase
in fair value
BTk 54% (ZE-/\F:58%) FEENRENELATELM
Weighted average  13.7% (2018: 13.7%) The increase in weighted
cost of capital average cost of capital would

decrease in fair value
MEFHIERKAR  137% (ZB-NEF:137%) MEFHERRALENE S
AFERD

Company specific 5.0% (2018: 5.0%) The increase in company specific
risk premium risk premium would decrease
in fair value
RABERREE 50% (ZT-N\F:50%) LEAKTAREEENES
AFERD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M
BB RREE (@)

(Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) (c)

EMITAENDFEE (&)
RREEER TRABHK BT E
B

E-ZRAFHEFEBEZHE

Financial assets

There were no transfers between different levels in both
years.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

Financial assets

at FVTOCI at FVTPL
RAFEEBHAM RAFEEBR
ZHEREINERZ BEIIEZ
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT
At 31 March 2017 and RZZE—+F
1 April 2017 =A=+—8k
—T—+tFMA—H 6,129 =
Addition NE = 27,571
Fair value changes recognised E/\\\/Hﬁﬁ%ﬁqﬁl & R
in other comprehensive income NEEEZE (2,050) =
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZ_Z— \4%F
= A=poH R
—E-NFHmA—R 4,079 27,571
Fair value changes recognised in Fﬁi{@i@ﬂﬁlﬁ?’iﬁ@%’d
other comprehensive income NEEEE) (2,127) =
Fair value changes recognised in RIERERZ
profit or loss NF(EEE = (25,170)
At 31 March 2019 N_E—hEF
= AI=7745 1,952 2,401
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the loss on HEz—_ZEZ—h&=F=+—H
fair value changes included an unrealised losses of IFTEE HARSHEBEEBE

HK$2,127,000 (2018: HK$2,050,000) related to unlisted
equity instruments designated at FVTOCI held at the
end of the reporting period and are included in other
comprehensive income and reported as changes of
“FVTOCI reserve”.

2,127,000 (ZE—N\F: K
2,050,0007T) 2 A F{EE B 518
HAREARBEZIREEAREA
FEEBEMEEKETIEZIE
FTRATAEER stAHEMEE
W WEHRA [BRATEBERE
b 2B TIRZ ] &

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the loss on
fair value changes included an unrealised losses of
HK$25,170,000 (2018: nil) related to unlisted equity
instruments classified as financial assets at FVTPL held at
the end of the reporting period and are included in profit
or loss and reported as changes in fair value of financial
asset at FVTPL.

HEZT-NAF=A=+—H1t
FE ?fﬁ AB)ESIE B IER RS
HABEBOBEASREE T
BZEATEERERIEZ S
MEEZIELTRAZE Z KE
35 B5 48 74 25,170,000 (= &
—N\F:E\)RIIAEBZARES
BEATFEEBERIEZ S
BEZANFEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NT\

4

BRI

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually revaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of oil exploitation rights included
in intangible assets, oil properties and
construction-in-progress included in property,
plant and equipment

The carrying amounts of the oil exploitation rights, oil
properties and construction-in-progress are assessed
for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest
that the carrying amounts of them may exceed their
recoverable amounts. The Group’s determination as to
whether they are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the assets. The Group relied on
experts to assess the geological prospects for the discovery
of oil in the oil field and estimated the value of oil to
be produced in the future at a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. For drilling costs
and other exploration and evaluation assets, the Group
determined whether the related well costs are expensed if
it is determined that such economic viability is not attained
after performing further feasibility studies that is usually
completed within one year of completion of drilling.

Judgement is required by the directors to determine key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
other than oil properties and construction-in-
progress

Property, plant and equipment other than oil properties
and construction-in-progress are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on the
higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs
of disposal calculations. The calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business;
and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate.

Changing the assumptions selected by the directors in
assessing impairment could affect the recoverable amount
determined by the directors and as a result affect the result
of the impairment reviews. Further details are set out in
Note 16(a).
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BA SRS Rt fh R & I ()
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NT\

BRI

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Assessment of loss allowance for expected
credit losses on trade receivables

The provision for expected credit losses is determined by
grouping together debtors with similar risk characteristics
and collectively or individually assessing them for likelihood
of recovery. The provision of trade receivables reflects
lifetime expected credit losses.

Judgment has been applied in determining the level of
provision for expected credit losses, such as estimating
default rates by taking into account the credit risk
characteristics of customers and the likelihood of recovery
assessed on a combination of collective and individual
basis as relevant based on the Group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. For details of the key
assumptions and input used, see Note 3(a)(ii). While the
provision is considered appropriate, changes in estimation
basis or in economic conditions could lead to a change in
the level of provision recorded and consequently on the
charge or credit to profit or loss.

Assessment of loss allowance for expected
credit losses on loans receivables

Management regularly reviews the impairment assessment
and evaluates the ECL of the loans receivable. Appropriate
impairment allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the loans receivable
as at the reporting date with the one as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
loans receivable from borrowers are assessed by the
management of the Group, based on the financial
background, collateral and the historical settlement
records, including past due dates and default rates, of
each borrower and forward-looking information that is
reasonable, supportable and available without undue cost
or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d) Assessment of loss allowance for expected

(e)

credit losses on loans receivables (Continued)

Each borrower is assigned a risk grading under
internal credit ratings to calculate the ECL, taking into
consideration of the estimates of expected cash shortfalls
which are driven by estimates of possibility of default and
the amount and timing of cash flows that are expected
from foreclosure on the collaterals (if any) less the costs
of obtaining and selling the collaterals. At every reporting
date, the financial background, collateral and the historical
settlement records are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group's
loans receivable are disclosed in Notes 3(a)(ii) and 23
respectively.

Income taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the year in which such determination is
made.
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e TR MR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Depreciation and amortisation method of
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

Significant judgement is required in determining
depreciation and amortisation method of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets. The depreciation
method used shall reflect the pattern in which the asset’s
future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by
the entity. The depreciation method applied to an asset
shall be reviewed at least at each financial year-end and,
if there has been a significant change in the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset, the method shall be changed to
reflect the changed pattern. The amortisation method
used shall reflect the pattern in which the asset's future
economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the
entity. If that pattern cannot be determined reliably, the
straight-line method shall be used. It is reasonably possible,
based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within the
next financial year that are different from assumptions
could require material adjustments to the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Principal versus agent consideration (agent)

Under HKAS 18, the Group recognised sales of
commodities and chemical products on a gross basis,
i.e. the Group was considered as a principal, due to its
significant exposure to credit risk of customers. Upon
application of HKFRS 15, in the view of the directors of
the Company, the Group is considered as an agent for
the sales of commodities and chemical products. The
performance obligation is to arrange for the provision of
commodities and chemical products as the Group did not
obtain the control over the goods before passing on to
customers taking into consideration indicator such as the
Group is not exposed to inventory risk, although the Group
still exposes to credit risk in these sales transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(h) Fair value measurement of financial

()

instruments

The Group’s investment in unlisted equity instruments
classified as financial assets at FVTPL and designated as
financial assets at FVTOCI amounting to HK$2,401,000
and HK$1,952,000 respectively as at 31 March 2019
(2018: HK$27,571,000 and HK$4,079,000 respectively)
which are measured at fair values with fair values being
determined based on unobserved inputs using valuation
techniques (i.e. Level 3). Judgement and estimation are
required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques
and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions
relating to these factors could affect the reported fair
values of these instruments. See Notes 3(c) for further
disclosures.

Loss of assets

As detailed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into several supply agreements with
certain suppliers in the PRC and deposits of approximately
HK$56,364,000 in aggregate were made by the indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary in relation to these supply
agreements with the authorisation of a director of the
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary (who was the former
chairman of the board of directors and an executive
director of the Company) during the period from April
2018 to September 2018. Besides, the indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary made a prepayment amounting to
approximately HK$11,743,000 to a service provider in July
2018 while there is no valid contractual agreement entered
into between the indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary and
the service provider. The Group lost contact with the
finance personnel of the indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
and the director since early July 2018. In addition, certain
bank balance amounting to approximately HK$23,131,000
in a bank account of the indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary in a reputable PRC bank has been frozen by the
governmental authorities since January 2019 as the bank
balance is suspected to be related to a case which the
director is one of the suspects.

e AR MR

4 EERIEHEETRAE @)

(h)

EMIAZRAFHEE

R-ZZE—-AE=A=+—B XK
E@ELBARAFEEBIERY
RreMEERIBTEAKEATE
EREMEEKRSIIRZEME
E228H R R#E2,401,000
7T % 75 11,952,000 (ZF — )\
& #27,571,0007T N B
4,079,0007T) 2 JE EMBRAT A
RAFEFE MAFETRAG
BT (ANE =R IR T A B 2H
MNEEE - R A B (A B R
B B A ERFEITHE R
e BZERZMBREE T T
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S BEBL2HM 30 -

BANAR S B IS R AR M 1 AT A
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BETHEEEE LA THRER
FRZHEZENBARRN=
E-N\FONAZE-_ZT—N\FNA
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REENBE- I BTN
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TZRITEP 2B FRITEHL
75#23,131,0007T * RE A1ERE %
IRITHABBZES BILREEA
22 RU4EEM-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

()

Loss of assets (Continued)

Judgement has been applied by the management of the
Group in determining whether the prepayments to the
suppliers and service provider and the frozen bank balance
are recoverable. The Group has engaged an independent
PRC legal advisor to assist the Group to recover the
prepayments and the frozen bank balance. In the opinion
of the independent PRC legal advisor, the prepayments
paid to the suppliers and service provider and the frozen
bank balance are unlikely to be recoverable. Accordingly,
the management of the Group estimated that impairment
losses amounting to approximately HK$68,107,000 in
aggregate on prepayments paid to suppliers and service
provider and an impairment loss on the frozen bank
balance amounting to approximately HK$23,131,000
are recognised as loss of assets in consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2019 (see Note 6).

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Executive Directors of the Company have been regarded
as the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"). The Group's
operating segments, based on information reported to the

CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and performance

assessment, are as follows:

Trading of commodities, chemical products and petroleum
products (“Commodity trading”);

Exploitation and sale of crude oil (“Crude oil”);
Leasing of investment properties (“Property investment”);

Money lending, securities brokerage and asset
management business (“Financial services”); and

Others.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The Group also carries out business as insurance brokerage
and service contract. The CODM, after reviewing for qualitative
factors such as the business activities, economic and legal
characteristics of the business and quantitative factors such
as the financial performance of the business, has accordingly
determined that the insurance brokerage and service contract
businesses did not qualify as reportable operating segments, and
their financial information is included in “Others”.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies. Segment results represent the
loss made or profit earned by each segment without allocation
of incomes or expenses which are not recurring in nature and
unrelated to the Group’s operating performance, including
interest income on bank deposits, central management fee
income, central administration costs, directors’ emoluments,
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL, losses due to
loss of assets and interest expenses.

The CODM also reviews the earnings/loss before net finance
income and costs, income tax expense, depreciation and
amortisation, impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and intangible assets,
unallocated other income less expenses and non-controlling
interests (“EBITDA” or “LBITDA") of the Group. Accordingly,
EBITDA or LBITDA is also presented.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources among segments, all assets are allocated to
operating segments other than interests in an associate, financial
assets at FVTPL, financial assets at FVTOCI, current income tax
recoverable, cash and bank balances and other corporate assets.

The CODM reviews the segment assets for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, an analysis of
the Group's liabilities is not regularly reviewed by the CODM and
hence, the relevant information is not presented accordingly.

5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WKEEDIHER (&)
(Continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results () 7HKEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and REBZRAZ2WMEE D BE D 2
results by reportable operating segments. W REESTIT -
(i)  For the year ended 31 March 2019 (i) BE-_F—NF=A=+—
AIEFE
Commodity Property Financial
trading Crude oil  investment services Others Total
BRES i NERE SREH Hith At

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT BET T BRTT BB BET T BRTT

Revenue from contracts with ~ BHAHBHEER
customers within scope of Z1REERZ

HKFRS 15 EFRHWE
External and total revenue REEREEER 2
recognised at point in time MPRRER
~ on a gross basis -REBRE 35,346 - - 4,939 3,260 43,545
— on a net basis (note (i) —RFEEE
(Bt (i) 37,450 - - - - 37,450
72,796 - - 4,939 3,260 80,995
Revenue not within scope of ~ EHBHMBHREEA
HKFRS 15 FRBES 2 W
Loan interest income ERMBMA - - - 21,405 = 21,405
Rental income 6L ON - - 3,102 - - 3,102
72,796 - 3,102 26,344 3,260 105,502
Segment (LBITDA)/EBITDA 2 ZP(LBITDA)/EBITDA (245,280) 67,684 (506) (16,160) (1,062) (195,324)
Segment depreciation and DEIEREH
amortisation (616) (1,154) (2,268) (225) (4,165) (8,428)
Segment results RS (245,896) 66,530 (2.774) (16,385) (5.227) (203,752)
Unallocated expenses FOERX (136,147)
Interest income on bank deposits RT3 2 F| 8 A 569
Interest expenses FIRR% (65,708)
Loss before taxation BRATEE (405,038)
1 96 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t R = £ E AR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

PR
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WRmKEkDEER (&)
(Continued)
(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued) () 7EP R REE(
(i)  Performance obligations for contracts with (i) HEFEHZENEMR
customers
The Group sells commodities and chemical products AEEREFHERS R
to customers. The performance obligation is TEM-BHETALHRE
to arrange for the provision of commodities as HEn REABEELREHE
the Group did not obtain the control over the RZEHEXSHREE
goods before passing on to customers taking into [ELBE - MEASET R AN & B oK
consideration indicator such as the Group is not HEEFERBREER K&
exposed to inventory risk, although the Group still ERRE PR ERIARES
exposes to credit risk in these sales transactions. B o ) 12 o o
(iii)  For the year ended 31 March 2018 i) BE-F—-NF=ZF=+—
HILtFE
Commodity Property Financial
trading Crude oil investment services Others Total
HmE S Rk NERE eRR% ity CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BETR BT BETT BETT BT
Segment revenue 7 # e 5,500,164 - 2,928 31,914 1372 5,536,378
Segment EBITDAV(LBITDA) SEEBITDA/(LBITDA) (14338)  (151431) (129) (3,757) 08 (169,227)
Segment depreciation and ABFTEREH
amortisation (1,526) (14,423) (2,257) (208) (4,234) (22,648)
Segment results PEEE (15,864) (165,854) (2,386) (3,965) (3,806) (191,875)
Unallocated income a1 ON 43,166
Interest income on bank deposits ST Z FI S MA 61
Interest expenses FERA% (53,009)
Loss before taxation BRHAERE (201,657)
Revenue from one (2018: one) customer in relation HERESME RKE—F
to commodity trading amounted to approximately (Z2E—NF:—R)EP
HK$36,944,000 (2018: HK$5,109,992,000), which 2 W 49 78 36,944,000

individually represents more than 10% of the
Group's total revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

BRI

(Continued)

(c)

(b) Segment assets (b) 7HEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets by REBZRAZ2WMEE D BE D 2
reportable operating segments: BEINTWAT :
2019 2018
—®-nE —B-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Segment assets NREE
Commodity trading EmE 5 546,928 640,636
Crude ol R 85,484 20,468
Property investment MR E 101,855 104,311
Financial services SRR 75,935 97,166
Others Hit 10,992 15,116
Total segment assets DHREERE 821,194 877,697
Unallocated Kol 167,174 493,805
Total assets BEE 988,368 1,371,502
Other segment information () HttoHER
For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE-B-NEZAST-BLEE
Commodity Property Financial
trading Crude oil investment services Others  Unallocated Total
BRES B NERE ERBH Eft 9B &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BETT BETT AETT BETT BETT BETT
Amount included in the measure of HAPTEERAREEHEL
segment results or segment assets: 2F:
Additions to non-current assets REFRBEE - 1,224 - 101 - 630 1,955
Reversal of impairment losses on property, N¥ BEERXBAESRED
plant and equipment - 13,947 - - - - 13,947
(Impairment loss)freversal of impairment losses on R/ A& (HEFE) /RE
intangible assets BEED (15,617) 64,598 - - - - 48,981
Allowance for credit losses of loans receivable BRERZEEERRE - - - (26,631) - = (26,631)
Allowance for credit losses of trade receivables BHRUEZ GEBRER (171,583) - - - (3) - (171,626)
Impairment losses on prepayments, BRTE e RAMBRKFEZ
deposits and other receivables REER (4,093) (8,187) - - - = (12,280)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HENE - BRE kX & BB - (30) - - - - (30)
Loss of assets SEFE - - - - - (91,238) (91,238)

W= ko EBER (&)
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(c) Other segment information (Continued)

(d)

i 2

(9]

B R AR M EE

koEER (&)

n‘/T\

Hitt o sMER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-\F=A=1-HIEE

Commodity Property Financial
trading Crude oil investment services Others Unallocated Total
HRES ik nERE SREHE Hft AR ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT AETT BETT AETT AETT BETT BB
Amount included in the measure of HANBEEINREAE
segment results or segment assets: TEZRE:
Additions to non-current assets REFRDAE 11 3,858 3,181 526 308 68 7,95
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment  ¥1% iR R & 2 REK R - (60,610) = - # - (60,610)
Impairment losses on intangible assets BYAERERE (6,171) (92,310) = = (760) - (99,241)
Allowance for credit losses on trade receivables EHRNEZ GEBRER (38,040) - - - - b (38,040)
Allowance for credit losses on loans receivable BRERZEEFRRE - - - (21,024) - ’ (21,024)
Allowance for credit losses on prepayments, BHE ke REMENE
deposits and other receivables IEEEBBREE (8,071) - M # # (5,700) (13,771)
Geographical information (d) HEZEF
The Group's operations are located in the PRC and Hong REBEBZEBMRPBERES-
Kong. The Group’s revenue from external customers REPZEFELE M REH AR

is based on the location of their key operations and

information about its non-current assets is based on
geographical location of the assets that are shown below:

Revenue from
external customers

BINREFE 2 NEB U RIRE
EfEHEESNIERBEES
BITER

Non-current assets

RENREF Wi ERBEE

2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hE — N\ —E-hF = \&
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT AT T
PRC I 72,288 5,484,148 81,345 39,900
Hong Kong B8 33,214 52,230 175,125 192,486
Others Hity - - 7,179 13,022
105,502 5,536,378 263,649 245,408
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

6 OTHER LOSSES, NET 6 HfbtEis  F5E
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BT
Loss on deregistration of —MEEB AR Z HEE
a subsidiary sLESIE (703) =
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE BEREHEZ
plant and equipment 18 (30) -
Exchange (losses)/gains, net X (E518),/Was
FER (23,957) 28,954
Reversal of impairment M RE REERES
losses/(impairment losses) BEE CREESE)
on property, plant and
equipment 16 13,947 (60,610)
Reversal of impairment BREEERBESBERED
losses/(impairment losses) J ORERE)
on intangible assets 18 48,981 (99,241)
Impairment losses on TRRIE - Re R EHAM
prepayments, deposits and FEWGRIE 2 R EE R
other receivables (12,280) (13,771)
Changes in fair value of RAVEEBIERE
financial assets at FVTPL ZEBMEEZATE
#E) (31,971) 18,722
Write back of consideration FERRE 2 =]
payables - 5,900
Others Hth 42 3
(5,971) (120,043)
200 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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e PR ERR M

EXPENSES BY NATURE

BUEE DR

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Wages, salaries and other benefits ~ T#& - #& K EMEF

(including directors’ emoluments) (BEEEMe) (MzEs)

(Note 8) 28,926 36,159
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B

— Audit services — 28R 7% 2,000 5,206

— Non-audit services — Iz ER TS 11 #
Cost of inventories recognised BRARINFEKRAR

in expenses 35,433 5,387,051
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #1% - BB R X ETE

equipment (Note 16) (MIzE16) 6,953 9,942
Depreciation of investment wEMEFE (ME17)

properties (Note 17) 2,231 2,231
Amortisation of intangible assets mREE#E (ME18)

(Note 18) 759 11,956
Operating lease expenses KERERY 9,660 9,738
Legal and professional fees ERREXER 34,440 9,756
Commission expenses G-z 6,924 15,083
Others Hilh 22,598 18,858
Total cost of sales, selling SHEMAR - HE KD KRR

and distribution costs and TG 2 # 58

administrative expenses 149,935 5,505,980

WAGES, SALARIES AND OTHER BENEFITS

TE #HERkEMERN (2

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) EEEMS)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T EEEF T
Salaries, wages and other benefits e LEREMER 28,294 35,514

Contributions to defined TE R FORIRET 81 A 31

contribution retirement plan 632 645
28,926 36,159
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9 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

9 ES=EAMNKR

=\ 7

m

(a) EERFETHAEMS

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive BEERFETHRABZFHMH
is set out below: FIAAR -
For the year ended 31 March 2019: BE-Z—-hE=A=+—HLt
FE
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director's
other services
in connection
with the
Employer's  management
contributionto  of affairs of
Allowances  a retirement the company or
Discretionary ~ and benefits benefit its subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme  undertaking Total
REAQT
HREARZ
EBEHE
EX@EK £
BRGEEY HREEAS
e #e BERL REREYER 25 EhzHt#e a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
A¥TR BRI A¥TR EETT R8T A8 R8T
(Note (a) (Note (b))
(FzE ) (F & (b))
Executive Directors: #i7E%:
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung (Note (c)) ERRLE (WO) - 960 80 - 18 - 1,058
Mr. Li Zhenjun (Note (c) ﬂl@ﬁ{{ Hit(d)) - 400 - - 6 - 406
Mr. Poon Wai Kong (Note (k) BEI%E (k) - 895 - - 14 - 909
Mr. Wu Zhou (Note () ;a/} 4 (W) - 320 - - - - 320
Mr. Chen Yongshen (Note (1) Rk ER & (M) = 520 - - 6 - 526
Mr. Gan Xiaohua (Note (i) HRERE (W) - 114 - - - - 114
Mr. Huang Guobiao (Note () ERERE (M) - 105 - - - - 105
- 3314 80 - 4 - 3438
Non-executive Directors: HnAES:
Mr. Poon Wai Kong (Note (k) BERLE (Wi () - 86 - - - - 86
Mr. WU Hao (Note (1) REFE (M) - 1 - - - - 17
- 103 - - - - 103
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTES:
Mr. Chan Shu Kin REBEE 264 - - - - - 264
Mr, Cheung Kwan Hung ROREE 264 - - - - - 264
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu EEREE 264 - - - - - 264
792 - - - - - 792
Total ey 792 3417 80 - 4 - 4333
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9 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 9 ES®AKREZR (&)

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EERTETHAEMS
(Continued) (#)
For the year ended 31 March 2018: BT \F=ZA=+—HL
FE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of
director's
other services
in connection
with the
Employer's management
contribution to of affairs of
Allowances aretirement  the company
Discretionary and benefits benefit ~ or its subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme undertaking Total
HERRAAL
EHBARZ
EREBER
BEMRIK 32
BRHGEEL AHRBEN
e ¢ BEEL BEREDEAN R ERzAbME &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT BEFT RETT BRI AETT BRI RETT
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(Bi(a) (M3Eb)
Executive Directors: HES:
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung (Note (c)) ERRAE (W0) - 702 58 - 18 = 778
Mr. Li Zhenjun (Note (d)) TREL4E (M) - 1,200 100 - 18 = 1318
Mr. Poon Sum (Note (¢)) BREE((HFFe) - 197 - - 7 - 1978
Mr. Poon Wai Kong(Note (k) AEEIEE (k) - 1176 98 - 18 150 1442
Mr. Wu Zhou (Note (f) RN () - 7 - - - - 7
Mr. Hu Dehua (Note (g) EELLE (M) - 400 - - 16 - 416
= 5456 256 > 7 150 5,939
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTES:
Mr. Chan Shu Kin REREE 264 - 0 - - - 286
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung REELE 264 - 2 - - - 286
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu ERELE 264 - 0 - - - 286
792 - 66 — - - 858
Total &t 9 5,456 n - 7 150 6,797
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @K'= EM AR A7)
Annual Report 2018-19 —Z—N\E—NFFERE 203



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

9 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

n‘/T\

9 EFENRER @)

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(a) EBERFETHAEME

(Continued) (#)
Aggregate
emoluments
paid to or
Aggregate receivable
emoluments by directors
paid toor  in respect of
receivable their other
by directors in services in
respect of their connection
services as with the
directors, management
whether of  of the affairs
the Company of the
or its Company or
subsidiary its subsidiary
undertakings  undertakings Total
BE=niET EEZREH
EXSREME EELQAH
XA AR HIE DA
ZHEBE EREHRMEZ
(FwADARH HitRBmE
HEDE XA SERE
%) ZEHeHE HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BETT BB
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE-T—h4F
ZA=+—HILEE 4,333 - 4,333
For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE—-ZT—/\%
ZR=+—HILEE 6,647 150 6,797
Notes: B & -
(a) Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid or receivable (a EN—RESZHE—RAVREFER

ARRXEMBATRBEEEZ AR
BENKERZME -

in respect of that person’s other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the company or its subsidiary
undertakings.

(b) Includes estimated money value of other non-cash benefits: share (b) BIEHMIFR SRR Z (b EEEE:
options. B -
(a] Mr. Wong Kwok Leung resigned as the chief executive officer of the () HER EABHERD AITTRAER BT

Company with effect from 28 January 2019. BE-T-NF—A=-t+/\BREX-
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9 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(e)

()

(h)

(i)

()

(k)

()

Mr. Li Zhenjun was removed from the office of the chairman of
the Board and suspended as a director of the Company with effect
from 9 August 2018 and his office as an executive director of the
Company has been subsequently vacated with effect from 14 March
2019.

Mr. Poon Sum retired from the office of executive director of the
Company with effect from 28 August 2017.

Mr. Wu Zhou was appointed as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 26 March 2018 and subsequently resigned with
effect from 7 December 2018.

Mr. Hu Dehua resigned as an executive director of the Company with
effect from 15 February 2018.

Mr. Chen Yongsheng was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 7 December 2018 and was subsequently
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company with effect
from 28 January 2019.

Mr. Gan Xiaohua was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 24 September 2018.

Mr. Huang Guobiao was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 8 January 2019 and was subsequently
appointed as the chairman of the Board with effective from 28
January 2019.

Mr. Poon Wai Kong was re-designated from an executive director of
the Company to a non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 4 January 2019.

Mr. Wu Hao was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 14 March 2019.

IJF

B R AR M EE

9 EFHEAMRERS @

(a) EBERFETHAEME

(&)

B EE: (8

(d)

(e)

(i)

(k)

0]

FREAER-_Z-NFN\ANAKE
CEFEIRBBREEANAZES
BB REEARATRITES ZBBR
BRI B2 -AF=A+HAR
AR e

BRAEREARRATERRL 8
—E—+FNAZTN\BERER

SMEER—F-NEFZA-+ A%
ZERFTATRTESREERERET B
“E-\FF-ALBREER-

RELEEREARARITESHS
BT N\F_At+HEABER-

BRoKAERERZERARARITES
BT \E+-AtHEEH BB
BEZEAANBRTHER 8%
—NE—AZ+/\BEER-

HEELLREERAAARMTES:
BT \FhLA-+MHBBER-
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B2 NF-ANBRERRBERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

9 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there is no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors during the year (2018: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2018:
Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 10 FMEESMNAERAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEBFHEESNABATESR ’E‘:F‘
Group, one (2018: three) was director of the Company whose —Z(ZZE—NF:=ZF)BARQT
emoluments is included in Note 9. The emoluments of the EHENEBSEHRKFE - ﬁﬁ%@%
remaining four (2018: two) individuals were as follows: (ZE—NF:WB)ATHBEHOT:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Salaries and other emoluments e hEMMe 5,960 4,754
Contributions to defined TE BE fH FORIRET B A K
contribution retirement plan 72 29
6,032 4,783
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEOWEN FATEHE:

Number of individuals

N
2019 2018
—E-nE “F-NF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 7B #1,000,001.E
7 #1,500,0007T 2 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 7B #51,500,001 T E
75 #2,000,0007T 2 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7 #2,500,001T&
75 3,000,0007T - 1
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to RAEE KAEEBVER T A LRES
any of the above director or the five highest paid individuals X AZESFHFATIMEMME  EA
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as MAREB SR INAREBSH)EE 8
compensation for loss of office (2018: Nil). EEBRmE(ZSE—/\F &)
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited #3 i & 4 815 R 1A 7
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IJF

11 LO

BRI

SS OF ASSETS

pi-d
=

-

EER

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEET T
Loss of prepayments, deposits and TR RIE - e RHEA

other receivables (Note (a)) FEMRIEEE (FiFE@)) 68,107 =
Loss of bank balances (Note (b)) IRITEEEREE (& D)) 23,131 =
91,238 -

Notes: P & -

(a)

The amount represents impairment losses on prepayments paid to suppliers
by L% R & = AR R A 7] (“Zhejiang Tou Rong”), an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, which Mr. Li Zhenjun (“Mr. Li", the
former chairman of the board of directors (the “Board”) and an executive
director of the Company) was the legal representative and one of the
directors of Zhejiang Tou Rong since its establishment. In December 2018,
the legal representative of Zhejiang Tou Rong was changed from Mr. Li to a
representative appointed by the board of directors of the immediate holding
company of Zhejiang Tou Rong. However, the change of legal representative
is invalidated by #UNTTIZESE B/ in February 2019 in view of the
ongoing investigation against Mr. Li. Zhejiang Tou Rong has issued a letter to
object to the decision by #3585 E B B in late February 2019 for the
invalidation. Up to the date when the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, no reply was received by Zhejiang Tou Rong regarding
the objection.

During the period from April 2018 to September 2018, Zhejiang Tou Rong
entered into several supply agreements (the “Supply Agreements”) with
certain suppliers in the PRC in relation to renovation services of office and
office supplies for preparing business commencement with aggregate
contract amounts of RMB64,950,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$75,959,000). Deposits of RMB48,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$56,364,000) in aggregate were made by Zhejiang Tou Rong in relation
to these Supply Agreements with the authorisation of Mr. Li during the
period from April 2018 to September 2018. Besides, Zhejiang Tou Rong
made a prepayment amounting to approximately RMB10,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$11,743,000) to a service provider in July 2018, for
the provision of technical consultancy service via bank. There is no valid
contractual agreement entered into between Zhejiang Tou Rong and the
service provider and the payment was authorised by Mr. Li at his discretion
as the legal representative of Zhejiang Tou Rong. The Group lost contact with
the finance personnel and Mr. Li since early July 2018.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 LOSS OF ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

Zhejiang Tou Rong has engaged an independent PRC lawyer since July
2019 to take actions against the abovementioned offence including, but
not limited to, collecting relevant evidence to the offence and reporting the
offence to the PRC police. The PRC lawyer has commenced their investigation
and is expected to report to the PRC police for further investigation in
September 2019.

Besides, the Group has engaged an independent PRC legal advisor to
review the Supply Agreements and service agreement and assist the Group
to recover the prepayments. Based on the opinion of the independent
legal advisor, in view that the suppliers haven't duly completed the Supply
Agreements, the absence of certain contractual service agreement and the
Group was not able to contact the relevant suppliers and service provider
for details, the independent PRC legal advisor is in the opinion that the
prepayments to suppliers and service provider amounting to approximately
HK$68,107,000 in aggregate are unlikely to be recoverable and accordingly,
full impairment loss of such prepayments to suppliers and service provider
were provided in the current year.

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 9 August 2018, the
Company announced that the People's Government of Gongshu District,
Hangzhou the PRC has published a bulletin on 24 July 2018 regarding #i /!l
BRI ER BB SRR AR A (the “Concerned Company”), a fellow
sub5|d|a|ry of the Company established in the PRC which Mr. Li is the legal
representative, director and general manager of the Concerned Company,
that criminal compulsory measures have been taken again 13 suspects and
the criminal detention and pursuit for arrest of Mr. Li have been approved.
In this regard, certain bank balance of approximately RMB19,794,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$23,131,000) in a bank account of Zhejiang
Tou Rong in a reputable PRC bank has been frozen by the governmental
authorities since January 2019 as the bank balance is suspected to be related
to the case which Mr. Li is one of the suspects.

The Group has engaged an independent PRC legal advisor to assist the
Group to liaise with the bank and to take appropriate steps to unfreeze
the frozen bank account. Nevertheless, based on the opinion from the
independent PRC legal advisor, in view that the complexity of the case
regarding the Concerned Company and the governmental authorities have
the right to apply for extension of the frozen period of the relevant bank
account, the probability to unfreeze the bank account before the conclusion
of the case regarding the Concerned Company is remote. Besides, in view
that the court has the overriding right to settle the amounts due to the
creditors in the case using the frozen assets, the independent PRC legal
advisor is in the opinion that the frozen bank balance of Zhejiang Tou Rong
amounting to approximately HK$23,131,000 is unlikely to be recoverable
and accordingly, full impairment loss of such bank balance was provided in
the current year.

11

e PR ERR M

BEERE (#)

[CERNE )

(a)

(b)

(#)

MIRBEE T NFLARTE 2B
hEFES LR FTRRITY BEETRR
WERAMZFETZABERLAPEET RS
FZET-FERMEMGAERBEEEN=F
—NENARPEETREEE-TRE -

WM AEEEERE - RB U HEAAERE
B 4t FE 170 58 R AR 5 10 58 + 0 17 B AN SR Mk B TR
R8BI B R RBERNER - R GLER
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LR 52 [ 4 SR B 4 G R P R I RS £ R P 0
S B REUEREMR A TAR SR E
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EEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

12 FINANCE COSTS, NET

12 MERA  FE

2019 2018

—E-AEF —ZZE-N\F

HK$000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Interest expenses on: LTEBEZFEMS :

- bonds —fEF (64,756) (52,258)
— bank borrowings —IRITEE (952) (751)
(65,708) (53,009)

Interest income on bank deposits RITFRZFBWA 569 61
Finance costs, net BB A - FEE (65,139) (52,948)

13 INCOME TAX CREDIT

13 FiEfiiER

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Current income tax BOEART1S A
Hong Kong profits tax BEABNEH - 851
PRC Enterprise income tax R RS 13 =
Under/(over) provision of BEFERETRS
prior years (HBEEB) 5 (127)
18 724
Deferred income tax (Note 32) EIEFTS R (MizE32) (89) (1,570)
Income tax credit FriG I8 % (71) (846)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill

was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the

following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat

rate of 16.5%.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation in the relevant jurisdiction of which the
most significant jurisdictions are the PRC which has a corporate
income tax rate of 25% (2018: 25%). Under the applicable
corporate tax law in Macau, profits tax is charged at 12% (2018:
12%) of the estimated assessable profits.

No current Macau complementary corporate tax and PRC
corporate income tax have been provided for as the Group did
not have any assessable profits in Macau nor in the PRC for the
year (2018: Nil).

There is no tax impact relating to components of other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
Nil).

e PR ERR M

13 FiSHiiER (&

AAFEERA EHMASGIFSB
W RS BEGEMBREm ST E
Ko BENE IR EFE G5 ERN
A IA16.5% 5T & o

N E AR KA A R R
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25% ( ZZF—)\F :25% )  IRERPIE
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2% (ZF—)\F:12% ) @k -

F A AN 4R A SR B AR P b B AR A
o] FEER A0 48 ) » 4 1 3 K 5152 B H3 R P
M (b S FTIS AT M B R PR 1S 70 3
w(ZE-NF ]&) -

RBE_Z-NF==A=+—HIF
B H%ﬁ&%ﬁfﬁiiﬂﬁazﬁﬁ”&/\J'fﬁzziafk
TE(ZT-N\F:8)-

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umlted BRERESEERAT

Annual Report 2018-19 —Z—N\E—NFFERE

211



212

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

13 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before taxation per the consolidated income statement as

follows:

13

FREHE R (@)

FAMSHE R EEERER 2K
THATEBERMT :

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T AT
Loss before taxation bR & BT & 18 (404,967) (201,657)
Tax at the domestic income tax BRI GBI E16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (ZE—N\F:16.5%)
FTEHRIE (66,820) (33,273)
Tax effect of different tax rates of REA ELARE RS 2
subsidiaries operating in other AR R =R
jurisdiction MR E (4,975) (1,002)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RAERATBERERD
differences not recognised ik (12,590) 24,873
Tax effect of utilisation of A LRI ERTIEEED
previously recognised tax losses Mg 2 = (820)
Tax effect of tax losses not ARERREESENRGETE
recognised 14,116 4,275
Tax effect of income not taxable R ONE Y -2
for tax purpose (1,751) (6,584)
Tax effect of expenses not A HMBAZ ARG 2
deductible for tax purpose 71,944 11,842
Effect of tax concession %RAW/W%Z w2 — (30)
Under/(over) provision in prior year  @FFEBEETL
(ERFREE) 5 (127)
Income tax credit FRiSfiiE & (71) (846)

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t R = £ E AR AR
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e PR ERR M

LOSS PER SHARE 14 BREE

Basic loss per share attributable to the owners of the Company is KARVEB ARG BRERNEETIRE
calculated by dividing loss for the year attributable to owners of RABHEA ANEIEF NEER MEWE
the Company by the weighted average number of shares in issue BATRGD 2 INETFHHEE

during the year.

2019 2018
—E-AF —ZT-N\F
Loss attributable to the owners of RATEE AELRER
the Company (HK$'000) (B¥FT) (402,320) (199,630)
Weighted average number of BEITE AR 2 fE T8
ordinary shares in issue (FA%)
(shares in thousands) 8,967,876 7,593,433
Basic loss per share BREARERE
(HK cents) () (4.49) (2.63)
For the year ended 31 March 2018, the computation of diluted ﬁi —NEFAZT EIJJ:EF
loss per share has not assumed the exercise the Company’s inE&TéEﬁEIXTE’“ NCIbAL
outstanding share options since the adjusted exercise prices of ﬂifﬂfﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁéﬁﬁ REEREZZ
these options were higher than the average market prices of E-\F=ZA=+—RHIEFERAZRIT
shares for the outstanding period during years ended 31 March FEEZ S ERE CEARTEES RN
2018. Mty 2 FIHTE -
No diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2019 is HREE—ZT—NF=-A=+—HLF
presented as there is no potential ordinary shares in issue for the B B B BT ERR - 25
year ended 31 March 2019. HE_Z-NF=A=+—BHILFEZ
BREEER-
DIVIDEND 15 IRE
The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of any EZe T EEARNERNRNEMRE (=
dividend during the year (2018: Nil). T—NF:fE)-
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umlted xviﬁm KEARAT
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e TR MR

= g =
16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 ¥I% - -BERRKE
Furniture,
0il Plant and Motor fixture and  Construction-
properties machinery vehicles equipment in-progress Total
HE-
RhEE HEEER RE REERME EEIR /it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT
(Note a) (Note b) (Note a)
(FizH@)) (P3E(0)) (FizkG@))
Cost: RAfE:
At 1 April 2017 RZZ—+tFWMA-A 126,246 68,746 5,998 14,634 15,430 231,054
Additions WE = = = 3,59 3,858 7,452
Exchange realignment EHBE 13,686 2 294 175 1375 15,532
At 31 March 2018 R=Z-\$=RA=+-H 139,932 68,748 6,292 18,403 20,663 254,038
Additions RE 1,224 - 431 250 - 1,955
Disposals HE = = (1) (1,106) = (1,217)
Transfer ELE 3811 - - - (3811) -
Exchange realignment EHHE (8,956) (1) (192) (308) (1,024) (10,481)
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE=R=1+-H 136,011 68,747 6,470 17,239 15,828 244,295
Accumulated depreciation ~ BREHTERHEE:
and impairment:
At 31 April 2017 RZZ—+FmA—-AH 81,338 50,840 4,828 9,347 1,435 147,788
Depreciation for the year FRME (F37)

(Note 7) 3,972 4153 279 1,538 - 9,942
Impairment losses HEER (M6Re)

(Note 6 and (a)) 42,706 - - - 17,904 60,610
Exchange realignment B HAE 8,758 2 274 84 - 9,118
At 31 March 2018 R=Z-\$=R=1+-H 136,774 54,995 5,381 10,969 19,339 227,458
Depreciation for the year FNHE (F:7)

(Note 7) 351 4130 378 2,094 - 6,953
Eliminated on disposals AU B 8 - = (49) (551) = (600)
Reversal of impairment losses i B & E & (His6k(@))

(Note 6 and (a)) (9,827) - - - (4,120) (13,947)
Exchange realignment EHAE (5,840) (1) (178) (61) (1) (6,081)
At 31 March 2019 R-Z-N§=RA=1+-H 121,458 59,124 5,532 12,451 15,218 213,783

Carrying value: REE:
At 31 March 2019 R=Z-NE=R=1+-H 14,553 9,623 938 4,788 610 30,512
At 31 March 2018 R=Z-\§=fA=1+-H 3,158 13,753 9N 7434 1,324 26,580
2 1 4 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Impairment assessment for crude oil segment

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group entered into a “technical
service and revenue sharing” agreement (“the Master Agreement”) and
a supplemental agreement to the Master Agreement (“the Supplemental
Agreement”) with an independent third party (“the Contractor”) with
effect from 1 January 2015 to 1 September 2028, pursuant to which the
Contractor is to provide on-site technical and management services to the
Group in respect of the Group's exploration and production activities on
its oilfields located at the Heilongjiang Province of the PRC. According to
the Master Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement, the Contractor
is also responsible for all operating costs as well as capital investment costs
in drilling new wells and other oilfield related long term investment. The
Group receives 0%, 10% and 15% of revenue from total crude oil sales
from year one, years two to three and year four onwards during the service
period respectively. The Group can, at its discretion and without recourse,
terminate the Master Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement by giving
a 6-month notice. The Contractor has not commenced to provide the service
according to the Master Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement up to
the date when the consolidated financial statements are authorised for use.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the management performed
impairment assessments on oil properties and construction-in-progress and
oil exploitation licences relating to the crude oil segment, representing an
individual cash generating unit ("CGU"), as the operation of the oilfields
located at the Heilongjiang Province of the PRC has been suspended since
2015. However, due to the surge in oil price during 2019, the management
assessed and estimated that the Group will be able to generate additional
cash flow from the business operation of the crude oil segment via additional
capital injection.

For the purpose of impairment assessment, the recoverable amount of
the CGU as at the end of the reporting period is estimated, based on fair
value less cost of disposal (“FVLCOD") calculation determined with the
assistance of Apex Reservoir Service Inc., an independent valuer. The FVLCOD
calculation used fair value of the CGU, calculated using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets provided by the management and approved
by the Board covering an eight-year (2018: nine-year) period, which is the
remaining contractual period of the oil exploration licences, less relevant
cost of disposal. The recoverable amount of the CGU is estimated to be
higher than the carrying amounts of these property, plant and equipment
and intangible asset and accordingly, reversal of impairment losses of
approximately HK$9,827,000, HK$4,120,000 and HK$64,598,000 are
recognised for oil properties and construction-in-progress under property,
plant and equipment and oil exploitation licenses under intangible assets
respectively, on a pro rata basis with reference to the carrying amount
of these assets before the reversal of impairment, for the year ended 31
March 2019 (2018: impairment loss of approximately HK$42,706,000,
HK$17,904,000 and HK$92,310,000 are recognised for oil properties,
construction-in-progress under property, plant and equipment and oil
exploitation licenses under intangible assets respectively).

P & :

(a)

e PR ERR M

16 Y% M EKR&RE &)

B EZ AR

BE_Z-AF=-A=+—HLFE FEEA
*%Ei%jﬁ (T&#77 ) RIS — 10 THAl AR
BREESKI AR ([ZAR])) REARN—
xS ((HEBH]) FRHE-F -5
F-A—BARE-T-N\FAA—HLE Bt
BRI BRA BN ERIETEHENE
RREERY AARBERERSRMEEIE
R% -RETARARBERH ANTTRAER
FAERERR BRMHSZEFRERAR R
o R AR 2t = AR - A R I R S A B
FFRBRRHERRA0R F_EFE=F
WER10% » 5570 bATR IR 15% © AN 5= B ] B e
T EREAIER THRAE S E A B
LEEHHEMEGRE -SOTLRABNES
FEMBBRRERETHAHNRETARARE
T BR O AR A

—NE=ZA=+—RALFE BRI
REIAZHAEECRE S~ 0FY
= HEREHER G BRBIHEERE
12 TAZ LA R ek BRERET AT ST T RUERTAS - 1EE
RERER RS EESEM ([REEEBM]) -
R RBEBR =T AFRe TEETE
kit AEEKERBINIEERBIHZ
EBEENELRIRER -

=

RAEFENS ReELBURBRESHRZ
AT U (8] < %8 79 AR 45 1E 98 37 {5 {E A Apex Reservoir
Service Inc., BB TE E 2 A F ER T & KA
(TFVLCOD |) s+ & Hi fl &t » FVLCODET E £ A
ReneEil TERERERURESSIE
ZNE(ZZ—N\F:NE)H (BRI RET
ARERABREER A Z BT ANER) MisEE
HERSEABNZATE REELBNZA
W ElSFEE DR EZEME S KRB R
WEEZERE Al REE-T-hF=A
E+—BLEERDBIRTAEE VE - BE
RSEHE MERTRRRERMEER N2 A AR
PRI 2ERSEENRENOREERL B
EYERE RO (A 5 18 18 (B 40 75 #69,827,0007T + 7
#£4,120,0007T & 7% #64,598,0007T ( =% — )\
FEREKAEE VE BERRFEEER
TIRREREER T AMBRITAESD IR
SR {E T8 497%42,706,0007T * #%17,904,0007TC
K ##92,310,0007T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

BRI

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(b)

()

Impairment assessment for crude oil segment (Continued)

The key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow model are as follows:

16 Y% M EKR&RE (&)

PR &E - ()

(a)

Bl 5 82 WA R (80

MERRERERAEAZ ETEH/ROT ¢

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Weighted average oil price per tonne (RMB) 8 8l # i % 1A hi 4

for the forecast period FHmE (ARE) 3,391 2,894

Estimated total extraction of oil fhEtAMBRIEE (TRME)
(thousand tonnes) 1,015 23
Discount for lack of marketability R Z 5 R R 1 R AT 12.0% 12.0%
Discount rate BhIR X 17.4% 16.5%

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, a decrease in the weighted
average oil price per tonne for the forecast period by 1% and a decrease in
estimated total extraction of oil by 1% would result in a decrease in reserval
of impairment loss of HK$11,138,000 and HK$8,993,000 respectively.

Impairment assessment for plant and machinery

Plant and machinery of the Group represents rigs located at the Republic
of Kazakhstan acquired in previous acquisitions of subsidiaries. During the
current year, the management performed an impairment assessment on the
plant and machinery as these assets were determined idle during a review of
property, plant and equipment conducted during the year. For the purpose of
impairment assessment, the recoverable amount of the plant and equipment
as at the end of the reporting period is estimated, based on fair value (being
second hand value of similar plant and machinery) less cost of disposal
calculation determined with the assistance of Colliers International (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent valuer. The recoverable amount of the plant
and machinery is estimated to be higher than the its carrying amount and
accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised for the year ended 31
March 2019 (2018: nil).

Environmental rehabilitation investment in the PRC

Due to the underground oil exploitation method adopted by the Group,
the Group has not incurred any significant expenditure on environmental
rehabilitation since its establishment. There is, however, no assurance
that stringent environmental policies and/or standard on environmental
rehabilitation will not be implemented by the relevant authorities in the PRC
in the future which require the Group to undertake environmental measures.
The financial position of the Group may be adversely affected by any
environment liabilities, which may be imposed under such new environment
policies and/or standards.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited &l & & £ E AR Q)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

e AR MR

17 REY

2019 2018
S G
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Cost: RAE :
At beginning and end of the year RETNRER 122,668 122,668
Accumulated depreciation and T ERME:
impairment:
At beginning of the year NG 18,781 16,550
Depreciation for the year (Note 7) FRHE (7)) 2,231 2,231
At end of the year RER 21,012 18,781
Net book value FRmE R E 101,656 103,887
Notes: B 5%
(a) Amounts recognised in consolidated income statement for the (a) REEUBLRBARENEZSHE
investment properties
2019 2018
—EB-AF S N\FE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Rental income HeKA 3,102 2,928
Direct operating expenses from EEHSBAZYEZ
properties that generated HEKERX
rental income (115) (375)
Direct operating expenses from REEHSWAZMEZ
properties that did not generate HELERX
rental income (135) (138)
2,852 2,415
(b) An independent valuation of the Group's investment properties was (b) BAREEREMENBLAEEIBB LMK
performed by an independent valuer, Unicorn Consulting and Appraisal EMSERARAEERIA(ZE—N
Limited (2018: Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited), to determine the F BB (BEE)BRATRMNEEL
fair value of the investment properties as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 by BURETT UNEEREVER-_Z-NAFR=
adopting direct comparison approach. As at 31 March 2019, the aggregate E-N\F=ZA=+—BZAFE-R=F—Hh
fair values of the Group's investment properties amounted to approximately FZRA=+T—H XEEREMEIATEE
HK$143,300,000 (2018: HK$138,400,000). FEH) R 5143,300,0007T (= — )\ F B
138,400,0007T ) °
(o) As at 31 March 2019, the Group's investment properties in Hong Kong with () RZB-NF=ZRA=+—RH FAKEUREE

net book value of approximately HK$79,845,000 (2018: HK$103,887,000)
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 29(c)).

HIRE Y ¥ W REFE L A51579,845,0007C
(=ZF—)\4 : #%103,887,0007T ) E {EH -
ARG T ASBEHSEITEE (H&290) °

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited Z @R E S EGR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

n‘/T\

18 BLEE

218

0il
exploitation Customer
Goodwill licences  relationship Others Total
bay: ke
HE EXES EFH% Hit CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BETT BT BETT
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c))
(Bi5E () (Bt 7E (b)) (M)
Cost: AR ME:
At 1 April 2017 RZT—+EMA—H 28,087 228,839 30,029 8,631 295,586
Addition B - - - 500 500
Exchange realignment B 5 A% 3,008 24,509 1,492 - 29,009
At 31 March 2018 —N\&=ZA=+—H 31,095 253,348 31,521 9,131 325,095
Exchange realignment ERAE (1,972) (16,069) - - (18,041)
At 31 March 2019 - NE=A=+—H 29,123 237,279 31,521 9,131 307,054
Amortisation and impairment: #8 R FifE :
At 1 April 2017 RZE—tFNA—H 13,025 129,343 22,212 1,733 166,313
Amortisation for the year FREH (HFE7)

(Note 7) - 10,408 1,548 - 11,956
Impairment loss (Note (c)) AEEE (M) 92,310 6,931 = 99,241
Exchange realignment EHRAE 1,395 14,460 830 - 16,685
At 31 March 2018 R-E-\F=A=1+—H 14,420 246,521 31,521 1,733 294,195
Amortisation for the year ENEH (H:E7)

(Note 7) - 759 - - 759
Impairment loss/(reversal of WEEE/ (REEERER)

impairment loss) GEIEO))

(Note (a) and (b)) 15,617 (64,598) - - (48,981)
Exchange realignment i 5 35 2 (914) (15,633) - - (16,547)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-N$¥=A=+—H 29,123 167,049 31,521 1483 229,426

Carrying value: [EN=R
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NF=R=+—A - 70,230 - 7,398 77,628
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-A\$¥=ZA=+—-H 16,675 6,827 - 7,398 30,900

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 1% @& & %

BAERA

Annual Report 2018-19 —Z— \E—NFHFEHE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(9

B R AR M EE

IQF

18 BILEE (&)

B 7
As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, goodwill of the Group is allocated to the (a) R-ZZE-NAFRZZ-N\F=ZA=+—0'%K
commodity trading segment representing an individual CGU. SEABEIEERKRMENRSELESBLY
BRRHHE -
For the purpose of impairment assessment, the recoverable amount of the RBE G RBRERARZREEEEML 2T
CGU as at the end of the reporting period is estimated based on value in use W [B] & 88 T IR 6 A EE (R T - sk aT SR AR IR
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets prepared ERERELNESEMLERERAFHMN (=
by the management and approved by the Board covering a five-year period T-N\F RF)2HREEERZRESRERE
(2018: five-year). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated A E - BARFHECASRENNERE
using growth rates estimated by management taking into consideration the A RIS EER At 2 B REHEE -
economic conditions of the market.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the sales volume of the CGU of RBE-T-AF=A=+— EIJLEF B
commodity trading segment decreased significantly to a less than satisfactory B50H Zﬁ%? EBUZHEABLIRSA
past and expected level. The management of the Group have consequently R R B R TEHIKT - E ZK%I“‘EEJEE
determined impairment loss of goodwill directly related to the CGU of ErTEERES W2 REEL BN EZIAMH
commodity trading segment amounting to HK$15,617,000 (2018: nil). No 2 EEREEIEAE15,617,0000T (ZT—/\
other write-down of the assets of CGU of commodity trading segment is Fof) o AVEMRERES DI
considered necessary. The impairment loss has been included in the line item ReELBNZEE - REBEEREBREND
of “other losses, net” in profit or loss. ATEAfER - F8E ] HE — -
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows: ARG EEREEZEEZRERMT:
2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F
Growth rate for the first five years BREFE 2HEEE 2.4% 2.9%
Growth rate beyond the first five years ~ HB#E AEFE 2 ERX 2.4% 2.9%
Inflation rate AR = 2.4% 2.0%
Discount rate K 16.5% 20.3%
Management determined the weighted average growth rate based on past EEERBEBATRAREEMIGRR 2 EHE
performance and its expectations of market development. The discount rates TENMEFIPERE - FRA 2 TR R BRI AT &
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the operating segment. RREEEDHEMz ARAR -EEERR
The management believe that any reasonable possible change in these key AREEEMKEZZEFIERRZ2EMEIE
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause AR ETeER RS ELEL I EEER
the carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the aggregate of its recoverable BE TR E S EE 2 4R o
amount.
Oil exploitation licences represent two rights for oil exploitation in the (b) AR FIERET Al B R T B BRI A KM IA A h

location of Heilongjiang Province of the PRC which will expire in 2027
and 2028 respectively. Details of impairment assessment prepared by
management are set out in Note 16(a).

Customer relationship arising from the acquisition of a subsidiary has been
impaired as the customer base has been changed during the year ended 31
March 2018 compare to the acquisition date of the subsidiary.

FEFRER EORR B _tER-_F-N\FE
o B2 B RS RERT AR BRI E16(a)

RUE—HHBARELEZRFBEE HBRR
B REFEREANBARZKBRABELE
REE-Z-N\F=ZA=+—RLFEARE
o

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group L\mlted BRERESEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

n‘/T\

19

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19 REFE R R 2 &
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Cost of investments in associates BN R E 2 KA 75,592 75,592
Contributions to unlisted associates — M3E LEMHE QAR Z HE 9,327 9,327
Share of post-acquisition SMEKEEEEERE
comprehensive losses (84,919) (84,919)
Particulars of the Group's associates are set out as follows: REBEBE QR ZFBHINWOT
Name of Place of Proportion of voting power Measurement
the associate incorporation held indirectly Principal activities method
HENRER o MR R AL 3t B BEEARERELA TEEH STEEE
2019 2018
“E-NE — N\
Lee Shing Mining Co. Ltd. Hong Kong 43% 43% Investment holding Equity
(Lee Shing Mining)
FIKBERRADA &5 BEER (&N
([MpKHEZE])
Topclass Global Investment Ltd.  British Virgin 47% 47% Investment holding Equity
("Topclass”) Island
Topclass Global Investment Ltd.  EBE X &S BEER (&N

([Topclass ] )

The interest in Lee Shing Mining and Topclass were fully impaired

in the prior years and there are no movements in the Group's

interests in associates.

Lee Shing Mining and Topclass are private companies and there

is no quoted market price available for their shares. There are no

contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests in Lee Shing

Mining and Topclass.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t R = £ E AR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

20

B R AR M EE

n\/T\

RS RIE - RERHEAE

RECEIVABLES W18
2019 2018
—g-ne —=-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T R IT
Deposits paid for acquisitions of MU E  BE RE
property, plant and equipment B2k 47,319 32,324
Deposit paid for investment MEEENZ2&S 5,700 5,700
Advances to suppliers (Note (a)) M ER R (@) 50,613 120,849
Other receivables and prepayments  H fth & U F0IE & 8~ A
(Note (b)) (Ht5EDb)) 52,892 62,665
156,524 221,538
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (MiEQ)
(Note (c)) (56,306) (46,399)
100,218 175,139
Less: Amount shown under BIERBEEETT
non-current assets Tyl R&58 (49,500) (52,391)
Amount shown under current assets R EEEE NSRS 58 50,718 122,748
Notes: P & -
(a) The balance represented the advances to suppliers for trading of (a) %ﬁﬁ??ﬁ%?ﬁcﬁ%&1tléﬁﬁ%ﬁfﬁ}4‘§?ﬁf’ﬁﬁz

(b)

commodities and chemical products. The advances to suppliers (net of
impairment allowance) as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 were fully utilised
through purchase of commodities and chemical products as at the date when
the consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue.

Included in other receivables and prepayments represents the non-refundable
prepayment to bond placing agents for investor relationship service
amounting to HK$34,456,000 as at 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$41,957,000).
The Group paid the investor relationship service fee in advance at a
discounted lump sum and recognised a prepayment when the amount was
paid. The prepaid investor relationship service fee is amortised on a straight
line basis over the service contract terms.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group L\mlted BRRES
Annual Report 2018-19 =%
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B RNERAMBRRERENE 2R A=
—NER=F-N\F=ZA=+—A ﬁﬁﬂ%?ﬁ-ﬁﬁ
K RRERE) CEBBERMRETER
BEEEHA -

FAAEMERFERBEFREER-Z—LF
ZA=+—ARBREEHMERREABESREER
B2 VE [ 2 7 AT 3R 38 T8 < 5RIE 4 #634,456,0007T
(ZZ—)\F : %¥41,957,0007T) AN 5% @47
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

20 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20 ENRIE e REME
RECEIVABLES (Continued) W FRIE ()

Notes: (Continued) [GEREE )
(c) Allowance for credit losses of prepayments, deposits and other () ERRE REREMERREZEEBERE
receivables
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Financial assets cREE
Other receivable (Note 3(a)(ii)) o FE MR IE (BT EE3(a)i)) 1,148 1,947
Non-financial assets FEWMEE
Deposit paid for acquisitions of property, StUEYZE - BEMKLEHEHZES
plant and equipment (Note (i) CPREEG) ) 22,120 13,933
Deposit paid for investment (Note (ii) RIREE M2 RS (M) 5,700 5,700
Advances to suppliers (Note (i)) [ Bt FE R VR 2 Bk (B EEG)) 25,194 22,530
Other receivables H UK 2,144 2,289
56,306 46,399
Note: B &k -
Details of impairment assessment for financial assets under other receivables HipEWHIEE T2 @ MEERENEFEHR
are set out in note 3(a)(ii). KT E3@)) ©
(i) The management considered certain deposit paid for acquisitions (i) EREEZEMNBAFERBEYE K
of property, plant and equipment and advances to suppliers paid in BEREHEENzE TR RAHERS
previous years were impaired as the Group was unable to receive T2z B RE LBERE REANEEX
the property, plant and equipment and materials purchased from the REEHERBEIFEENYE  BE R
suppliers. AR R RS o
(ii) Included in the amount represented the impairment loss on (ii) DIAZSRERWERATEEBEM
deposit for acquisition of financial assets at FVTOCI amounted 2EBFIIRZEMEEMTZIREZ
to HK$5,700,000. Detail of the investment and the impairment REEE A B5,700,00070 - BEIRE
assessment are set out as per Note 21(b). FORE A B R AR KT EE21(0) ©
222 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

21

%

@5

e T HRAR MR

NFEBEBEMEZEN
IRz ERMEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT IT
At 1 April MmA—8 4,079 29,241
Gain/(loss) on fair value changes NFEEES Y (EFE) (2,127) 4,635
Disposal HE - (29,797)
At 31 March W=A=+—8H 1,952 4,079
Notes: B 5

(a)

(9

Included in the financial assets at FVTOCI represents the Group's long-
term investment of 19.9% equity interests in an unlisted entity engaging in
trading of fuel in Hong Kong. The fair value of this unlisted equity investment
is determined using cash flow projection with the assistance of Unicorn
Consulting and Appraisal Limited (2018: Colliers International (Hong Kong)
Limited) (Note 3(c)).

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group disposed of its investment
of 8.6% equity interests in Gold Tat Group International Limited (“Gold Tat")
with carrying amount of HK$23,112,000. Upon disposal, total fair value gain
of HK$6,685,000 was accounted to other comprehensive income and the
related FVTOCI reserve was debited by HK$24,960,000 and transferred to
accumulated losses.

Financial assets at FVTOCI are denominated in HK$.

()

FARATEEREMEENRRIR 2SR/
BEDEASER —MESBENENEES
RIEEMEIEMI9.9%E 2 REIIRE - 3%
FETEREE 2 ATEHESREL AR
HERRB (ZT—NF : B HER (HH)
BERAF)Z BB TEARSREERETE
(KIEE3()) °

REBEE-_FE-NF=ZA=1T—-HILEFE"
AEBHERSESERBRAERAR ([&
ZE|)NB6NMEZHRE FHEREXR
23,112,000t R i 1% - A FEKZ 5
8 #6,685,0007T Jh et A E At 2 T Uk 2 K 4R
MERATEEREMEERRTIRFEFNSR
78 #24,960,0007T R E & = RFHEE -

BERAFEEBEME2EKEIIRZ SREAE
IABEEHE

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & gt&E & E AR A7)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

BRI

22 TRADE RECEIVABLES

g 5 WA

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Trade receivables H 5 WA 760,570 598,677
Allowance for credit losses EEEERE (244,370) (72,744)
516,200 525,933

Notes:

(a)

(b)

As at 31 March 2019, included in the trade receivables were amounts due
from clearing houses of approximately HK$6,104,000 (2018: HK$3,452,000)
and amounts due from securities brokerage clients of approximately
HK$225,000 (2018: HK$781,000).

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit
assessment system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. The management considers adequate
allowance has been made at end of the year. Balances which are neither
past due nor impaired are all receivable from customers with good historical
repayment records and good credit quality.

Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to maintain tight
control over its outstanding trade receivables in order to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are regularly monitored by management.

The settlement terms of trade receivables attributable to the securities
brokerage business are two days after the trade date. For the remaining
business of the Group, trade receivables are on general terms of 30 to 120
days.

Aging analysis of gross trade receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

(b)

(d)

RZE—NAE=A=+—0 ESRKZEE
JE Wy 45 BT SR IB K045 #56,104,0007T (=2 — N\
F: /ﬁﬁzsztszooom&réuﬁz HIEREP R
HAA#225,0007T ( =Z — )\4F : #E#781,000
JT) °

REMNEAHEL AEESERNBEERT
BEAFGEEEEFPZFRERRRAEEFE
ERE-EEERRRFREEHREERF B
*?@HQWTHHEZ@%%’EH?%IEE%EHEF
ERLBERRFERERZEFP ZEKRK

FEBEERTELPRERHRE - AEERES
H s R UK BB 5 TR IR AR B BRAR TR - LARR
BEERR -BRECHEEDHES-

FREEEBREEHERUKAZEERRE
X%H%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ RAKEZ HMEBHS &
2 EWGRIATIZ30E1208 2 — R AR E TR
5o

S RUHARBERAPZRERAMOT :

2019 2018

—E-AF —T-N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Less than 30 days T 2308 28,621 4,423
More than 30 days but less than 3 months #2:@30R 18712 =& A 20,021 20,596
More than 3 months but less than 1 year i@ =1{8FEFE—4 689,109 534,973
More than 1 year HiE—F 22,819 38,685
760,570 598,677

Details of credit policy impairment assessment of trade receivables for the
year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 are set out in Note 3(a(ii).

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

0}

The Group's largest customer within the commodity trading segment has
a significant outstanding trade receivable balance due to the Group with
gross carrying amount of HK$711,733,000 (2018: HK$551,620,000) as
at 31 March 2019. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group has
negotiated with the Group’s largest customer for the repayment of the
outstanding trade receivables as at 31 March 2019 of which will be fully
repaid by the customer on or before 31 December 2019. Subsequent to 31
March 2019 and up to the date when the consolidated financial statements
are authorised for issue, the trade receivables with carrying amount of
HK$523,291,000 has been settled by the customer, representing 74% of the
gross carrying amount of trade receivables due from the customer as at 31

e PR ERR M

B 5 EWFIE (&)

PR 7E : (40)

()

AEEEREFIOBANZEARATFR=_Z—Hh
FZA=+—BAENAEEZEKEKRER
B 5 e MR I 4 fR 4R BR T B 15711,733,000
JT (ZZ— )\ & : #¥551,620,0007T) - HE =
T-NF=ZA=1+—BLEE FAEEDEK
EESEARFEREEKAEPR_T—NF
TZA=+-HREZAEBEEZ T —NF
ZAZ+—BZHAERESBREHRE N
Z-NFZA=+—HEREZERAUKERE
BRENEZA BREZEKFERBESS
523,291,000tEHEF#&E HERKR =T

March 2019. —NWEZA=+—BREKEFESREZ LK
EE274% °
(9) The carrying amounts of trade receivables net of allowance for credit losses (9) E%FEHAZ RIE 2 REE (R EEEBERE) D
are denominated in the following currencies: LA 51 & 5 HE

2019 2018
—E-hF ZENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
HK$ T 7,210 51,024
RMB AR¥ - 271,633
us$ eV 508,990 203,276
516,200 525,933

23 LOANS RECEIVABLE 23 EWEF

2019 2018
—E-hF —T N E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Loans receivable from money lending & B B & E 5 2 BN E &
business (Note (a)) (FI5E@)) 56,856 58,000
Margin loans receivable (Note (b)) FEUFFRE R (K& (D)) 17,041 31,598
73,897 89,598
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE
— loans receivable (Note (a)) —BIWER (k@) (3.118) (7,367)
- margin loans receivable —BWAFRER
(Note (b)) (P7ED)) (8,428) (8,298)
(11,546) (15,665)
62,351 73,933
Tou Rong Chang Fu G Limited 2 &= RMAER A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

23 LO

BRI

ANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(]

23 EWREF (&)

B 7 <
Loans receivable to the extent of approximately HK$56,856,000 (2018: (a) HEBBABIIE=TIRHEBHERZ MESE
HK$58,000,000), which arise from the money lending business of W5 2 A 2 FEMUE SR 40 6 56,856,0007T (=%
providing short-term loans to independent third parties in Hong Kong, are — J\4F : ##58,000,0007T ) * JHLAASEERTE
denominated in HK$.
The carrying amounts are determined using effective interest rates ranging EEEEANFEF20%E54% (ZF—\F:
from 20% to 54% (2018: 22% to 54%) per annum and are repayable with 22%%54% ) 2 ERFIEETE  REETERS
fixed terms ranging from three to twenty four months. BAF=2=—+mH@EA-
As at 31 March 2019, loans receivable of approximately HK$6,918,000 RZB-NAF=ZA=+—R0 BRERLOEE
(2018: HK$9,820,000) bearing interests ranging from 24% to 54% (2018: 6,918, 00071(7 T—)\F: %%9 820,0007T)
24% to 54%) per annum, are unsecured and expected to be settled by ZRENFEF24%E54% (ZF—)\F :24%
the borrowers within 1 year. The management considers that the second £54% ) BEEREESER —FABERA
mortgage loans are classified as unsecured loans due to the impediment BE AN RIS EFTE A A REEER
in repossession of the mortgage properties and the practical difficulties to HRRNEAZE R ERAREERNFREE
ascertain the residual collateral value after claim by first mortgagee. ;
As at 31 March 2019, loans receivable of approximately HK$49,938,000 —NEF=ZA=+—8 EREXNEE
(2018: HK$48,180,000) bearing interests ranging from 20% to 36% (2018: 49,938,000%(7 T — )\ 4 : 5 ¥48,180,000
22% to 36%) per annum, are secured and expected to be settled by the ) ZHEN T HF20%E36% (ZT—/\F:
borrowers within 1 year. These loans receivable are secured by unlisted equity 22%%E36% ) RE/RRRBHHR —FARHE
securities. ARAEE - Z SR E A L RAREH
o
Interest income of approximately HK$21,405,000 (2018: HK$15,941,000) for EFERERKERZAMBBEALEE
non-credit impaired loans receivable has been recognised as revenue in the 21,405,0007T ( =F —/\4 : ##15,941,0007T)
consolidated income statement. ERGERERARERREA
The maturity profile of the loans receivable based on maturity date which are BEARBBTERE BKERREIHAGE
neither past due nor impaired is as follows: ZEHERET
2019 2018
—EB-AF —T—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Receivable in: LA T B R PR
Less than 1 months —&@A 593 -
1 month to 3 months —EARAZE=MEA 45,289 -
More than 3 months but less than 1 year i@ =1{& 8 LR —4 - 14,528
45,882 14,528
As at 31 March 2019, included in loans receivable was advances to margin (b) —NEF=ZA=+—B BURERBER
clients in margin financing amounting to approximately HK$17,041,000 RESBREFEL TRESEF ZERNBE
(2018: HK$31,598,000), which are bearing interest at commercial rates, 17,041,0007C (== — )\ 4 : & #31,598,000
secured by the underlying pledged listed securities and are repayable on 70)  BERRIRTMRE R KA S A ER
demand. T REFERRRBEREREE-
In respect of the margin loans receivable advances to margin clients in AR FE AL #8,603,000t (ZF— N
margin financing with net carrying amount of approximately HK$8,603,000 4 1 }8123,300,0007T) 2 FFRAE F H 4R T
(2018: HK$23,300,000), the fair values of the collaterals of such margins BEEFZRUAFRERBRMNE ZEFEE
loans can be objectively ascertained to cover the outstanding amount of the PREARZATEASEREBRHBERGHZ
loan balances. REELE-
The Group's exposure to credit risk related to loans receivable are disclosed in (0 AEEEG 2 B EREERBEENHTE3)
Note 3(a)(ii). (ii)
The carrying amounts of the loans receivables are denominated in HK$. (d) FEWRE TR 2 BREE AB K EHE -

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited &l & & £ E AR Q)
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24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

B R AR M EE

n\/T\

24 BRAFEEBERIIEKZ

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS THREE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T R IT
Financial assets mandatorily BHEATEZRERYIERZ
at FVTPL: ERMEE -
Listed equity security in BB ETMBRAES
Hong Kong (Note (a)) (FfF3E()) 4,653 46,747
Unlisted equity investment IELEMIRAKE (KED))
(Note (b)) 2,401 27,571
7,054 74,318
Less: Amount shown under WERBEEET
non-current assets FIRe &% (2,401) (27,571)
Amount shown under REBEEHETNIRZE
current assets (4,653) 46,747

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The fair value is based on the current bid prices in an active market.

Pursuant to the contractual agreement entered into between the Group,
the vendors and the guarantor in April 2015, the Group agreed to acquire
the 100% equity interest in Perfect Reward Limited (“Perfect Reward”) a
private entity incorporated in British Virgin Islands. Perfect Reward and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the liquefied natural gas (“LNG")
business and is a service provider of the LNG supply chain covering all
the upstream, midstream and downstream segments in the industry. A
deposit and prepayment of transaction costs amounted to HK$33,271,000
in aggregate which are refundable in accordance with the terms of the
agreement was paid by the Group when entered into the agreement.

Subsequently, in February 2016, the Group, the vendors and the guarantor
mutually agreed and entered into a termination deed to terminate the
acquisition agreement and the deposit and prepayment of transaction costs
paid by the Group shall be refunded by the vendors forthwith without
interest with immediate effect. However, the vendors failed to refund the
deposit and prepayment of transaction costs to the Group after entering into
the termination deed with the Group.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group L\mlted BRRES
Annual Report 2018-19 =%

AT BRSBTS 2% AT EE -

BREAER BFEERAR-_Z-—RFHN
RET 2z &KW - A%k B R B Y Perfect
Reward Limited ([Perfect Reward | + —fE /5
BELZBESEMRILIZIAELRE) 22802
Perfect Reward & E Mt & 22 7 £ ZHEFBRIERA
FTBRIERARR]) B RRIL R AR E
CREERNFTA LI Rl R T2 8) 2 R5
HEF - RFRAZIRE RENRES LB
33,271,0007T ( AIAR 5 15 a8t 2 (R BRUR 8 ) IRORT 32
ICEASEEN SO

BEfk N-F—ANF_A A%E- T EER
/\*HHH?I" SLER I BRYRIARE IR ek
FEEAENZRHRAE RS RBNRER
BT AR BRE - AT BT WARNEARE
BT R IERBRAAEERER HRA 2R
ERBMKE-

SEERAT

“NE-NFEEHE
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nVT\

24

25

BRI

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

With the management'’s follow-up actions to recover the deposit paid,
on 29 March 2018, the Group entered into a contractual agreement to
acquire 15% equity interests in Perfect Reward, at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$33,271,000, offset by the abovementioned deposit and
prepayment of transaction costs paid by the Group in the prior years. In
addition, pursuant to the contractual agreement, the Group was granted
a put option exercisable by the Group within two years from the date of
completion of the acquisition of which the Group has the irrevocable and
unconditional right to sell back the 15% equity interests in Perfect Reward to
the vendor of the contractual agreement at the price of HK$33,271,000.

With reference to the valuation performed by an independent valuer, the
fair value of the investment in 15% equity interest in Perfect Reward as
at the date of acquisition amounted to HK$27,571,000. The fair value of
the investment as at the date of acquisition was less than the aggregate
carrying amount of the deposit and prepayment of transaction costs paid
by the Group in prior years and accordingly, impairment loss on deposit and
prepayment of transaction costs amounted to approximately HK$5,700,000
was provided for the year ended 31 March 2018. Besides, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, as the Group was still unable to recover the
deposit paid after the various follow-up actions taken by the management,
the put option is not exercisable by the Group and accordingly, the put

option is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company have elected to designate the investment in
equity instruments at FVTPL. The fair value of this unlisted equity investment
is determined using cash flow projections with assistance of Colliers

International Hong Kong Limited, an independent valuer (Note 3(c)).

(o] Changes in fair values of financial assets at FVTPL are recorded in “other

losses, net” in the consolidated income statement.

(d) The carrying amounts of the financial assets at FVTPL are denominated in

HK$.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

24 BRAFEEBERIIKRZ
THMEE (@)

BT - (80)

(b) (&)
BEE EIEERIE KL BN RS BREREE
RZB-N\F=ZA=-TIhAB AKETILEOWHB

(©

(d)

% DR RELE33,271,0007T 48 & Perfect
RewardZ 15% A% 4 + F 7~ & [ 70 38 1 F /5 T X
2 ERZGRAZ R RIEMARIBATIKE -
BEoh - RIRE KW ARMER T AEmMA R
BB SERK B IR AR 4F AT 2 3R0h HAME - APk
MBS TR R R TR E R B
33,271,0007T A& #1332 B 75 T 61 7 Perfect
Reward 2 15% % #E

LBBYGEMETZMEE Perfect
Reward15% & # 2 1 & A FENUEE B 81575
#£27,571,0007T - UL EE B Bl 2 & DN FEER
KEERBAEFERAIMZRIKRAZIRE R
FENRBEBZBEEE St BE-T—N\F=
A=+—BIEEEEHZBREREEEOR
78 #55,700,0007T ° It 5N - AR A EER A - AR
AEENERBRMEBREEBEDAREK
BT 2 iR - AR BRI R B
L SRR MR A AR A B TS R N HERR

RABFERBHRBATARNZREEE
}Q’A?E}Eﬂ}éaﬂﬁﬁ REREERR &K
AARBMENBER ZFLTEAREZR
FEDRBGEAS D REYEER (FE)
ARADFAREREBER (M EE3()) EE -

BATEBBERIIRZSHEEZ ATESE
PR ARERA [HMER  F8] P ARk

R TEE B TR 2 & BAEREELLE
WA

25 WehIREEEE

2019 2018

—E-hF —E—N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T TEEEF T

Cash at banks and on hand RITRFHEES 87,607 354,333
Less: Client trust bank balances B BEEFTIRITEH

(Note) (B 7E) (4,839) (5,410)

Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEIEE 82,768 348,923

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

e PR ERR M

RekRELEFEEER (&)

Re MBITHERNBREETA TSI
siE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E—)N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BET T ¥ T

HK$ 7 35,355 175,898
Us$ E7T 51,341 21,309
RMB AR 826 157,005
Others Hi 85 121
87,607 354,333

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's bank balances of
approximately HK$274,000 (2018: HK$121,310,000) were
deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

Note:

The Group maintains segregated deposit accounts with banks and authorised
institutions to hold clients” monies arising from its normal course of business. The
Group has classified the brokerage clients” monies as client trust bank balances
under the current assets section of the consolidated statement of financial position,
and recognised the corresponding trade payables to the respective brokerage
clients on the grounds that they are liable for any loss or misappropriation of their
brokerage clients" monies (Note 26(c)). Client trust bank balances is restricted and
governed by the Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Certain bank balance of approximately RMB19,794,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,131,000) in a bank account of an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company in a reputable PRC bank has been frozen by the governmental authorities
since January 2019 as the bank balance is suspected to be related to the case which
the director of the indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary is one of the suspects. In the
opinion of the independent PRC legal advisor engaged by the Group, the frozen
bank balance is unlikely to be recoverable. Accordingly, the management of the
Group concluded that impairment losses amounting to HK$23,131,000 should be
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2019. Details of impairment assessment
prepared by management were set out in Note 11.

EA:% hE=ZA=+—RH XEEZ

RITHE SR H) B #274,0000L (ZE— N\
ir;%%uymo,oooﬁ)aﬁk# Bz
BIT-HZEESCEHTPHAGTH
B F sk SN T B I 98 4 2 AE BE AR A oA
e

B 5 -

FEERBITRBEEBBRIBIEHES  UEE
HEREFXBERFELEZEPRA - AEERGAH
BRAXRARBDAERIBELRELKBANERES
ERRITAR TERSFAHERESRABRIRE
BAZERL BRENEAKLEEFZIEEESEN
KA (MEE26(0)) - BEFPERRTERZ (BHFRHAE

BBl BT EHEHE (RPFR) AR ARGk

Bo

ARAIEEEENEA RN EERFHERITHRITER
FRETRITHEBROARE9,794,0007T (HHER K
#23,131,00070) B 8 =T — NG — A B RITH# R
# REAZBITHESEERZEEZENBRAINE
ERLERFEAZ —ORGEH -AEBZENB LR
B RBERIRA « R RITAEBRT AT AU E - Hut, -
AEEEEREHE S EEBB23,131 ooom@ﬁ@%
BERBE-_T - NAF=A=+—HLFEHER &}

[E i BB R E AT A SE I B BT R 11 o
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n‘/T\

BRI

26 TRADE PAYABLES

B 5 BARA

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Trade payables (Note (a)) B S EMFIE (K@) 49,613 19,085
Notes: B3 :

(a)

(©

(d)

(e)

As at 31 March 2019, included in trade payables were amounts due to
clearing houses of approximately HK$6,416,000 (2018: HK$4,969,000) and
amounts due to securities brokerage clients of approximately HK$5,880,000
(2018: HK$4,884,000).

The majority of trade payables are repayable on demand except where
certain trade payables to securities brokerage clients represents margin
deposits received from clients for their trading activities under normal course
of business. Only the excess amounts over the required margin deposits
stipulated are repayable on demand.

Trade payables to securities brokerage clients also include those payables
placed in trust and segregated accounts with authorised institutions of
approximately HK$4,839,000 (2018: HK$5,410,000) (Note 25).

No aging analysis is disclosed for amounts due to clearing house and
securities brokerage clients as in the opinion of the directors, it does not give
additional value in the view of these businesses.

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables excluding clearing house
and securities brokerage clients presented at the end of the year.

Aging analysis of trade payables based on invoice dates is as follows:

(a) RZE—AF=ZA=+—H0 ZBZEMNKER
EREMNEE T RIELNA%6,416,000T (=T
— J\4F : #%4,969,0007T) & E B AL LR
B ARIA K 78 #55,880,0007T (Z T — N\F : B
4,884,0007T) °

(b) ﬂi DEHRNFIRRREREE  EETRN
BHRELREPT E?a@ﬁ?i%%i’%ﬂ&*}ﬁ
ﬁzﬁ%/é%ﬁﬁl&ﬁlZﬁ SREKRIE
BAAAZARERESRSRRIRBREE-

(] ENEAELEF 2 E SR RBENRBIETR
RIRAT NS 2 B E AR 2 R BR KK
4,839,0007C ( = F — )\ : /& #5,410,0007T )
(Ht3E25) ©

(d) HREEZAR BNBEMREFBLELK
HEBENE AU R EIR M NE - B b3 &
BRARER D -

(e) UNTREZENRR (TRELEMRESL
LEPHFR)NFERZI 2 R DT -

BSRNFORRBERAMZREDTAT :

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Less than 1 month 2—M®A 100 86
1 month to 3 months ﬂil)zl EZ=EA 137 93
More than 3 months but less than 1 year HB@=EAETE—F 37,055 9,051
Over 1 year iR —F 25 2
37,317 9,232

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group L\m\ted RREREEEERAF
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e PR ERR M

. [ =+ 4=
26 TRADE PAYABLES (Continued) 26 B 5 EAFIE (#)
Notes: (Continued) B aE - ()

(f) The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in the following (f) Lo RNFIEZREETA TR EEE:
currencies:

2019 2018

—EB-AF —T-N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

HK$ s 12,904 10,268

us$ e 19,676 8,817

RMB AR 17,033 -

49,613 19,085

==
27 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27 EHBE

31 March 1 April* 31 March

2019 2018 2018

—E-NF —N\F — N\

=A=+—H mA—-H* =ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BB T T BET T BT T

Contract liabilities EHEE
& The amounts in this column are after the adjustment from the application of
HKFRS 15.

Contract liabilities in relation to trading of commodities and
chemical products represent prepayments received from the
customers prior to delivery commodities and chemical products.
The Group have no particular policy on the amounts to be
received prior to the delivery of commodities and chemical
products and it is negotiated with customers on contact by
contact basis.

For the contract liabilities as at 1 April 2018, the entire balance
was recognised as revenue in the profit or loss during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group L\mlted BRRES
Annual Report 2018-19 —Z—/\E—

= 13,029 =

% ARASERNERETBYBREENF 155
RETE 2 -

BmRETERRZZEHNBERRR
NERREIERZABRPIRZE
F5R0R - AR B W BB R E XN B m
MMEIEMZAIBKRIRZ SR o8
TyRBBESREFHEMmE -

BRI N\FONA—HZEHEEM
= Eﬂﬁéﬁi:?*ﬂi:ﬂ:Jr*E
IEFEZ2RERERANER  WERE
AL ER o
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n‘/T\

BRI

28 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

28 FESTFRRT

H b A FRIR

31 March 1 April 31 March
2019 2018 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F —E-)N\F
=A=+—H mA—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T AT T BT
Receipts in advance (Note (a)) AU KIE (MiEE @) 915 845 13,874
Construction cost payables JETRRER A AR 1,385 5,146 5,146
Other payables (Note (b)) Hfth FE T3R8 (BT EE(b)) 50,329 44,233 44,233
Loan payable (Note (c)) ERER (M) = 45,578 45,578
52,629 95,802 108,831

Notes: P & :

(a)

(b)

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, receipts in advance from customers
of HK$nil (1 April 2018: HK$13,029,000) are included in contract liabilities
(Note 27) and disclosed in Note 2(b)(ii).

Included in other payables were commission payables to Fu Tian
International Trading Pte. Ltd. (“Fu Tian"”), the sales agent of the Group
and the salespersons of the Group of approximately HK$5,837,000 and
HK$14,875,000 respectively as at 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$675,000
and HK$14,875,000 respectively). During the year, commission expenses
of HK$5,162,000 and HK$nil (2018: HK$15,083,000 and HK$4,175,000
respectively) were paid to Fu Tian and salespersons respectively and the
amount was included in selling and distribution expenses. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, Fu Tian and salespersons are independent third
parties, none of which is not related to the Group or its related parties.

As at 31 March 2018, the amount mainly represented the loan payable to an
independent third party of HK$45,578,000. On 18 March 2018, the Group
borrowed an interest free loan with principal amount of HK$45,578,000
from an independent third party for business operation and the loan was
subsequently repaid by the Group on 21 April 2018.

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are denominated in the
following currencies:

(b)

(d)

ARRABEF B REEFE 1S5 RETP
ZHEBREAETT (ZE—N\FHA—A
#13,029,0007T) 5t A& # B & (M iE27) B
B 5E2(b)(ii) P 4% & o

S —AWEFZA=+—B HiEMKE
B FEMEFu Tian International Trading Pte. Ltd.
(TFu Tian | AAEE 7 HERE) RAEE
HEABZME D RI4 &8 15,837,000 &
B #514,875,000L (ZF—NF: DRI REH
675,0007T &% %% 14,875,0007T) ° £ A« A& FH
X 5,162,000 KA T T (22— \F:
5 Bl /% 7 #515,083,0007T & 7 #64,175,0007T )
BRI FFu Tan R HEA S - xS EE
AHERDHALZN - RAREERA  Fu Tian
REABYABUE = HofE—Ha
ANEHLHBEATHR-

RZE—N\F=A=+—H0 ZLBEFXEkERE
N —B B E =5 ABH45,578,0007T Z B o 1
—E-\E=ZA+N\B AEEA—BBIE
ZHEMASERANA5578,000T 2 R EE
HREREER-_T—\FNA=-1+—HH

FE £ 0B B A OB R T TS A TS
Wb

2019 2018

—ZE-hEF —E-N\E

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETT BT

HK$ ok 40,856 37,352
RMB ARHE 18,258 71,479
59,114 108,831
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29 BANK BORROWINGS

e PR ERR M

29 RITEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Bank borrowings — secured RITEHE - BER 32,182 29,437
Bank borrowings — unsecured RITHEE —EER = 40
32,182 29,477
At 31 March 2019, the Group’s borrowings contained a R-ZZBE—HNEFE=A=+—H x&EEZ>
repayment on demand clause. The Group’s borrowings were EBERSRERERIGER  KEBRE
repayable based on the scheduled repayment terms set out in the BB EREEBRREEEYN
loan agreements as follows: EEBERMT:
2019 2018
ZE-NF —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEFT
Within one year —FA 3,159 3,290
Between one and two years —EMF 3,250 6,750
Between two and five years MERASF 10,301 10,790
Over five years AFE 15,472 8,647
32,182 29,477
Notes: MisE:
(a) Bank borrowings contained a repayment on demand clause which enables (@) BTSSR TIRETE 2 IREREE

the bank to exercise at its sole discretion. Accordingly, the entire balance was
classified under current liabilities as at 31 March 2019 and 2018.

(b) As at 31 March 2019, the bank borrowings were interest-bearing with
variable rate at contractual interest of HIBOR plus certain basis points per
annum. The effective interest rate for the year is 2.5% (2018: 2.5% to
12.6%). The borrowings were repayable on monthly instalment basis up to
maturity in accordance with the terms set out in respective banking facility

letters.

(b)

BR-A R NFR_F-N\F=A
=t+—R 2RERIRRBDAE-

—NWEZA=+—8 RITEEREE
ﬁé ‘nﬁuﬂ;h&?/&ﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬁgmtiﬁ
FEEHEOF ST E - FAERMER2.5%
(ZE—N\F:25%F12.6%)  {EETHIRIEH
RERITEE R4 2 R B IR B 95 82
fio
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29 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

30

234

BRI

Notes: (Continued)

(c) As at 31 March 2019, the Group pledged the investment properties with
carrying value of approximately HK$79,845,000 (2018: HK$103,887,000)
(Note 16(c)) to secure the bank borrowings of the Group amounting to
HK$32,182,000 (2018: HK$29,437,000).

(d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings at 31 March 2019 are
denominated in HK$ and approximate to their fair values.

29 IRITEE (&)

PR 7E : (40)

()

(d)

RZZT—NAF=ZR=1+—A AEECEAK
E{E %7 #79,845,0000T (Z T — N\F : B
103,887,0007C) 2 & &M (HizE16(c)) fEAZR
S EIRITEEA32,182,000T (=T — \4F:
75%29,437,0007T ) K FER ©

F-NAF=A=+—H AKERTEE
MAREED S ELRE A FERE -

(e) The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the (e) RER FAEBEBENEZZBH 2 EABRRERANE
contractual repricing dates at the end of the year are as follows: FEEBABHHT:
2019 2018
—E-AF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
6 months or less 618 A sk 2 r6fE A 32,182 29,477
it
SHARE CAPITAL 30 IRA

Number of shares

Share capital

RHEA (&S
Note (thousands) HK$'000
(o (Fh&) BETIT
Authorised: ETE
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018, RZZE—+FMA—H"
1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 —E-NF=RA=t—H"
ZE-\FWMA-BRK
“Z-NE=R=+-H 15,000,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER:
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZZ—tF=A=+—HEK
—E—+tFMA—H 7,550,724 75,507
Placement of new shares & 3 R 0 (a) 1,417,152 14,172
At 31 March 2018, 1 April 2018 and —-N&=ZRA=+—-H"
31 March 2019 —N\FRA-BAK
“E-AE=ZA=+—H 8,967,876 89,679
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

31

Note:

(@) On 20 March 2018, the Company issued approximately 1,417,152,000
shares through placement with a price of HK$0.105 each respectively. The
net proceeds from the placement was approximately HK$147,085,000 after
netting off related transaction costs of approximately HK$1,716,000.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a) Share options

The Company has a share option scheme for eligible
directors and employees of the Group.

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 June
2013, a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) has been approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the
Company may, at their discretion, offer employees,
contracted celebrity, advisor, consultant, serial provider,
agent, customer, partner or joint venture partner of the
Company and its subsidiaries (including any directors of
the Group), the grant of options to subscribe for shares
of the Company representing up to a maximum of 10%
of the shares issue as at 24 June 2013 (excluding shares
issued on exercise of options under the Share Option
Scheme).

30

31

e AR MR

PR (&)

(a) RZZ—\E=A=+A ARAAHFEBEE
RERERE0.1057T 2 B8 E47491,417,152,000
&A% 15 - Bt 2 FT{S SIS BB AR Sk
TR H) A #51,716,0007T & £9 5 75 #5147,085,000
o

EBEEFEAGERBRTEE IR K
B YERRARAANGLZEEMR—
ENERE-MEEARERAARN
MHBEEZARSEM-

LU A7 2 A4 2 7K I8
(a) HEBRRAE

ARBAE-—HREHRTAEEAE
REENER ZBRAER S -

RZE—=F A=+ HBET
FIRERRFFRIRE £ ANARIMREHR
RN AR RT 8 ([ RS
HEIIDE

RIBERETE ARREFAH
BRARRAREHBARES -
BHER B LD B OH
EE RE -BF -AEBHEA
BEH (BRAKEENES) R
HERE - ARBEERRZER
—E—=FR A= TMBBET
BAn10% (& FE17 (68 B AR AT
A TR R ITHAR ) A

NS
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31 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

nVT\

31 AR AT 258 (@)

(a) Share options (Continued) (a) BRE #)
Details of the Company'’s share options granted under the RERN AARRIBERESS
share option scheme and their movements during the year BEZHEREREZEH ZF BN
are as follows: Ik
As at Reclassified As at As at
Exercise 1 April during the 31 March 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period price 2017 Forfeited year (Note) 2018 Lapsed 2019
RFA
o E198 RoE-NF RoE-1E
HEHAH figid: ik mWA-H B (W#) =A=+-H %% ZB=t-H
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
T T T TR TR TR
Executive Directors
$17ES
Mr. Li Zhenjun 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to HK$0.193 5,000 = = 5,000 (5,000) -
2 April 2018
FRERE ZB-REMAZTZR ZB-AETACTCAE B%0I9BT
—2-\§WA=1+-H
Mr. Poon Sum 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to HK$0.193 50,000 = (50,000) = = =
BRLA “2-FMAZ+ZR -% #10.1931
s—/\ﬁlﬂ + =
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to HK$0.193 50,000 - - 50,000 (50,000) -
21 April 2018
BHEREE Z2-REBAZTCA B ETACTZRZE ER0IBT
—2-\§¥MA=1+-A
Mr. Poon Wai Kong 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to HK$0.193 25,000 - = 25,000 (25,000) -
21 April 2018
EERLE ZE-REBACTCA ZE-AETACTCRE B%09T
—2-\fmA=1+-H
Independent
non-executive Director
BUFHTES
Mr. Chan Shu Kin 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to HK$0.193 3,500 = = 3,500 (3,500) -
Apr\l 2018
REBEE “2-"E@A-TZA FHAZT-HE BK0.1837T
NERA=+—8H
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to HK$0.193 3,500 - - 3,500 (3,500) -
21 April 2018
REELE ZE-REBAZTCA ZE-RETACTCRE B%019T
—2-\§WA=1+-H
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to HK$0.193 3,500 = = 3,500 (3,500) =
Apml 2018
EERE Z3-REMAZ+ZA ZT-AETAZTZRZE #BH01931T
t /\ilﬂ -8
Employees 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to HK$0.193 73,300 (1,500) 50,000 121,800 (121,800) -
21 April 2018
&2 Z2-REBAZTZA ZBR-RETACTZRE B9
\EMA=+-A
213,800 (1,500) = 212,300 (212,300) =
Exercisable at end of 213,800 212,300 -
the year
RERATE
Weighted average exercise 0193 0.193 0.193 0.193 0.193 -
fICG
m%#ﬂﬂ g
Note: B 3

The share options granted to Mr. Poon Sum are reclassified during the
current year as he retired from the office of executive director of the
Company with effect from 28 August 2017 and works as an employee of the

Group.
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31 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
reclassified share-based payment reserve of approximately
HK$12,009,000 (2018: HK$78,000) to accumulated losses
in relation to the lapse of 130,000,000, 10,500,000
and 71,800,000 share options of Executive Director,
Independent Non-executive Director and certain employees
respectively (2018: 1,500,000 share options of certain
employees).

As at 31 March 2019, no share options were outstanding
(2018: 212,300,000).

Share Award Scheme

On 16 October 2008, the Board of Directors of the
Company approved the Share Award Scheme (“Share
Award Scheme”) in which selected employees of the
Group,
Non-Executive Director, officer, agent or consultant (with
payroll) of the Group, are entitled to participate in the
Share Award Scheme pursuant to the rules of the Share
Award Scheme.

including without limitation any Executive and

There was no shares award granted during the year ended
31 March 2019 and 2018.

31 U225

(a)

(b)

B R AR M EE

n\/-_r\

N IE (48)
B AR (@)
HE-_"Z—-AF=R=+—8

EFE - AEBERBITES
BUEBRTESRATREEZ
130,000,00013 * 10,500,00015
71,800,000f7 A& #E (= ZF — N\
F /5 F1E B 21,500,000 8 I%
) ZRREFDBUARS I
< FIB 7 B #9785 12,009,000
T — )\ F : 5¥78,0007T) &=
RETEE-

—hWE=A=+—H %
EERERATE (22— /\F:
212,300,0001p ) ©

IR0 R R Et &

RZZZENFE+A+H AR
BRI ERN EEEE ( fﬁ%ﬂ
BEEE])  REBRMD ZEE 2
ZHE AEEEECREE  BE
BB AEBEMEANTT RIEH
TEEZ =2HAE REANERM
(ZFH) - HBEES MR EZE
BEE

RBE_ZT-AFR_FFNF
=HA=+# JJ:EEES@F'EEJI,%B?
AR B D 22
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32 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The net movements in the deferred tax (asset)/liabilities are as

32 EERIEEE

RERIE (BE) /AEFESHNT .

follows:
Accelerated tax
Tax loss deprecation Total
BEEFE mMEHERE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT T
At 1 April 2018 R-Z—\FEMA—A - 1,816 1,816
Credit to consolidated RIFEWRERETA
income statement (Note 13) (FF#E13) = (1,570) (1,570)
Exchange realignment PE W - 301 301
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-—NF
=A=+—8H - 547 547
Credit to consolidated RERE W KRETA
income statement (Note 13) (FHEE13) (72) (17) (89)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 2 = (37) (37)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE—NEF
= F =55 (72) 493 421

Deferred income tax liabilities mainly represent accelerated tax
depreciation recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years.

The deferred income tax liabilities are expected to be recovered
after more than 12 months.

At end of the year, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$256,496,000 (2017: HK$235,554,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised during the year ended
31 March 2018 has been recognised (2017: Nil) in relation to
unused tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
The unrecognised tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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235,554,0007T) c REE =T —N\F=
A=+ —HILFE - AR R &R KR
JB EETER - S LR B A B I E 1R

RELEMBEEE(ZS—EF:F) -
RAE R TE B 18 A] FEBR Bt 45



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e AR MR

33 BONDS 33 &%
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Unsecured bonds BERES 684,552 619,771
Less: Amount shown under current  J& - RENBFEE AR EEE
liabilities (33,731) (591)
Amount shown under non-current FRBBRBTAIRSEE
liabilities 650,821 619,180
The carrying amounts of the above bonds are repayable based on LtESH 2 REE DR ES R
the scheduled repayment terms set out in the bond agreements ZHEEEFGEREERNT
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within one year —FR" 33,731 591
Between one and two years —FEMF 138,605 41,671
Between two and five years MEERF 427,845 463,243
Over five years AFENRE 84,371 114,266
684,552 619,271
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company issued HE_ZT-hE-A=+—HLEE"
new bonds with aggregated principal amount of approximately AARMETBLE=ZFEITEHER
HK$41,000,000 (2018: HK$199,600,000) to several independent & #A R 4978 41,000,000 (ZZE— N
third parties with coupon rates of 6% (2018: 6% to 7%) F: % %199,600,0007T) 2 ¥ & H
per annum, payable in 1 to 7 years (2018: 1 to 7 years) from FEBXREB (ZE—N\F 6%2
the respective issue dates, leading to a net cash inflow of 7% ) REFTHHEH —ZE2ELF (=
approximately HK$36,700,000 (2018: HK$170,110,000) after TZ-N\F:—E+F)RAIN EEFEH
netting off the placing fee and transaction costs that are directly &M A %% %36,700,0000T (ZZF— N\
attributable to the issue of the new bonds. The amounts of F B #170,110,0007) (AKLHBREEAT
bonds repayable at their maturities are disclosed in Note 3(a)(iii). NEFEEEENEESEERAERXSE
B) ARAIREBEFHNPRAEEEZS
BB 1% BB R M FE3(a)iii) ©
The carrying amount of the bonds are determined using the BAEZEREENERZERBETESE
expected future payments discounted at effective interest rates BZFEERMNENFS1%E17.7%
ranged from 5.1% to 17.7% per annum (2018: 5.1% to 19.6% (ZE2E—N\F FF5.1%F19.6%)ITH
per annum) prevailing at the respective dates of issuance. MIBEAAR R M EE -

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited Z @R E S EGR A A
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33 BONDS (Continued)

The fair value of the bonds as at 31 March 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$659,230,000 (2018: HK$624,792,000). The
fair values are determined based on cash flows discounted using
a rate based on the effective market interest rates of 5.3% to
17.8% per annum (2018: 5.6% to 20.2%) as at 31 March 2019.

33

B (&)

T-NEF=ZA=+—R BEFHz2A
?1@@7,%,%%59 230, 0007z (ZZE—N
& #624,792,0007T) - A FETE
RRZE-—NF=ZA=+—HZFE
BERMHEMENT53%E17.8% (=F
—N\F:56%=F202%)IMB 2R
EMEE-

The carrying amounts of bonds are denominated in HK$. BEZEEMBETABEE
34 COMMITMENTS 34 AL
(a) Capital commitments (a) EFREIE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Contracted but not provided ~— B &I #BRBEEDE -
for Property, plant and 5 K 5%
equipment 2,800 19,711

(b) Operating lease commitments - as lessee

At end of the year, the Group had future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which

(b) BREHEAE-FREEA

RER REBERE T HEEH
Z N HE AR E R E AT B R

fall due within: RFIEHES :
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
No later than 1 year —F R 2,216 8,979

Later than 1 year and no later —&F AR AFR

than 5 years 2,944 1,985
5,160 10,964

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office properties. Leases
are negotiated in a range from 1 year to 5 years. No
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payments.

240 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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34 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 34 EIE (@)

(c) Operating lease commitments — as lessor () REFERE—MFEAHBEA
At end of the year, the Group had future aggregate RER AEERBER—FEMF
minimum lease receipt under a non-cancellable operating REEZ PRI HH G EHE /AR
lease which falls due within one to two years. REEEE WA B :

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
No later than 1 year —FNR 135 2,856
Later than 1 year and no later —&F AR AFR
than 5 years - 135
135 279091
Operating lease receipt represents rentals receivable by the KEHEWABAEBRERE
Group for its investment property. Leases is negotiated in MERKNES HEZ —F4H
1 year term. No arrangements have been entered into for R o BRI S WA R ETE
contingent rental receipts. (B3N
35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BEEEALRS

(a) Transactions with related parties () BEEBREALTZRS

Compensation of key management personnel: FTEEREABWMHN -
All members of key management personnel includes FIEXTZEEBAEBEARAN
directors (executive and non-executive) and other members B (T RIFRT)IRTEEE
of key management of the Company. Details of their BeEHMAEK B - MEFHMAOFS0
remuneration are follows: P
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Salaries and short-term FeREBAEEREN
employee benefits 9,636 11,864
Post-employment benefits EfEZER 134 167
9,770 12,031
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @K'= EM AR A7)
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36

BRI

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY

36 17-1-@ a) 2 B #E AR 3 & =

,,,,,,,

Statement of financial position of the Company AT Z B RN &R
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —F-N\F
HKS’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Assets BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB &EE 149 52
Interests in subsidiaries N IENGIPA 134,372 317,480
Prepayments, deposits and TENHRIE RE R
other receivables Hoth B W IR 24,069 31,724
158,590 349,256
Current assets wEEE 0000 0 T
Prepayments, deposits and TERIE RE R
other receivables H fth e U 3R I8 23,678 19,836
Amounts due from subsidiaries G EMNGIE S 634,114 533,035
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEBBARIIEZ
through profit or loss CREE 34,684 52,074
Cash and cash equivalents HehkIHeEEEE 6,302 116,557
698,778 721,502
Total assets wEE 857,368 1,070,758
Equity and liabilities E?&&%fﬁ
Equity attributable to owners of RAGHEE ANEL#ER
the Company
Share capital A 89,679 89,679
Reserves (Note (a)) & (MizE@)) 59,808 344,626
Total equity AR 149,487 434,305
Liabilities a&
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bonds &% 650,600 618,979
Current liabilities TR B Eﬁ ________________________
Accruals and other payables JE 51 3R I8 K Bt JE < 3RIE 13,577 15,883
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEH W%’&ﬂ%ﬁlﬁ 9,973 1,000
Bonds (62 33,731 591
57,281 17,474
Total liabilities SEBE 707,881 636,453
Total equity and liabilities EaRkEEHEE 857,368 1,070,758
The statement of financial position of the Company was ARRZHBRARER_T—NLTF

approved by the Board of Directors on 8 November 2019 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Wong Kwok Leung
=HER
Director

EZE

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t R = £ E AR AR
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36 NA B 2R T K 7
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE w28 (&
COMPANY (Continued)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company Mat(a)A AR 2 RELE
Share-based
Share Other payment  Accumulated
premium reserves reserve losses Total
HURBXHZ
R%E EfbgfE BRI 2ithA ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETL BETT BETT BETT BT

At 31 March 2017 (restated) RZZ—tF=A=+—R (F53)) 916,506 5,450 12,087 (552,347) 381,696
Loss for the year FRFRE - - - (169,983) (169,983)
Placement of new shares REMRD 134,629 - - - 134,629
Expenses incurred for issue of BRARERTROEEZRAX

shares by way of placing (1,716) - - - (1,716)
Forfeiture of share options B RRER I - e (78) 78 5
At 31 March 2018 RZT-\F=A=1+—-8H 1,049,419 5,450 12,009 (722,252) 344,626
Loss for the year FRER - - - (284,818) (284,818)
Forfeiture of share options BRI - 7 (12,009) 12,009 =
At 31 March 2019 R-Z-h&E=f=1+—-8H 1,049,419 5450 = (995,061) 59,808

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @K'= EM AR A7)
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37 SUBSIDIARIES 37 MIBA T

RIZE-—AER T N\F=A=+—

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March

2019 and 2018:

Place/

country of
incorporation
or registration/

Nominal value of
issued share
capital/registered

HZEEMBRAZENT

Proportion of
nominal value

of issued share
capital/registered
capital held by the

Name of subsidiary operations share capital Company Principal activities
NG S
) BRIRAE/
%H’&ﬁkﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂ/ BRTRE/EH HRRAEE
WEAREE Bewd /BRX RAEE WESN  FEEE
China Hong Kong Link Asset Hong Kong 700,000 shares of 100.00% Asset management
Management Limited HK$1 each ]
MEREEERERAR B 700,00085 & 5 1 & BEER
BTG
China-Hong Kong Link Finance Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares of 100.00% Money lending
Company Limited HK$1 each
hERNBERAA Bk 1,000,000H§%E@ W&
BT RG
China-Hong Kong Link Securities Hong Kong 33,000,000 shares of 100.00% Brokerage of securities
Company Limited HK$1 each
RERESERAA 0 33,000,000f5% & [ /i (& EHER
BEITHORN
Go Wealthy Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100.00% Property investment
AEREBRAF B 1R EREER 1 TG MERE
Hai Tai Limited BVI 100 shares of US$1 each 100.00% Property investment
BREBRE RBRZFHS 100/ B REE1FTHRN NFERE
PetroAsian Energy Finance Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 share of 100.00% Money lending
HK$1 each
hHRRMBEAERA A B 1,000,000 & [ E & it
BT RG
PetroAsian Energy Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$1 each 100.00% Commodity trading
B RA R A A BB 10,0000 B R E & AmE
BRI RG
Wing Shing Chemical Macao Commercial ~ Macau MOP500,000 100.00% Commodity trading
_ Offshore Company Limited
KL TRFIBFERRBEARAA RF R F9#500,0007T AmE5
Shenzhen Galali Petroleum and Chemical ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 100.00% Trading of fuel oil and
Limited chemical products
R TREFN BRI IBRATF e AR 5,000,0007T BaRktIERES
EERBRMRILAAAEEREMEDF  PRC US$9,200,000 95.69%  Exploitation and sale of
crude oil
EERBHRLAAREEREERT HE 9,200,000 7T BRRHE R

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @i & &£ @A R Q)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the year.

There are no subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests that
are material to the Group as at 31 March 2019 and 2018.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 3 May 2019, the Group entered into a provisional sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of an indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company to an independent third party for
a cash consideration of approximately HK$104,782,000. The
concerned subsidiary owns investment property and is located
at Units Nos. 11, 12, 13, 14 on 8th Floor, Wing On Plaza, No.
62 Mody Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The disposal transaction
was completed on 19 July 2019 and the cash consideration
has been fully settled by the acquirer in July 2019. The gain on
disposal is expected to be approximately HK$25,000,000, which
is calculated based on the consideration less net asset value of
the disposed subsidiary as at 19 July 2019.

37

38

e AR MR

IEPNGIRE ),

ERBINARREZTRAEARERE

RAEEEAYBHALANBAR
EERA WHIHEHBATZEH

HEEERERBR TR

RER HENBRRETEMNEEE

RZE—hER_ZTE—N\EF=ZA=+—
H SENBARBEHALEENS B
BRZIEEH S

RERREIR

N-ZE—HhERA=0 KAEB:ILHE
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Schedule of Investment Properties

BREY=EYR

As at 31 March 2019 RWZZ—h&F=A=+—H

Property
LIES

Type
5l

Remaining
lease terms

BT HM

Percentage of
interest attributable to
our Company

RATELEERA DL

1. Car Parking Space No. 1053
On 1st Floor
Manhattan Hill
No. 1 Po Lun Street
Kowloon
=
BWAT15%
SR
1%
=B 5105357 B i1

2. Flat B On 52th Floor of Tower 2
Manhattan Hill
No. 1 Po Lun Street
Kowloon
-
FEA15%
E5TE L
T EES2IEBE

3. Unit 11-14 on 8th Floor
Wing On Plaza
No. 62 Mody Road
Kowloon
-
JE 3 38 62557
KR E%
11-148 T81&

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t R = £ E AR AR
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Carpark
e

Residential
X2

Office

N

Medium term

5

Medium term

Gk

Medium term

ikl

100%

100%

100%



Five Years Financial Summary

AFMBHE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
ZE-RF ZT—RF ZT—tF ZT-N\F ZEB-hf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFT BETT BT BT T
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
(H5E) (Hf5E) (Ht5E) (HI5E)

REVENUE ez 804,167 5,932,235 13,832,372 5,536,378 105,502
PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE ~ ARARIEA A
TO OWNERS OF e, (B1E)
THE COMPANY (148,305) (227,059) 95,188 (199,630)  (402,320)
REVENUE U&=
HK$'000
BEFT
15,000,000 13,832,372
12,000,000
9,000,000

6,000,000 5,932,235 5,536,378

3,000,000
804,167

105,502
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY &2 BB A (L% A,/ (&E)

HK$'000

wHT 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
100000

0

95,188

-100000

(148,305)

-200000

(199,630)

(227,059)
-300000

-400000 (402,320)
-500000

Note: The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time for the year ended 31 March M AEEERBE-T-AF=A=+—BHLFEEXE

2019. The Group chosen to apply the modified retrospective approach and under BB BREERIFE 155 - ARBE B BREALBEE]
transition method chosen, comparative information is net restated and certain EBWERBIBEABATRIBEL LLREAMERFIUES
comparative information may not be comparable. B FHBREM A AL R -
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@ &= SEER A A
Annual Report 2018-19 —ZE—N\E—NFFEHRE 247
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Five Years Financial Summary

AFNBEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“T-5f —T-AF -Ttf -T-\F ZB-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETE  BMTR  BETE  A%TR  AETx

TOTAL ASSETS WwEE 1,156,171 1,075,279 1,391,626 1,371,502 988,368
TOTAL LIABILITIES wEE (681,355) (693,943) (778,509) (778,720)  (820,264)
TOTAL EQUITY RS 474,816 381,336 613,117 592,782 168,104
TOTAL EQUITY XA %

HKS$'000

EEFIT

700000

613,117 592,782

600000

500000 474,816

400000 gil230

300000

200000 168,104

100000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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